
  1 

 

Council 

 
Contact Officer: Steven Corrigan, Democratic Services Manager    
Tel: 07717 274704 

 

E-mail: steven.corrigan@southandvale.gov.uk 
Date: 9 February 2022 
Website: www.southoxon.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Summons to attend  

a meeting of Council 

 
to be held on  
 

THURSDAY 17 FEBRUARY 2022  AT 6.00 PM 
 
at 
 

135 EASTERN AVENUE, MILTON PARK, OX14 4SB 
 
To watch this meeting, follow this link to the council’s YouTube channel: 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTj2pCic8vzucpzIaSWE3UQ 

 

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These include 
large print, Braille, audio cassette or CD, and email.  For this or any other special 
requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the officer named on this 
agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible before the meeting.   

 

 
 
Patrick Arran 
Head of Legal and Democratic 
 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTj2pCic8vzucpzIaSWE3UQ


  2 

 

Agenda

1  Apologies for absence   
 

To record apologies for absence.   
 
2  Minutes (Pages 6 - 19) 

 
To adopt and sign as a correct record the Council minutes of the meeting held on 9 
December 2021.   

 
3  Declarations of disclosable pecuniary interest   

 
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests and any conflicts of 
interest in respect of items on the agenda for this meeting.    

 
4  Urgent business and chair's announcements   

 
To receive notification of any matters which the chair determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent, and to receive any announcements from the chair.   
 
5  Public participation   

 
To receive any questions or statements from members of the public that have 
registered to speak.   
 
6  Petitions   

 
To receive any petitions from the public.   

 
7  Treasury Management and Investment Strategy 2022/23  

(Pages 20 - 59) 
 

Cabinet, at its meeting on 3 February 2022, considered the attached report of the 
head of finance on the council’s treasury management and investment strategy for 
2022/23.  
 
The Joint Audit and Governance Committee considered the report at its meeting on 
25 January 2022 and had not recommended any adjustments to the strategy.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: to 

1. approve the treasury management strategy 2022/23, as set out in appendix A to 
the head of finance’s report to Cabinet on 3 February 2022;  
 

2. approve the prudential indicators and limits for 2022/23 to 2024/25, as set out in 
appendix A to the report;   
 

3. approve the annual investment strategy 2022/23 set out in appendix A to the 
report, and the lending criteria detailed in table 6.  



  3 

 

 
8  Capital Strategy 2022/23-2031/32 (Pages 60 - 80) 

 
Cabinet, at its meeting on 3 February 2022, considered the attached report of the 
head of finance on the capital strategy for 2022/23 to 2031/32.    
 
RECOMMENDATION: to   
 
1. approve the capital strategy 2022/23 to 2031/32, contained in the appendix to 

the head of finance’s report to Cabinet on 3 February 2022; and  
 

2. agree the strategy for flexible use of capital receipts, which is contained as 
annex 1 of the capital strategy. 

 
9  Revenue budget 2022/23 and capital programme 2022/23 - 

2026/27 (Pages 81 - 119) 
 

Cabinet, at its meeting on 3 February 2022, considered the attached report of the 
head of finance on the the draft revenue budget 2022/23, and the capital 
programme to 2026/27.  
 
The Scrutiny Committee considered the report at its meeting on 7 February 2022 
and made no recommendations to Cabinet.  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: to  
 

1. set the revenue budget for 2022/23, as set out in appendix A.1 to the head 
of finance’s report to Cabinet on 3 February 2022;  

   
2. approve the capital programme for 2022/23 to 2026/27, as set out in 

appendix D.1 to the report, together with the capital programme changes as 
set out in appendix D.2 and appendix D.3 to the report;  

 
3. set the council’s prudential limits, as listed in appendix E to the report;  

 
4. approve the medium-term financial plan to 2026/27, as set out in appendix F 

to the report;  
 

5. allocate £500,000 to fund the Communities Capital and Revenue grant 
scheme;  

 
6. ask officers to review the Medium-Term Financial Strategy following the   

announcement by the Secretary of State for Levelling Up, Housing and 
Communities of changes to the council’s future funding streams. 

 
10  Future provision of external audit services (Pages 120 - 126) 

 
Cabinet, at its meeting on 3 February 2022, considered the attached report of the 
head of finance on proposals for appointing the external auditor to the council for the 
accounts for the five-year period from 2023/24.  
 



  4 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION: to 
 
1. accept Public Sector Audit Appointments’ invitation to opt into the sector-led 

option for the appointment of external auditors to principal local government 
and police bodies for five financial years from 1 April 2023; and  

 
2. authorise the head of finance to opt into the national scheme for auditor 

appointments for the provision of external audit services starting with the audit 
of the 2023/24 accounts.   

 
11  Council tax 2022/23   

 
To consider the report of the head of finance on the setting of the council tax for the 
2022/23 financial year - report to follow. 

 
12  Pay policy statement 2022/23 (Pages 127 - 131) 

 
To consider the report of the deputy chief executive on the adoption of a pay policy 
statement to meet the requirements of the Localism Act - attached. 

 
13  Report of the leader of the council   

 
1. To receive the report of the leader of the council. 

 
2. Urgent cabinet decision  

 
In accordance with the Scrutiny Committee Procedure Rules, a Cabinet or 
Cabinet member decision can be taken as a matter of urgency, if any delay 
by the call in process would seriously prejudice the council’s or the public’s 
interest or that the decision cannot reasonably be deferred.  Treating the 
decision as a matter of urgency must be agreed by the chair of the Scrutiny 
Committee and must be reported to Council, together with the reasons for 
urgency. 
 
Council is requested to note the details of the following urgent decision.  

 
Additional Restriction Grant Defrayal Omicron Update 
 
On 1 February 2022, Councillor Robin Bennett, Cabinet member for 
Development and Corporate Landlord, took a decision to approve 
amendments to the South Oxfordshire District Council Additional Restrictions 
Grant (ARG) scheme – Winter 2021 to account for Omicron updates and to 
authorise the head of development and corporate landlord, in consultation 
with the head of finance, to award grants. 

 
The chair of the Scrutiny Committee agreed to waive call in to allow the funds 
to be awarded immediately to meet Government conditions for the scheme or 
risk losing available business support funds.  

  

 



  5 

 

14  Questions on notice   
 

To receive questions from councillors in accordance with Council procedure rule 33. 
 
Question from Councillor Anna Badcock to Councillor Leigh Rawlins, 
Cabinet Member for finance and property assets  
 
What would it take politically and monetarily to have a swimming pool built in 
Watlington, considering the options currently and in the future and mindful of the 
development at Berinsfield where a current facility, in need of update, resides, and 
the anticipated planning applications for Chalgrove?  

 
15  Motions on notice   

 
No motions have been submitted from councillors in accordance with Council 
procedure rule 38.   
 
 
 
 
Patrick Arran 
Head of Legal and Democratic 

 

 
 



 1 

Minutes 

 

OF A MEETING OF THE 
  

Council 

 
Held on Thursday 9 December 2021 at 6.00 pm 
First floor, 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, Milton, OX14 4SB 
 

Present in the meeting room: 
Councillors: Jo Robb (Chair), Ken Arlett, Anna Badcock, Pieter-Paul Barker,  
David Bartholomew, Robin Bennett, David Bretherton, Sam Casey-Rerhaye, Sue Cooper,  
Peter Dragonetti, Maggie Filipova-Rivers, Elizabeth Gillespie, Victoria Haval,  
Lorraine Hillier, Kellie Hinton, Mocky Khan, Lynn Lloyd, Axel Macdonald, Caroline Newton, 
Andrea Powell, Leigh Rawlins, David Rouane, Anne-Marie Simpson, Ian White and  
Celia Wilson 
 
Officers: Patrick Arran, Head of Legal & Democratic and Monitoring Officer, Steven 
Corrigan, Democratic Services Manager and Mark Stone, Chief Executive, 
 

Remote attendance:  
Councillors: Alexandrine Kantor, George Levy, Jane Murphy, Sue Roberts, Ian Snowdon, 
Alan Thompson and Andrea Warren 
 
Apologies for absence received on behalf of Councillors Tim Bearder, Stefan Gawrysiak, 
Kate Gregory and David Turner 
 

49 Minutes  
 
RESOLVED: to approve the minutes of the extraordinary meeting of 
Council held on 24 September and the Council meeting held on 7 October 
2021 (both the public and confidential minutes) as correct records and 
agree that the Chair sign them as such. 
 

50 Declarations of interest  
 
None. 
 
The Chair provided advice that the Monitoring Officer had advised that there was no 
requirement for councillors to declare an interest in agenda item 13, Parental Leave Policy. 
 

51 Urgent business and chair's announcements  
 
None. 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 6

Agenda Item 2



 2 

52 Public participation  
 
No members of the public had registered to address Council. 
 

53 Petitions  
 
None. 
 

54 Review of Joint Gambling policy  
 
Council considered Cabinet’s recommendation, made at its meeting on 2 December 2021, 
on a review of the Joint Gambling Policy.   
 
RESOLVED: to 

1. adopt the proposed joint gambling policy;  

2. authorise the head of housing and environment to make minor editorial changes to the 
joint gambling policy; and  

3. authorise the head of housing and environment to publish the joint gambling policy in 
accordance with the Gambling Act 2005 (Licensing Authority Policy Statement) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 2006. 

 

55 Treasury management mid-year monitoring report 2021/22  
 
Council considered Cabinet’s recommendations, made at its meeting on 2 December 
2021, on the treasury management performance in the first six months of 2021/22.  
 
Councillor Rawlins, Cabinet member for finance, reported that income from treasury 
activities was under the budget forecast due to the lower than expected interest rates 
during that period.  However, the council’s performance had exceeded all benchmarks for 
the first six months of the year and there had been no need to borrow funds during the first 
six months of the financial year, nor was there any expectation of a need to borrow during 
the remainder of the year.     
 
He reported a correction that in paragraph 25 of the report; the interest rates quoted 
should be amended from 10 per cent and 25 per cent to read 0.1 per cent and 0.25 per 
cent respectively.   
 
Both the Joint Audit and Governance Committee at its meeting on 30 November and 
Cabinet at its meeting on 2 December 2021 were content that the treasury management 
activities had been carried out in accordance with the treasury management strategy and 
policy.   
 
In response to a question seeking an update on progress towards the drafting of a climate 
change and nature friendly strategy, Councillor Rawlins responded that the council was 
taking external expert advice on the subject to take account of such ethical issues but that 
the council also had fiduciary responsibilities to both residents, and those on whose behalf 
the council holds funds, to ensure the security and liquidity of funds alongside the issue of 
yield. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



 3 

RESOLVED: to 

 
1. note the treasury management mid-year monitoring report 2021/22; and  
 
2. note that Cabinet is satisfied that the treasury activities are carried out in accordance 

with the treasury management strategy and policy.   
 

56 Council tax base 2022/23  
 
Council considered Cabinet’s recommendations, made at its meeting on 2 December 
2021, on the council tax base for 2022/23. 

 

RESOLVED: to 
 

1. approve the report of the head of finance to Cabinet on 2 December 2021 for the 
calculation of the council’s tax base and the calculation of the tax base for each parish 
area for 2022/2023;  

 
2. agree that, in accordance with The Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) 

(England) Regulations 2012, the amount calculated by South Oxfordshire District 
Council as its council tax base for the year 2022/23 be 60,343.7; and  
 

3. agree that, in accordance with The Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) 
(England) Regulations 2012, the amount calculated by South Oxfordshire District 
Council as the council tax base for the year 2022/23 for each parish be the amount 
shown against the name of that parish in Appendix A of the report of the head of finance 
to Cabinet on 2 December 2021.   

 

57 War and War Widow(er)s Pension Disregard top up in Housing 
Benefit  

 
Council considered Cabinet’s recommendations, made at its meeting on 2 December 
2021, to continue to disregard war pensions and war widow(er)’s pensions in calculating 
housing benefit entitlement. 
 
RESOLVED: to re-affirm its decision to approve the disregard of War Pensions and War 
Widow(er)’s pensions:  
 
1. in full as income above the statutory £10.00 per week disregard in the calculation of 

Housing Benefit entitlement; and  
 

2. in full as income in relation to the means tested assessment of Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme discount.   

 

58 Constitution Review Task Group  
 
Council considered a proposal to establish a Joint Constitution Review Task Group with 
Vale of White Horse District Council to undertake a review of the constitution and make 
recommendations to Council.  
 

Page 8

Agenda Item 2



 4 

Council considered the officer’s recommendation to establish a task group of six 
councillors with three from South Oxfordshire District Council and three from Vale of White 
Horse District Council. 
 
A majority of councillors supported the view that each political group should have a 
representative on the task group therefore resulting in South Oxfordshire having six 
representatives. Contrary to this, the view was expressed that representation should be 
based on political proportionality. Equal representation from each political group, 
irrespective of the size of a political group, provided smaller groups with a disproportionate 
voice.  
 
 Council was advised that, at its meeting on Wednesday 8 December, Vale of White Horse 
District Council, agreed to establish a Joint Constitution Review Task Group with South 
Oxfordshire District Council comprising an equal number of councillors from each council 
with the number of members to match that agreed by South Oxfordshire District Council at 
this evening’s meeting. Each council would therefore have the same level of 
representation. 
    
Council supported the establishment of a joint task group with six councillors representing 
South Oxfordshire District Council – one from each political group. 
 
RESOLVED: to. 
 
1. establish a Joint Constitution Review Task Group with Vale of White Horse District 

Council comprising six councillors from each council; 
2. allocate a seat to each political group; 
3. agree that councillors from the same political group on the council may substitute for 

this council’s appointed representatives; 
4. authorise the head of legal and democratic to make appointments to the task group in 

accordance with the wishes of the relevant group leader. 

  
 

59 Arrangements for investigating allegations under the member 
code of conduct  

 
Council considered the Joint Audit and Governance Committee’s recommendation, made 
at its meeting on 30 November 2021, on revised arrangements for dealing with complaints 
under the code of conduct. 
 
Councillor Mocky Khan, Co-Chair of the Joint Audit and Governance Committee 
introduced the recommendations of the committee, which if adopted would come into 
effect immediately. 
 

He advised that the Monitoring Officer had reviewed the existing process since coming into 
post and formed the view that the process needed to be updated given the manner in 
which complaints were made and dealt with.  There is a need to manage expectations 
about what complaints would be progressed and to implement a public interest test to 
ensure that resources are focussed on those complaints which involve a serious breach of 
the Nolan Principles. The review was undertaken against the backdrop of the best practice 
recommendations set out in the Committee on Standards in Public Life (CSPL) report 
called “Local Government Ethical Standards” dated 30 January 2019.  
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



 5 

RESOLVED: to agree the arrangements for investigating complaints appended to the 
report of the monitoring officer to the Joint Audit and Governance Committee on 30 
November 2021. 
 

60 Councillors' Parental Leave Policy  
 
Council considered the report of the head of legal and democratic on the adoption of a 
Parental Leave Policy for councillors. 
 
Whilst the majority of councillors supported the policy, a number of councillors expressed 
reservations regarding the provisions for the holder of a special responsibility allowance to 
retain the payment during a period of parental leave when they would not be fulfilling the 
duties associated with the role. Others expressed the view that it was important that a 
councillor in a special responsibility role was able to return to the role and not be financially 
disadvantaged. 
 
Council supported the policy in contributing towards increasing the diversity of experience, 
age and background of councillors, the retention of experienced councillors and making 
public office more accessible. Council welcomed the gender neutral aspect of the 
provisions in the policy.   
 
The view was expressed that officers should investigate whether a similar policy would be 
appropriate for councillors with caring responsibilities for relatives. 
 
RESOLVED: to adopt the Parental Leave Policy attached at appendix 1 to the report of 
the head of legal and democratic to the Council meeting on 9 December 2021. 
 

61 Council Motions Update - May 2019 - present  
 
Council received and noted a progress report on motions approved by Council since May 
2019. 
 
In response to a question in respect of motion South M36, adopted by Council at its 
meeting on 15 July 2021, Councillor Rouane, Leader of the council, advised that the 
appropriate body to take forward the idea of regional parks was the Environmental 
Advisory Group for Future Oxfordshire.  
 

62 Report of the leader of the council  
 
Councillor Rouane, Leader of the council, provided an update report on a number of 
matters. The text of his address is attached. 
 

63 Questions on notice  
 

Question from Councillor Sue Roberts to Councillor David Rouane, Leader of the 
council  

We encourage developers to deliver homes that are zero carbon both in operation and 
construction (Para 8.35 of our Local Plan). We should lead and set an example with the 
new Council office to be built in Didcot. The advice from the Climate Emergency Advisory 
Committee (now CEEAC), accepted by Cabinet, and concerning the original design for the 

Page 10

Agenda Item 2



 6 

office at Crowmarsh, was that it should be as low carbon as possible in operation and 
construction. 
 
Advice has not been sought from CEEAC on the very different design for the Didcot office. 
It will release 1670 Tonnes of CO2 equivalent in the construction phase. By comparison, 
this would be around 300 years’ worth of emissions from you or me. The final build will 
achieve only BREEAM excellent and not BREEAM outstanding.  
 
I understand it would cost 10% extra to achieve BREEAM outstanding. This should be 
seen in the context of the many-fold increase in cost from the original specification to the 
current design. 
 
My question, therefore, is given that we know it to be possible, why are we not building to 
the standard that we want others to build to? Could we please, at this stage, request a 
design and costing for a truly zero-carbon BREAM-outstanding construction?  
 
I need hardly remind you that the magnitude of worldwide carbon emissions in the next 9 
years are critical to keeping global heating to below 2°C above pre-industrial levels. 
Heating above that would be catastrophic. Our near-term (construction) emissions are 
even more important than our long-term (operational) emissions. The UK must take a lead 
in reducing carbon emissions, especially over the next year whilst we hold the Presidency 
of the Conference of Parties (COP) 26. 
 

Answer 

Paragraph 8.35 of South Oxfordshire District Council’s local plan states: New build non-
residential buildings are required to meet the BREEAM excellent standard. This broadly 
represents performance equivalent to the top 10% of UK non-domestic buildings. Other 
recognised equivalent assessment methodology may be used, applicants are advised to 
check with the Council in order to ensure their alternative assessment methodology is 
acceptable. In addition to meeting the BREEAM excellent standard, new build non-
residential development proposals of 1,000sqm or more, are required to achieve at least a 
40% reduction in carbon emissions, increasing to 50% from 2026.  

As set out in the concept design papers which went through Scrutiny, Cabinet and 
Full Council in September and October 2021, the approved concept design for 
office accommodation at the council’s Didcot Gateway site is consistent with the 
requirements of the current local plan, and indeed it aims to exceed the 40% 
reduction in energy use target set in the plan.  A robust approach was taken 
through the concept design phase to minimise the embodied carbon within the 
fabric of the building, following a detailed lifecycle analysis of potential construction 
materials based on our design and operational requirements, to the lowest possible 
level given site and project constraints.  Additional sustainability options have also 
been incorporated to achieve carbon neutrality for regulated energy while in 
operation.  Due to the size of the site, it is not possible to also generate enough 
power for unregulated energy, but as set out in the papers the proposal is to 
purchase this element from solely renewable resources via the grid.   

To be truly sustainable, developments must strike a balance between the three pillars of 
sustainability – social, economic and environmental.  We continue to keep our office 
accommodation requirements, the financial viability of the programme and our 
sustainability outcomes under review.  The council also continues to consider the impacts 

Page 11

Agenda Item 2



 7 

of all of our council operations and progress measures to meet our climate change 
commitments. 

Supplementary question 
 
“I apologise - I should have referred to Para 8.34 rather than 8.35 of the final published 
version of the Local Plan. There, Council “implores” developers to do better with zero 
carbon than the levels that we set. And yet our building achieves only the required levels. 
Would you agree that senior management at the Council is not taking seriously the clear 
political intent of our administration to get our district to zero carbon?  
 
Further, Ridge’s Sustainability Statement is unclear and contains errors, for example a 
whole table where the numbers don’t add up, culminating in a bottom line of emissions 
without a decimal point, implying a thousand-fold greater emissions from construction that 
there will be. There is no mention of the important sequestering of carbon by timber 
elements (CLT and glulam) - it is often omitted from sustainability appraisals. 
Consideration of sequestered carbon is the means by which zero carbon can be achieved 
in construction. Please would you ask for a clear, new, sustainability appraisal of the Ridge 
building, including an option for zero carbon construction, for consideration by CEEAC? 
 
Finally, Ridge intend to be the BREEAM accreditors for the building they have designed. 
Are you happy with them marking their own homework?”   

 
Answer 
 
Councillor Rouane stated that the questions raised a level of technical detail which he 
could not provide answers to in the meeting. The project was at the concept design stage 
with a detailed design stage of the building to follow at which point the issues raised could 
be taken into account.  
 

2. Question from Councillor Sue Roberts to Councillor David Rouane, Leader of the 
council  

This question is asked in the light of the critical need swiftly to reduce worldwide carbon 
emissions in the short-term. This urgency has become more apparent since the 
Conference of Parties (COP) 26. 
 
We have a major task ahead of us to get our Council estate to net zero carbon by 2025 in 
accordance with the target set by this Council. Retrofitting our leisure centres and other 
buildings will consume labour, materials and money.  
 
My question is about whether it might be better to use the existing Abbey House in Vale for 
our shared Council administration rather than building a new office in Didcot, following the 
precept of a circular economy; re-using rather than disposal.  
 
I understand that the space there is more than sufficient. Abbey House itself would require 
full retrofitting for energy efficiency and updating for modern use. Transport links are poor. 
However, the draft Oxfordshire Plan 2050 vision is for a connected county, with good 
public transport. The Councils could use their influence and resources to kickstart superb 
connectivity for Abingdon. The land saved at Didcot could be used for all sorts of other 
purposes, such as social housing and a welcoming park. Most importantly, precious 
resource could be diverted from a brand-new build to attending to the retrofitting of our 
own estate. 

Page 12

Agenda Item 2



 8 

 
Please could you tell me whether a recent assessment has been made, in the light of the 
climate and ecology priorities in our new Corporate Plan, of the suitability of Abbey House 
as a shared office space for the two councils? By recent, I mean since our Corporate Plan 
was published. If so, please could we see the resulting report? If not, could a new 
assessment be made, with a joint committee of Vale and South councillors set up for this 
purpose? 

Answer 

On 24 September 2020, Cabinet considered a confidential report regarding office 
accommodation site allocation. This was shared with all councillors.  This latest report 
included a high level review of sites across South and Vale, carried out by Cushman and 
Wakefield, the council’s strategic property advisors.  The review included existing sites 
owned by each council in each district and also reviewed third party sites that the councils 
could seek to rent or purchase. This review included Abbey House. Each site was 
assessed against a range of core criteria fundamental to delivery, namely specification, 
timescale and geography.  Alongside these requirements more detailed analysis was 
carried out on the following criteria: programme to deliver, planning policy, impact on 
existing strategy for site, wider benefit of office use in this location, viability and potential 
alternative use values. The confidential decision taken by Cabinet at that meeting 
determined Didcot Gateway as the preferred site allocation for new office accommodation.  

Since this review took place, the council has published its Corporate Plan, placing greater 
emphasis on strategic priorities such as: the need to take action on the climate 
emergency, a sustainable plan to develop Didcot Gateway, the delivery of sustainable new 
offices and to diversify our revenue streams. All of these would add weight to the choice of 
Didcot Gateway as the preferred site and diminish the case for Abbey House. 

However, in line with best practice in any project, officers have continued to keep the 
Council’s requirements under further review. Recognising that Abbey House is owned by 
the Vale and not South, I will continue to discuss with the Leader of the Vale the 
opportunity to jointly undertake an assessment of Abbey House as part of this work, 
though also recognising that Vale may have alternative plans for this property. 

Supplementary question 

“You refer to a confidential report of the 24 September 2020. Please could that report be 
re-circulated?” 

Answer 

Councillor Rouane confirmed that Councillor Roberts would be provided with a copy of the 
report. 

 

64 Motions on notice  
 

 Council considered the following motions from councillors in accordance with Council 
Procedure rule 38. 
 
Prior to the expiry of two and a half hours, Council agreed, in accordance with council 
procedure rule 12, to extend the meeting by half an hour to allow Council to complete the 
consideration of the agenda items. 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 2



 9 

1. Councillor Caroline Newton moved, and Councillor Lorraine Hillier seconded the motion 
as set out in the agenda at agenda item 17 

 
After debate and on being put to the vote the motion was agreed. 
 
RESOLVED: That 
 
Council: 
  

 notes that the leader of the Liberal Democrats Party has re-stated his party’s 
commitment to building 380,000 homes a year 

 notes that 380,000 homes pa is fully 25% higher figure than targets proposed by any 
other political party in recent years 

 considers it important to understand what this building target might mean for South 
Oxfordshire 

 requests the Leader of the council to write to the Liberal Democrats Party Leader 
seeking clarification of how many extra houses he envisages this would bring to South 
Oxfordshire. 

 
2. With the consent of Council, Councillor David Rouane moved, and Councillor Sue 

Cooper seconded, the following motion to reflect proposed amendments from the 
Conservative Group – additional words shown in bold.  

 
At its meeting on 25 March 2021 council passed a motion noting: 

 the failure of healthcare services within the district to keep pace with the growth in 
the population, and  

 the failure of the present system putting our planning service and planning 
committee under pressure to approve new housing without plans for healthcare in 
place. 

 
The motion went on to call for officers to continue to try to engage with the Clinical 
Commissioning Groups (CCG) and for the Leader to request a meeting with the CCG to 
discuss these issues. 
 
Council notes that in April 2022 the CCG will be replaced by the Buckinghamshire, 
Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care System (ICS). 
 
At the previous meeting the Wards on the boundaries of Oxfordshire highlighted 
issues experienced during the pandemic.  SODC Councillors with Oxfordshire 
residents registered with GPs linked to Buckinghamshire CCG did not receive the 
same level of information on local pandemic actions for those residents as they did 
for those registered with GPs within the Oxfordshire CCG area. 
 
Council therefore requests that the Leader seeks an early meeting with the Leadership of 
the ICS in order to raise the issues highlighted in the March motion to ensure that they are 
aware of the serious issues facing the district in term of healthcare provision and, in 
particular, the importance of the ICS engaging with the planning process to ensure that 
services keep pace with development. 
 

Page 14

Agenda Item 2



 10 

As the new ICS will cover Oxfordshire, Berkshire & Buckinghamshire, can the leader 
seek assurances that this issue will not occur in the future and that this will no 
longer be an issue across county boundaries. 
 
After debate and on being put to the vote the motion was agreed. 
 
RESOLVED: That 

At its meeting on 25 March 2021 council passed a motion noting: 

 the failure of healthcare services within the district to keep pace with the growth in 
the population, and  

 the failure of the present system putting our planning service and planning 
committee under pressure to approve new housing without plans for healthcare in 
place. 

 
The motion went on to call for officers to continue to try to engage with the Clinical 
Commissioning Groups (CCG) and for the Leader to request a meeting with the CCG to 
discuss these issues. 
 
Council notes that in April 2022 the CCG will be replaced by the Buckinghamshire, 
Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care System (ICS). 
 
At the previous meeting the Wards on the boundaries of Oxfordshire highlighted issues 
experienced during the pandemic.  SODC Councillors with Oxfordshire residents 
registered with GPs linked to Buckinghamshire CCG did not receive the same level of 
information on local pandemic actions for those residents as they did for those registered 
with GPs within the Oxfordshire CCG area. 
 
Council therefore requests that the Leader seeks an early meeting with the Leadership of 
the ICS in order to raise the issues highlighted in the March motion to ensure that they are 
aware of the serious issues facing the district in term of healthcare provision and, in 
particular, the importance of the ICS engaging with the planning process to ensure that 
services keep pace with development. 
 
As the new ICS will cover Oxfordshire, Berkshire & Buckinghamshire, can the leader seek 
assurances that this issue will not occur in the future and that this will no longer be an 
issue across county boundaries. 
 
3. Councillor Ian White moved, and Councillor Caroline Newton seconded, the motion as 

set out in the agenda at agenda item 17.  
 
After debate and on being put to the vote the motion was agreed. 
 
RESOLVED: That 
 
Council asks the Leader to write to the Secretary of State for Levelling Up, Housing and 
Communities asking that he give focus to Planning Enforcement in his review of the 
Planning White Paper, including a review of the current powers and consideration to the 
introduction of additional powers available elsewhere in the UK, such as the requirement 
for developers to give notice of commencement and completion.  
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 2



 11 

4. Councillor Sam Casey-Rerhaye moved, and Councillor David Rouane seconded, the 
motion as set out in the agenda at agenda item 17.  

 
An amendment moved by Councillor Celia Wilson and seconded by Councillor Mocky 
Khan, to amend the second bullet point under of the “Council resolves, in line with the 
Glasgow Pact and associated declarations” heading was accepted by the mover and 
seconder of the original motion – omitted word shown by a strikethrough and additional 
word shown in bold:  
 

 To publish our a Climate Action Plan as soon as possible, where we set out how we 
will accelerate work on waste reduction, circular economy initiatives, retrofitting our 
buildings, sustainable food strategies and natural carbon capture  

 
After debate and on being put to the vote the motion was agreed. 
 
RESOLVED: That 
 
Council Notes:  
 

 That this authority has declared both a climate and an ecological emergency 

 That the Glasgow Climate Pact recognises a crucial role for communities and local 
authorities. By “recognizing the important role of … local communities and civil 
society, including youth and children, in addressing and responding to climate 
change, and highlighting the urgent need for multilevel and cooperative action” the 
Pact makes plain the need for action at every level of government and society. 
Furthermore, the Pact explicitly calls on us “to actively involve ... local communities 
in designing and implementing climate action”. 

 That shortly before the Glasgow conference the UK government published its Net 
Zero Strategy, which includes the intention to establish a Net Zero Forum to 
coordinate the strategy with local government.  

 

Council believes: 
 

 That COP26 failed to provide the national targets that could put the world on course 
for limiting global average temperature rise to 1.5C; it failed to provide the carbon 
price mechanisms needed to shift the world economy away from fossil fuels; it failed 
to provide the necessary finance for developing nations to develop without fossil 
fuels or to deal with the loss and damage caused to them by wealthier nations that 
are historically responsible; it failed to outlaw all loopholes in ‘offsetting’ 
mechanisms; it failed to commit to phasing out fossil fuels.  

 That the chances for a strong outcome from COP26 were weakened by the UK 
government’s mixed messages on climate action; not least the reduction in tax on 
internal flights, the continued commitment to new fossil fuel extraction in Cumbria 
and the North Sea oil fields, and the cuts to overseas aid.  

 That the Climate Change Committee is correct when it states that it is “crucial for 
the [Net Zero] Forum to promptly develop an agreed understanding of the role of 
local government in delivering Net Zero. Furthermore, Government must ensure 
that critical enabling processes, such as the planning system and appraisal 
methodologies, are properly aligned to these pathways.”  
 
 
 

Page 16

Agenda Item 2

https://unfccc.int/sites/default/files/resource/cma2021_L16_adv.pdf


 12 

 
Council resolves, in line with the Glasgow Pact and associated declarations:  
 

 To provide leadership in the form of clear and regular guidance and information on 
the road to net zero, with transparency regarding the council's work and honesty 
with regard to the changes in homes, transport and diets required of us all  

 To publish a Climate Action Plan as soon as possible, where we set out how we will 
accelerate work on waste reduction, circular economy initiatives, retrofitting our 
buildings, sustainable food strategies and natural carbon capture  

 To strengthen partnerships with other councils, local NHS trusts, businesses and  
OxLEP including  through as the Future Oxfordshire Partnership, so all partners 
bring forward plans for decarbonising both their own activities and their supply 
chains.   

 To play our part in the wider transport system transformation, including support for 
active travel, public and shared transport   

 To investigate opportunities for local Green Investment Bonds (as promoted by 
LGA) which can enable those in our communities to invest to contribute to the 
development of local green infrastructure projects.   

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
The meeting closed at 8:40pm  
 
 
Chair Date 

 

 
 

Page 17

Agenda Item 2



Council 9 December 2021 

Leader’s Report  

 

BUDGET 

Other than COVID, which I will come to later, the most pressing business of the 

council at the moment is the preparation of the budget for 2022/23. The 

approach of the cabinet, which has been shared with group leaders, was to ask 

officers to produce a draft budget which would demonstrate a direction of 

travel in terms of reducing the deficit over the medium term taking into 

account, among other things: 

 Savings which could be identified within the base budget without having 

a detrimental effect on core services, 

 Specific transformation measures identified by the cabinet and senior 

officers, and 

 The use of S106, CIL, and other restricted funds to achieve strategic 

objectives,  

We are still waiting to find out how much our funding from government will 

be, which obviously gives us a major degree of uncertainty at this stage, but we 

expect to find this out before Christmas. We will then be in position to submit 

a draft budget to Scrutiny early in the New Year. 

5Cs 

We have been able to analyse potential savings better this year because we 

have brought the financial reporting function back in house. This was one of 

the core services of the council which were outsourced as part of the 5 

Councils project. Councillors may know that one of the councils in this 

partnership, Mendip DC, is about to be subsumed into the new Somerset 

Council and the chief executives of the 4 remaining councils have written to 

the new authority to ask them to prioritise any decisions they might want to 

make about their future participation in order the give more certainty to the 

other partners. 

 

 

 

Page 13

Minute Item 62

Page 18

Agenda Item 2



ARC 

Councillors will recall that I wrote to the Secretary of State on behalf of the 

council asking him to pause work on the Oxford to Cambridge Arc until he 

could give some clarity as to the purpose of the project. Along with the other 

local authorities along the Arc have dedicated a great deal of time and effort 

into working together with government as we were told that this was the best 

way to gain environmental and infrastructure improvements for the area. 

However, the Comprehensive Spending Review contained no provision for 

such infrastructure and last week’s meeting of councils across the Arc was 

cancelled at short notice. It seems that there will be no more progress on this 

until the Levelling Up White Paper is published next year and so I have asked 

staff to limit their contribution to this to only essential work for the time being. 

FOP 

This makes our work in the Future Oxfordshire Partnership even more 

important. The Oxplan 2050 consultation has now closed and we are waiting 

for an analysis of the very large number of submissions which should be 

available early in the new year. 

COVID 

The situation regarding COVID is changing daily with the impact of another 

new variant to be assessed. The Chief Executive and I receive briefings from 

public health and the council is proceeding with caution. Even before last 

night’s announcement from the government, council staff were once again 

asked to work from home unless there is a particular need for them to come 

into the office and masks are being worn. However, as councillors we are 

required by the government to attend meetings like this one in person. 

This has been a difficult year for us all, worrying about our own health and that 

of loved ones. As a council, we think particularly of three of our own staff who 

have passed away this year, and who will be sorely missed by everyone. 

I hope that most of you will be able to take a much needed break this 

Christmas and we are all grateful to those staff who will be working to deliver 

essential services to those in need. 

Thank you and have a Happy Christmas. 

 

Page 14

Minute Item 62

Page 19

Agenda Item 2



 
 

Treasury Management and Investment 

Strategy 2022/23  

Recommendations 
 
That Joint Audit and Governance Committee approves each of the following key elements 
of this report, and recommends these to Cabinet: 

1. To approve the treasury management strategy 2022/23 set out in appendix A to 
this report; 

2. To approve the prudential indicators and limits for 2022/23 to 2024/25 as set 
out in, appendix A. 

3. To approve the annual investment strategy 2022/23 set out in appendix A, and 
the lending criteria detailed in table 6.  

That Cabinet considers any comments from committee and recommends Council to 
approve report. 

 
Purpose of report 
 
1. This report presents the council’s Treasury Management Strategy (TMS) for 2022/23. 

This sets out how the council’s treasury service will support financing of capital 
investment decisions, and how treasury management operates day to day. It sets out 
the limitations on treasury management activity informed by the prudential indicators, 
within which the council’s treasury function must operate. 

Report to: 

 

Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

Cabinet 

Council 

Report of Head of Finance  

Author: Donna Ross 

Telephone:  07917 088335 

E-mail: donna.ross@southandvale.gov.uk 

Cabinet member responsible:  Councillor Leigh Rawlins 

Telephone: 01189 722565 

Email:  leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk 

 

To: JOINT AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE on               25 January 2022 
 CABINET on                     03 February 2022 
 COUNCIL on                     17 February 2022 

Page 20

Agenda Item 7

mailto:donna.ross@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk


 
 

  
2. The strategy is included as appendix A to the report. This report includes the three 

elements required by legislation as follows: 
 

 The prudential and Treasury indicators required by the CIPFA Prudential Code 
2017 for Capital Finance in Local Authorities and CIPFA TM code of Practice 2017; 

 

 The annual investment strategy. This sets out the council’s criteria for 
selecting counterparties and limiting exposure to the risk of loss on its 
investments. 

 

 A statutory duty to approve a minimum revenue provision policy statement, 
(appendix A, paragraphs 15-20). 

 
It is a requirement of the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2017 that 
this report is approved by full Council on an annual basis. 

 
Strategic objectives 
 
3. Managing the finances of the authority in accordance with the treasury 

management strategy will help to ensure that resources are available to deliver its 
services and meet the council’s strategic objectives. 

 
Background 
 
4. Treasury management is defined as: “The management of the local authority’s 

investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market 
transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and the 
pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.” 
 

5. The primary function of the treasury management service is to manage cashflow and 
ensure cash is available when needed.  Surplus monies are deposited with low-risk 
counterparties and financial instruments with adequate liquidity to fund expenditure 
commitments.   

 
6. The funding of the council’s capital expenditure is also a function of treasury 

management. The capital programme provides a guide to the funding needs of the 
council and informs long-term cash flow plans to ensure that the council can meet its 
capital spending obligations. All expenditure of a capital nature is managed through the 
council’s capital programme and is not covered by this report.  

 
7. The treasury management and annual investment strategy set out the council’s 

policies for managing investments and confirms the council gives priority to the 
security and liquidity of those investments. It also includes the prudential indicators for 
the next three years; these demonstrate that the council’s capital investment plans are 
affordable, prudent and sustainable. 
 

8. The council’s treasury management strategy 2022/23 is attached in 
appendix A. Whilst every attempt has been made to minimise the technical content of 
this report, it is, by its very nature and the need for compliance with associated 
guidance, technical in parts. A glossary of terms in appendix G should aid members 
understanding of some technical terms used in the report. 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



 
 

 

Recommended changes to the treasury management strategy 
 
9. Council approved the 2021/22 treasury management strategy on 11 February 2021. 

The proposed strategy for 2022/23 includes the changes detailed below, which cabinet 
is asked to recommend to council. 
 

Counterparty limits 
 
10. On 31 March 2020 the then Interim Head of Finance waived financial procedure rule 53 

and allowed the councils to over-ride their counter party limits for money market funds.  
This was to allow the councils to deal with the receipt of unprecedented levels of 
government grant funding to fund the business grant schemes administered by the 
councils on behalf of the government.   

 
11. Delegation 2.7 of the council constitutions allows the Head of Finance, in consultation 

with the cabinet member for finance, to raise counterparty limits by £3,000,000 within a 
financial year.   

 
12. Due to the increase in peak levels of daily cash flow, the increased limits have been 

required throughout 2020/21 and 2021/22. Since it is anticipated that they will continue 
to be required during 2022/23, the increased limits have been incorporated into the 
counterparty limits table and regarded as permanent. 

 
13. The changes to the permanent limits include: 

 

 an increase to the counterparty limits for AAA rated CNAV Money market Funds 
to £30 million, 

 a £3 million increase to the counterparty limits for unrated building societies 
 

14. The counterparty limits table has been reformatted and updated and includes the 
following additional changes: 
 

 Increased limit for Short Dated/Ultra Short Dated Bond Funds from £10 million to 
£20 million, 

 Removal of a reference to a specific counterparty in the Pooled Property Funds 
and Diversified Income Fund categories. 

 Inclusion of Sovereign Bonds, Covered Bonds and Multilateral Development 
Bank Bonds with the existing limits for Corporate Bonds 

 An increase to the maximum portfolio percentage to 100 per cent for local 
authority and UK Government deposits. 

 An increase from 50 per cent to 100 per cent to the portfolio limit for deposits 
under one year with banks and building societies meeting the minimum credit 
rating criteria F1/A-. 

 A reduction in the maturity limit for local authority deposits from 25 to five years. 

 Removal of non-Treasury Management Property related Investment category. 
 

15. The minimum Fitch Sovereign rating for counterparties outside the UK has been 
amended to AA-, in line with the current Fitch Sovereign rating for the UK.  This is to 
enable deposits to be placed with foreign financial institutions with higher, or equivalent 
credit ratings to UK banks on the approved counterparty list. 
 

Page 22

Agenda Item 7



 
 

16. The Variable Interest Rate Exposure Prudential Indicator Limit has been increased to 
£100 million to reflect the increased level of cash balances and to allow greater use of 
funds with variable rate returns. 

 
Financial implications and risk assessment 
 
17. This report and all associated policies and strategies set out clearly the parameters the 

council must work within. It is important that the council follows the approved treasury 
management strategy which is designed to help protect the council’s finances by 
managing its risk exposure. 
 

18. Link Treasury Services has provided a counterparty methodology, but given the 
council’s balances, we have expanded on this methodology to include additional 
building societies to ensure a diversified portfolio. 
  

19. Base rate is currently 0.25 per cent.  The Bank of England increased the rate from 0.10 
per cent to 0.25 per cent on 16 December 2021 to help control the rise in inflation, 
which had risen above five per cent and reached its highest level in a decade. 
 

20. Link Asset Services latest base rate forecast anticipates that the next bank base rate 
rise will be during the first quarter of the 2022/23 financial year.  Table 1 below gives an 
estimate of the investment income achievable for the council next five years. 

 

 
21. The 2022/23 budget setting report and medium-term financial plan will take into 

account the latest projections of anticipated investment income.  
 

Climate and ecological impact implications 
 
22. There are no climate or ecological implications arising from this report.  As a 

responsible investor, the Council is committed to considering environmental, social, 
and governance (ESG) issues, and has a particular interest in taking action against 
climate change and pursuing activities that have a positive social impact.  
 

23. As opportunities to support the climate ambitions of the Council arise, they will be 
considered.   However, the treasury management function is controlled by statute and 
by professional guidelines and the first priorities of treasury must remain security, 
liquidity, and yield.   

  
Legal implications 
 
24. There are no significant legal implications as a result of the recommendations in this 

report. Compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the 
Public Services, the DLUHC Local Government Investment Guidance provides 
assurance that the council’s investments are, and will continue to be, within its legal 
powers. 

Table 1: Medium term investment income forecast 

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Forecast as at December 2021 1,777 1,899 1,999 1,883 1,761 

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



 
 

 
25. The council must approve any amendment to the treasury management strategy and 

annual investment strategy in accordance with the Local Government Act 2003 (the 
Act), the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the Public Services and 
the DLUHC Local Government Investment Guidance under Section 15(1) (a) Local 
Government Act 2003 and CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance. 

 
Conclusion 
 
26. This report introduces the treasury management strategy and the annual investment 

strategy for 2022/23 which are appended to this report, together with the prudential 
indicators for approval to council. These documents provide the parameters within 
which the council’s treasury management function will operate. 
 

 
Background papers 

 

 CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2017 

 CIPFA Prudential Code 2017 

 CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services Guidance Notes 2018 

 CIPFA statement 17.10.18 on borrowing in advance of need and investments in 
commercial properties 

 CIPFA Bulletin 02 Treasury and Capital Management Update October 2018 

 Statutory Guidance on Local Government Investments (3rd Edition)  
Statutory Guidance on Minimum Revenue Provision  

 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix A Treasury Management Strategy 2022/23 
Appendix B Economic Background 
Appendix C Risk and performance benchmarking 
Appendix D Explanation of Prudential and Treasury Indicators 
Appendix E TMP1 extract 
Appendix F Extension to the responsibilities of the S151 officer 
Appendix G Glossary of terms 
 
  

Page 24

Agenda Item 7



 
 

Appendix A 

Treasury Management Strategy 2022/23 
 
Introduction 
 
1. The primary function of the treasury management service is to ensure the council’s 

cash flow is adequately managed, with cash being available when it is needed.  
Surplus monies are invested in low-risk counterparties or instruments commensurate 
with the council’s low risk appetite, providing adequate liquidity initially before 
considering investment return. The second main function of the treasury management 
service is the funding of the council’s capital plans.   

 
2. Whilst any commercial initiatives or loans to third parties will impact on the treasury 

function, these activities are generally classed as non-treasury activities, (arising 
usually from capital expenditure), and are separate from the day-to-day treasury 
management activities. 

 
3. CIPFA defines treasury management as: 
 

“The management of the local authority’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, its 
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the 
risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance 
consistent with those risks.” 

 
4. Revised reporting was required for the 2019/20 reporting cycle due to revisions of the 

Department of Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) (formerly the 
Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government (MHCLG)) Investment 
Guidance, and Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Guidance, the Chartered Institute 
of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA) Prudential Code and the CIPFA Treasury 
Management Code.  The primary reporting changes included the introduction of a 
capital strategy, to provide a longer-term focus to the capital plans, and greater 
reporting requirements surrounding any commercial activity undertaken under the 
Localism Act 2011.  The capital strategy is reported separately. 

5. CIPFA released new editions of the Treasury Management Code and Prudential Code 
on 20 December 2021. Due to the timing of the code revisions and committee 
reporting timeframes, changes to reporting requirements, which may be deferred until 
2023/24, have not been included in this report. 

  
Treasury Management Reporting 

6. The Council is currently required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main 
treasury reports each year, which incorporate a variety of policies, estimates and 
actuals.   

a) Prudential and treasury indicators and treasury strategy (this report) - The first, 
and most important report is forward looking and covers: 

 the capital plans, (including prudential indicators); 

 a minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy, (how residual capital expenditure 
is charged to revenue over time); 

 the treasury management strategy, (how the investments and borrowings are 
managed), including treasury indicators; and  

Page 25

Agenda Item 7



 
 

 an investment strategy, (the parameters on how investments are to be 
managed). 

b) A mid-year treasury management report – This is primarily a progress report and 
will update members on the mid-year treasury performance, amending prudential 
indicators as necessary, and whether any policies require revision. 

c) An annual treasury report – This report reviews performance for the previous 
financial year and provides details of a selection of actual prudential and treasury 
indicators and actual treasury operations compared to the estimates within the 
strategy. 

 
Scrutiny 

7. The above reports are required to be adequately scrutinised before being 
recommended to the Council. This role is undertaken by the Joint Audit and 
Governance Committee. 

Treasury Management Strategy for 2022/23 

8. The strategy for 2022/23 covers the areas below: 

 the capital expenditure plans and the associated prudential indicators; 

 the minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy. 

 the current treasury position; 

 treasury indicators which limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council; 

 prospects for interest rates; 

 the borrowing strategy; 

 policy on borrowing in advance of need; 

 debt rescheduling; 

 the investment strategy; 

 creditworthiness policy; and 

 the policy on use of external service providers. 

 

9. These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, (the Act) 
the CIPFA Prudential Code, DLUHC MRP Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury 
Management Code and DLUHC Investment Guidance. 

 
Councillor and Officer Training 
 

10. The CIPFA Code requires the Head of Finance to ensure that members with 
responsibility for treasury management receive adequate training in treasury 
management.  This especially applies to members responsible for scrutiny. The 
training needs of treasury management officers are periodically reviewed.  

 

Capital Prudential Indicators 
 
11. The Council’s capital expenditure plans (as detailed in the council’s capital 

programme) are a key driver of treasury management activity. The output of the capital 
expenditure plans is reflected in the prudential indicators, which are designed to assist 
members’ overview and confirm capital expenditure plans. 

 

Page 26

Agenda Item 7



 
 

Treasury Management Consultants 
 
12. The Council uses Link Asset Services, Treasury solutions as its external treasury 

management advisors. 
 
13. The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions always 

remains with the organisation and will ensure that undue reliance is not placed upon 
the services of external service providers. All decisions will be undertaken with regards 
to all available information, including, but not solely, treasury advisory services. 

 
14. It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of treasury 

management services in order to acquire access to specialist skills, knowledge and 
resources. The Council will ensure that the terms of their appointment and the 
methods by which their value will be assessed are properly agreed and documented 
and subjected to regular review.  

 
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy Statement 2022/23 
 
15. The council’s current capital programme will primarily be financed from internal 

resources with a £5 million debt financing requirement anticipated in 2022/23 and a 
further need to borrow £10 million to finance capital expenditure in 2022/24. If 
borrowing is undertaken, then the council will be required by statute to set aside funds 
in the annual revenue budget to amortise the principal element of any borrowing – this 
is the MRP. There will also be a requirement to set aside revenue budget for the 
interest payments on any borrowing raised. Loans will generally be taken over the life 
of the assets being financed and amortised accordingly. 

 
16. The council is required by regulation to approve an annual MRP policy before the start 

of the year to which it relates. Any in-year changes must also be submitted to the 
council for approval. 

 
17. A variety of options are provided to councils for the calculation of MRP. The council 

has chosen the “asset life method” as being most appropriate. Using this method MRP 
will be based on the estimated life of the asset, in accordance with the regulations (this 
option must be applied for any expenditure capitalised under a Capitalisation 
Direction). Repayments included in annual PFI or finance leases are applied as MRP. 

 
18. Currently, the council’s MRP liability is nil. This will remain the case until planned 

capital projects have been delivered and funded with long term loans.   
 
19. The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) estimate for the council is £15million from 

2024/25 onwards. The CFR measures the authority’s underlying need to borrow for a 
capital purpose.  In day-to-day cash management, no distinction can be made 
between revenue and capital cash, external borrowing needs arise as a consequence 
of all revenue and capital cashflows.  When a funding need arises The Head of 
Finance will determine the most appropriate repayment method, duration, and terms of 
borrowing. 

       
20. The average forecast interest rate in 2022/23 for a 50 year PWLB loan is 1.86 per 

cent. Table 1 shows a forecast of the annual revenue costs associated with borrowing 
an amount of £15 million over a 50-year period, based on the current district tax base 

Page 27

Agenda Item 7



 
 

of 60,344 Band D equivalents.  It is estimated that the impact on Band D Council tax, 
of the debt financing in the proposed capital programme is £9.60. 

 

Table 1: Example MRP and interest calculation 

       

Loan Amount  £15,000,000    

       

Loan Duration      50 Years    

       

PWLB Interest  1.86%    

        

2022/23 Tax Base            60,344     

       

       

   £  £ per Band D 

MRP Element  £300,000   4.97 
       

Annual Interest Cost  £279,450   4.63 

Total   £579,450   9.60 

Prospects for Interest Rates 

21. The following table gives Link Asset Services central view on expected interest rate 
movements out to March 2025.   LIBOR and LIBID rates will cease from the end of 
2021.  Work is progressing to replace LIBOR with a rate based on SONIA (Sterling 
Overnight Index Average).  In the meantime, forecasts provided by Link are based on 
expected average earnings by local authorities for 3 to 12 months. 

 
Table 2: Interest Rate Forecasts - Quoted by link Asset Services December 2021 

 

 
 
Economic Background – Provided by Link 

22. Over the last two years, the coronavirus outbreak has done huge economic damage to 
the UK and to economies around the world. After the Bank of England took emergency 
action in March 2020 to cut Bank Rate to 0.10 per cent, it left Bank Rate unchanged at 
its subsequent meetings until raising it to 0.25 per cent at its meeting on 16 December 
2021 

. 
23. As shown in the forecast table above, the forecast for Bank Rate now includes four 

increases, one in December 2021 to 0.25 per cent, then quarter 2 of 2022 to 0.50 per 
cent, quarter 1 of 2023 to 0.75 per cent, quarter 1 of 2024 to 1.00 per cent and, finally, 
one in quarter 1 of 2025 to 1.25 per cent. 

Page 28

Agenda Item 7



 
 

Significant risks to the forecasts 
 

 Mutations of the virus render current vaccines ineffective, and tweaked vaccines to 
combat these mutations are delayed, or cannot be administered fast enough to 
prevent further lockdowns.  25 per cent of the population not being vaccinated is also a 
significant risk to the NHS being overwhelmed and lockdowns being the only 
remaining option. 

 

 Labour and supply shortages prove more enduring and disruptive and depress 
economic activity. 

 

 The Monetary Policy Committee acts too quickly, or too far, over the next three 
years to raise Bank Rate and causes UK economic growth, and increases in inflation, 
to be weaker than we currently anticipate.  

 

 The Monetary Policy Committee tightens monetary policy too late to ward off 
building inflationary pressures. 

 

 The Government acts too quickly to cut expenditure to balance the national budget. 
 

 UK / EU trade arrangements – if there was a major impact on trade flows and 
financial services due to complications or lack of co-operation in sorting out significant 
remaining issues.  

 
 Longer term US treasury yields rise strongly and pull gilt yields up higher than 

forecast. 
 
 Major stock markets e.g., in the US, become increasingly judged as being over-

valued and susceptible to major price corrections. Central banks become 
increasingly exposed to the “moral hazard” risks of having to buy shares and 
corporate bonds to reduce the impact of major financial market selloffs on the 
general economy. 

 

 Geopolitical risks, for example in Ukraine, Iran, North Korea, but also in Europe 
and Middle Eastern countries; on-going global power influence struggles between 
Russia/China/US. These could lead to increasing safe-haven flows.  

 
24. The overall balance of risks to economic growth in the UK is now to the downside, 

including risks from Covid and its variants - both domestically and their potential 
effects worldwide. 
 

Forecasts for Bank Rate 
 
25. It is not expected that Bank Rate will go up fast after the initial rate rise as the supply 

potential of the economy is not likely to have taken a major hit during the pandemic: it 
should, therefore, be able to cope well with meeting demand after supply shortages 
subside over the next year, without causing inflation to remain elevated in the medium-
term, or to inhibit inflation from falling back towards the MPC’s 2 per cent target after 
the spike up to around 5 per cent. The forecast includes four increases in Bank Rate 
over the three-year forecast period to March 2025, ending at 1.25 per cent. However, it 
is likely that these forecasts will need changing within a relatively short timeframe for 
the following reasons: - 

Page 29

Agenda Item 7



 
 

 

 We do not know how severe an impact Omicron could have on the economy and 
whether there will be another lockdown or similar and, if there is, whether there 
would be significant fiscal support from the Government for businesses and jobs. 

 

 There were already increasing grounds for viewing the economic recovery as 
running out of steam during the autumn and now into the winter. And then along 
came Omicron to pose a significant downside threat to economic activity.  This 
could lead into stagflation, or even into recession, which would then pose a 
dilemma for the MPC as to whether to focus on combating inflation or supporting 
economic growth through keeping interest rates low. 

 

 Will some current key supply shortages spill over into causing economic activity in 
some sectors to take a significant hit? 

 

 Rising gas and electricity prices in October and next April and increases in other 
prices caused by supply shortages and increases in taxation next April, are already 
going to deflate consumer spending power without the MPC having to take any 
action on Bank Rate to cool inflation.  

 

 On the other hand, consumers are sitting on over £160 billion of excess savings left 
over from the pandemic so when will they spend this sum, in part or in total? 

 

 It looks as if the economy coped well with the end of furlough on 30 September 
2021. It is estimated that there were around 1 million people who came off furlough 
then and there was not a huge spike up in unemployment. The other side of the 
coin is that vacancies have been hitting record levels so there is a continuing acute 
shortage of workers. This is a potential danger area if this shortage drives up wages 
which then feed through into producer prices and the prices of services i.e., a 
second-round effect that the MPC would have to act against if it looked like gaining 
significant momentum. 

 

 We also recognise there could be further nasty surprises on the Covid front beyond 
the Omicron mutation. 

 

 If the UK invokes article 16 of the Brexit deal over the dislocation in trading 
arrangements with Northern Ireland, this has the potential to end up in a no-deal 
Brexit. 
 

26. In summary, with the high level of uncertainty prevailing on several different fronts, we 
expect to have to revise our forecasts again - in line with whatever the new news is. 

 
27. It should also be borne in mind that Bank Rate being cut to 0.25 per cent and then to 

0.10 per cent, were emergency measures to deal with the Covid crisis hitting the UK in 
March 2020. At any time, the MPC could decide to simply take away such emergency 
cuts on no other grounds than they are no longer warranted, and as a step forward in 
the return to normalisation. In addition, any Bank Rate under 1 per cent is both highly 
unusual and highly supportive of economic growth.  
 
 
 
 

Page 30

Agenda Item 7



 
 

Treasury Limits for 2022/23 to 2024/25 
 
28. It is a statutory duty, under Section 3 of the Act and supporting regulations for the 

council to determine and keep under review how much it can afford to borrow. The 
amount so determined is called the “Affordable Borrowing Limit”. The Authorised Limit 
is the legislative limit specified in the Act. 

 
29. The council must have regard to the Prudential Code when setting the Authorised 

Limit, which essentially requires it to ensure that total capital expenditure remains 
within sustainable limits and that the impact upon its future council tax is ‘acceptable’.  
The Authorised Limit is set on a rolling basis, for the forthcoming financial year and 
two successive financial years. 

 
30. The following indicators set the parameters within which we manage the overall capital 

investment and treasury management functions. There are specific treasury activity 
limits, which aim to contain the activity of the treasury function in order to manage risk 
and reduce the impact of an adverse movement in interest rates. However, if these are 
set to be too restrictive, they will impair the opportunities to reduce costs/improve 
performance.  

 
31. The limits are set out in table 3 below.  Cabinet is asked to recommend council to 

approve the limits: 
 

Table 3: Prudential indicators           

    2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

    Approved Estimate Estimate Estimate 

    £m £m £m £m 

Debt       

Authorised limit for external debt       

Borrowing  30 30 30 30 

Other long-term liabilities  0 0 0 0 

   35 35 35 35 

Operational boundary for external debt       

Borrowing  25 25 25 25 

Other long-term liabilities  0 0 0 0 

   30 30 30 30 

Interest rate exposures       

Maximum fixed rate borrowing  100% 100% 100% 100% 

Maximum variable rate borrowing  100% 100% 100% 100% 
        

Investments       

Interest rate exposures       

Limits on fixed interest rates  100% 100% 100% 100% 

Limits on variable interest rates  50 100 100 100 
        

Principal sums invested > 364 days       

Upper limit for principal sums invested 
>364 days  70 65 55 45 

            

Page 31

Agenda Item 7



 
 

Current position 
 
32. The maturity structure of the council’s investments at 30 November 2021 was as 

follows: 
 

Table 4: maturity structure of investments: 

  Total £000's % holding   
        

Call                   506  0%   

Money market fund              14,140  8%   

Less than 6 months              58,000  31%   

6 months to 1 year              71,500  39%   

1 year +              20,000  11%   

CCLA - Property Fund                 6,468  4%   

Unit Trusts              13,627  7%   

Total investments            184,241  100%   

 
* The figure for total investments shown above excludes the £15 million 20-year loan to 
SOHA made in 2013/14 and the balance outstanding with Kaupthing Singer & 
Friedlander (KSF). 
 

Note: £184 million does not represent uncommitted resource the council has at its 
disposal. This amount includes council tax receipts held prior to forwarding to Oxfordshire 
County Council and the Police and Crime Commissioner for the Thames Valley, business 
rate receipts prior to payment to the government and committed capital and revenue 
balances. Details of the council’s uncommitted balances are provided in the annual budget 
and council tax setting report. 

 
33. The council holds as above, 89 per cent of its investments in the form of cash 

deposits, 81 per cent is invested for fixed terms with a fixed investment return and 8 
per cent in liquid accounts, with the remainder held in non-cash deposits. Typically, the 
council restricts lending activity to UK institutions and the highest rated counterparties. 

 
34. The council's considerations for investment will remain security, liquidity, and yield – in 

that order. Officers undertaking Treasury Management will work towards the optimum 
profile distribution. 

 

Investment performance for the year to 30 November 2021. 
 

35. The council’s budgeted investment return for 2021/22 is £1.847 million, and the actual 
interest received to date is shown as follows: 
 

  

Page 32

Agenda Item 7



 
 

Table 5: Investment interest earned by investment type   

    Interest Earned 

   Annual Actual  Annual Forecast 

Investment type  Budget to date Forecast Variation 

   £000's £000's £000's £000's 

        

Fixed term and call cash   548 185 625 77  

CCLA  288 138 217 (71) 

Unit Trusts  388 352 352 (36) 

Treasury Management 
Interest 1,224 675 1,194 (30) 

SOHA  623 312 623 0 

Total Interest   1,847 987 1,817 (30) 

   
Borrowing Strategy 2022/23 
 
36. The annual treasury management strategy has to set out details of the council’s 

borrowing requirement, any maturing debt which will need to be re-financed, and the 
effect this will have on the treasury position over the next three years. This council 
currently has no external debt and in general, the council will borrow for one of two 
purposes; 

 

 to support cash flow in the short-term; 

 to fund capital investment over the medium to long term. 
 
37. Any borrowing undertaken will be within the scope of the boundaries given in the 

prudential indicators shown in Table 2, which allow for the council to borrow up to a 
maximum of £30 million, if such a need arose. This also allows short-term borrowing 
for the cash flow management activities of the authority. 
 

38. The council’s current capital programme will primarily be financed from internal 
resources with a £5 million debt financing requirement anticipated in 2022/23 and a 
further need to borrow £10 million to finance capital expenditure in 2022/24. If 
borrowing is undertaken, then the council will be required by statute to set aside funds 
in the annual revenue budget to amortise the principal element of any borrowing – this 
is the MRP. There will also be a requirement to set aside revenue budget for the 
interest payments on any borrowing raised. Loans will generally be taken over the life 
of the assets being financed and amortised accordingly. 
 

39. Any borrowing for capital financing purposes will be assessed by the Head of Finance 
to be prudent, sustainable and affordable 

 
40. This strategy allows the Head of Finance to determine the most suitable repayment 

terms of any borrowing to demonstrate affordability and sustainability in the medium-
term financial plan if required. As a general rule, the term of any borrowing will not be 
longer than the expected life of the capital asset being created. 

 
Policy on borrowing in advance of need 
 

41. The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs purely in order to 
profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow in 
advance will be within forward approved Capital Financing Requirement estimates and 

Page 33

Agenda Item 7



 
 

will be considered carefully to ensure that value for money can be demonstrated and 
that the Council can ensure the security of such funds.  

 

42. Risks associated with any borrowing in advance activity will be subject to prior 
appraisal and subsequent reporting through the mid-year or annual reporting 
mechanism.  

 
Annual investment strategy 2022/23 
 
43. The Department of Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC – this was 

formerly the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG)) and 
CIPFA have extended their definition of ‘investments’ to include both financial and 
non-financial investments.  This report deals solely with financial investments, (as 
managed by the treasury management team).  Non-financial investments, essentially 
the purchase of income yielding assets, are covered in the Capital Strategy, (a 
separate report). 

 

44. The Council’s investment policy has regard to the following: - 
 

 DLUHC’s Guidance on Local Government Investments (“the Guidance”) 

 CIPFA Treasury Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross 
Sectoral Guidance Notes 2017 (“the Code”)  

 CIPFA Treasury Management Guidance Notes 2018   
 
45. The Council’s investment priorities will be security first, portfolio liquidity second and 

then yield, (return). 
 

46. The primary aim of the council’s investment strategy is to maintain the security and 
liquidity of its investments; yield or return on the investment will be a secondary 
consideration, subject to prudent security and liquidity. The council will ensure: 

 

 It has sufficient liquidity in its investments to cover cash flow. For this purpose, it 
has set out parameters for determining the maximum periods for which funds may 
prudently be committed. 

 

 It maintains a policy covering the categories of investment types it will invest in, 
criteria for choosing investment counterparties with adequate security, and 
monitoring their security. 

 
47. The strategy aims to provide a high degree of flexibility to take appropriate lending 

decisions, with a view to producing a portfolio with an even spread of maturity periods. 
This aim is to provide a more even and predictable investment return in the medium 
term. 

 
48. The council’s Head of Finance will ensure a counterparty list (a list of named 

institutions) is maintained in compliance with the recommended credit rating criteria 
(table 6) and will revise the criteria and submit any changes to the credit rating criteria 
to council for approval as necessary. 

 
 

Page 34

Agenda Item 7



 
 

 
Investment types 
 
49. The types of investment that the council can use are summarised below. These are 

split under the headings of ‘specified’ and ‘non-specified’ in accordance with the 
statutory guidance. 

 
Specified investment instruments 
 
50. These are high credit quality, sterling investments of not more than one-year maturity, 

or those where the council has the right to be repaid within 12 months if it wishes. 
These would include sterling investments with: 

 

 UK government Debt Management Agency Deposit Facility (DMADF) 

 UK government – treasury bills and Gilts with less than one year to maturity 

 Deposits with UK local authorities 

 Pooled investment vehicles (AAA rated) 

 Deposits with banks and building societies (minimum F1/A- rated) 
 
Non-specified investment instruments 
 
51. These are any other type of investment (i.e. investments not defined as specified, 

above). Examples of non-specified investments include any sterling investments with: 
 

 Supranational bonds of 1 to 10 years to maturity 

 UK treasury stock (Gilts) with a maturity of 1 to 10 years 

 Unrated building societies (minimum asset value £1 billion) 

 Bank and building society cash deposits up to 5 years (minimum F1/A- rated) 

 Deposits with UK local authorities up to 5 years to maturity 

 Corporate bonds, Sovereign bonds, and covered bonds 

 Pooled property, pooled bond funds and UK pooled equity funds 

 Diversified Income Funds 

 Multi-Asset Funds 

 Ultra-Dated/Short dated bond Funds 

 Non-UCITS Retail Schemes (NURS) 
 

Approach to investing 
 
52. The council holds approximately £70 million core cash balances which are available to 

invest for more than one year. This is expected to reduce over the medium term as the 
approved capital expenditure is incurred and to fund the revenue budget shortfall. 

 
53. In addition, the council has funds that are available to deposit on a temporary basis. 

These sums are held pending payment over to another body, for example precept 
payments and council tax. As the balances fluctuate on a daily basis, instant access 
and notice accounts, money market funds and short-dated deposits are normally 
utilised for these funds, to ensure funds are available to meet cash flow commitments. 

 
54. Investments will be made with reference to the core balance and cash flow 

requirements and the outlook for short-term interest rates. Greater returns are usually 
obtainable by investing for longer periods.  While most cash balances are required to 

Page 35

Agenda Item 7



 
 

manage cash flow, where funds can be invested for longer periods, options will be 
carefully assessed. 

 
55. If it is anticipated that Bank Rate is likely to rise significantly consideration will be given 

to keeping new deposits short term or variable.  Conversely, if it is thought that Bank 
Rate is likely to fall within an investment time horizon, consideration will be given to 
locking in higher rates currently obtainable, for longer periods. 

 
56. Officers will continue to provide tight controls on the investments placed.  Where 

possible, opportunities to spread the investment risk over different types of instruments 
will be considered. 

 
57. Should market conditions deteriorate suddenly to the extent that the council is unable 

to place money with institutions with the necessary credit rating, it may make use of 
the UK Government deposit account (DMADF). 

 
58. The council has the authority to lend to other local authorities at market rates. Whilst 

investments with other local authorities are considered to be supported by central 
government, officers will consider the financial viability and sustainability of the 
individual local authority before including it on the councils list of approved 
counterparties. 

 
59. In 2013/14 the council invested £5 million in the Churches Charities and Local 

Authorities pooled property investment fund (CCLA). Further investment in property 
funds will be considered during 2022/23. 

 
60. During 2021 the council commissioned a review and health check of its treasury 

management activities.  The assessment, which was undertaken by Link Treasury 
Services, considered the market conditions in which the council was operating, 
compared activity with other local authorities and considered the council’s financial 
position and forecasts. 

 
61. Following an evaluation of investment options available to the council, the council’s 

advisors presented and discussed with officers their recommendations for continued 
effective and efficient management of the investment portfolio. 

 
62. The independent assessment concluded that ‘council officers had successfully 

invested on an active basis through the storm of the pandemic that swept through 
markets during 2020…The council’s return steadily declined through the period under 
review, but it did manage to outperform other Local Authorities.  This was driven by the 
councils’ approach to laddering investments through a longer-term time horizon.  
However, as seen across the Local Authority investment landscape, a combination of 
maturing higher-yielding positions, increasingly low reinvestment rates and dwindling 
counterparty opportunities saw a sustainable decline in yields.’ 

 
63. Link Treasury Services advised that ‘the balance sheet position of the Council would 

suggest that it may have further flexibility to invest in longer-focussed investment 
options to underpin performance over the medium term’.  Following a review of the 
recommendations, it was considered that the use of Ultra Short Dated Bond Funds 
and longer dated bond funds could offer benefits for the council’s cash investment 
portfolio. 

 

Page 36

Agenda Item 7



 
 

64. Ultra Short Dated / Short Dated Bond Funds (USDBF / SDBFs) are fixed income funds 
with varying minimum suggested time horizons, ranging from a few weeks to over 12 
months.  They use a range of different asset classes for underlying investments and 
offer opportunities for diversification that the council would not be able to achieve itself. 

 
65. USDBF/SDBF have a variable net asset value (VNAV). This means the assets are 

‘marked to market’ (re-valued to current market value) on a daily basis and the fund 
unit price adjusted accordingly. Under this calculation basis the unit price fluctuates 
and could, therefore, be higher or lower than the original investment when it is 
redeemed.  

 
66. The nature of USDBF/SDBFs vary, fund sizes range from around £50 million to 

several billion pounds.  They are provided by a wide range of managers and utilise a 
range of different investment asset classes.  Consequently, the nature and volatility of 
potential returns vary widely.  In order to ensure that funds selected are appropriate for 
the council’s investment portfolio and the nature and risks of funds are fully 
understood, the council will engage Link Treasury Services to support a fund selection 
exercise.  

 
Counterparty selection 

 
67. Treasury management risk is the risk of loss of capital to the council. To minimise this 

risk, the council uses credit rating information when considering who to lend to. Link 
Asset Services provide the council with credit rating updates from all three ratings 
agencies – Standard & Poors, Fitch and Moodys. 

 
68. The council will not use the approach suggested by CIPFA of using the lowest rating 

from all three rating agencies in evaluating investment opportunity. This is because 
adopting this approach could leave the council with too few counterparties for the 
strategy to be workable. Instead, whilst the council will have regard to the ratings 
provided by all three rating agencies, Fitch ratings will be used as the basis for setting 
minimum credit criteria and deriving counterparty investment limits. 

 
69. Where counterparties fail to meet the minimum required criteria (Table 6 below) they 

will be omitted from the counterparty list. Any rating changes and rating watches 
(notification of a rating change under consideration) are provided to officers almost 
immediately after they occur, and this information is considered before any deal is 
entered into. Extreme market movements may result in a downgrade of an institution 
or removal from the council’s lending list. 

 
70. Additional requirements under the CIPFA Treasury Management Code require the 

council to supplement the credit rating data with operational market information such 
as credit default swaps (CDS), negative watches and outlooks, which are considered 
when assessing the security of counterparties. This additional information is used so 
that the council does not rely solely on the current credit ratings of counterparties. 

 
71. Where it is felt the council would benefit from utilising government guarantees 

provided by countries with an AAA rating, the council may lend to institutions covered 
by such guarantees. Any decision to lend in this way will be subject to consultation 
with the agreement of the cabinet member responsible for finance. 

 
 

Page 37

Agenda Item 7



 
 

Country and sector considerations 
 
72. The council has determined that it will only use approved counterparties outside the 

UK from countries with a minimum sovereign credit rating of AA- from Fitch Ratings. 
This change from the previous AAA rating is in line with the current Fitch Sovereign 
rating for the UK.  This is to enable deposits to be placed with foreign financial 
institutions with higher, or equivalent credit ratings to UK banks on the approved 
counterparty list. 

 
Counterparty limits 
 
73. In the normal course of the council’s cash flow operations, it is expected that both 

specified and non-specified investments will be used for the control of liquidity.  
Guidance states that specified investments are those requiring “minimal procedural 
formalities”. The placing of cash on deposit with banks and building societies ‘awarded 
high credit ratings by a credit rating agency’, the use of Money Market Funds (MMFs) 
and investments with the UK Government and local authorities qualify as falling under 
this category and form a normal part of day-to-day treasury management activity.  

 
74. All specified investments will be sterling denominated, with maturities up to a 

maximum of one year, meeting the ‘high’ credit rating criteria where applicable. 
 
75. Non-specified investment products are those which take on greater risk. They are 

subject to greater scrutiny and include all longer term instruments (greater than one 
year from inception to repayment). The council will lend to institutions that meet the 
criteria outlined in table 6 below: 

 
76. The counterparty limits apply at the time investments are arranged. Where the council 

has deposits on instant access, this limit may temporarily be exceeded by the accrual 
and application of interest or dividends into accounts such as call accounts, money 
market funds, or notice accounts.  Where the application of interest causes the 
balance with a counterparty to exceed the agreed limits, the balance will be reduced 
when appropriate, dependent upon the terms and conditions of the account and the 
cashflow position. 

 
77. The counterparty limits apply to the net cash value of units purchased and sold at the 

time of investment, or disinvestment, in pooled and managed funds.  The limits will not 
apply to the value of accumulated or reinvested investment returns. 

 

Page 38

Agenda Item 7



 
 

 

Table 6: Counterparty Limits

Individual

Counterparty

Limit

Specified Instruments

Term Deposits - UK Government

UK Debt Management Agency Deposit Facility

UK Government Treasury Bills

UK Government Gilts

Term Deposits - Other UK Local Authorities N/A N/A £20m

Term Deposits - Banks and Building Societies F1 A- £15m

Covered Bonds N/A A+ £5m

Money Market Funds (CNAV) £30m Liquid

Ultra Short Dated Bond Funds £20m Liquid

Non-Specified Instruments

Term Deposits 1yr + - UK Government N/A N/A N/A 5 years 100%

Term Deposits 1yr + - Other UK Local Authorities N/A N/A £20m 5 years 100%

Banks - part nationalised UK N/A N/A £20m 4 years 100%

Institutions with a minimum rating:    F1+ AA- £15m 4 years 70%

Institutions with a minimum rating:   F1+ A+ £15m 3 years 70%

Institutions with a minimum rating:  F1 A £15m 2 years 70%

Institutions with a minimum rating:  F1 A- £15m 1 year 70%

Building Societies F2 BBB+ £15m 1 year 70%

Building societies assets >£5bn N/A N/A £13m 1 year 70%

Building societies assets >£3bn N/A N/A £11m 1 year 60%

Building societies assets >£1bn N/A N/A £9m 1 year 50%

Banks - house bank N/A N/A £5m 3 months 20%

Managed Funds

Money Market funds (LVNAV & VNAV) £20m Liquid 70%

Unit Trusts £20m Variable 20%

Pooled Bond Funds £15m Variable 15%

Pooled property funds £10m Variable 15%

Non-UCITS Retail Scheme (NURS) £5m Variable 50%

Diversified Income Funds £10m Variable 15%

Multi - Asset Funds £10m Variable 15%

Equity Funds £10m Variable 20%

Tradable Instruments

UK Government Gilts with maturities over 1yr UK sovereign £15m 15 years 10%

Supranationals AAA £10m 15 years 20%

Corporate Bonds AA- £5m 5 years 10%

Covered Bonds maturities over 1yr AA- £5m 5 years 10%

Bonds issued by Multilateral Development banks AA- £5m 5 years 10%

Sovereign Bond Issues AA- £5m 5 years 10%

Use of these instruments can be 

deemed capital expenditure.  The 

council will seek guidance on the 

status of any fund it may consider 

using.  Appropriate due diligence 

will also be undertaken before 

investment of this type is 

undertaken.

Fund Rating AAA

Maximum 

maturity 

period

Maximum % 

of total 

investments

N/A

1
 y

e
a
r

1
0
0
%

Fund Rating AAA

Minimum Fitch 

Short term Rating 

( or equivalent)

Minimum Fitch 

Long term Rating ( 

or equivalent)

Page 39

Agenda Item 7



 
 

78. The criteria for choosing counterparties provides a sound approach to investment. 
Whilst councillors are asked to approve the criteria in table 6, under exceptional 
market conditions the Head of Finance may temporarily restrict further investment 
activity to those counterparties considered of higher credit quality than the minimum 
criteria set out for approval. 

 
79. On 31 March 2020 the Head of Finance waived financial procedure rule 53 and 

allowed the councils to over-ride their counter party limits for money market funds.  
This was to allow the councils to deal with the receipt of unprecedented levels of 
government grant funding to fund the business grant schemes administered by the 
councils on behalf of the government. 

 
80. Delegation 2.7 of the council constitutions allows the Head of Finance, in consultation 

with the cabinet member for finance, to raise counterparty limits by £3,000,000 within a 
financial year.   

 
81. Due to the increase in cash flow peak levels the increased limits have been required 

throughout 2020/21 and 2021/22 and as it is anticipated that they will continue to be 
required during 2022/23, the increases have been incorporated in to the counterparty 
table and are regarded as permanent. 

 
Fund managers 
 
82. The council does not currently employ any discretionary external fund managers. 

However, in the event of such an appointment, appointees will comply with this and 
subsequent treasury strategies. This strategy empowers the Section 151 officer to 
appoint such an external manager to manage a proportion of the council’s investment 
portfolio if this is advantageous. 

 
Risk and Performance Benchmarks 
 
83. A requirement of the Code is that security and liquidity benchmarks are considered 

and approved. This is in addition to yield benchmarks which are used to assess 
performance. The benchmarks are guidelines (not limits) so may be breached 
depending on the movement in interest rates and counterparty criteria. Their purpose 
is to allow officers to monitor the current trend position and amend the operational 
strategy depending on any changes. Any breach of the benchmarks will be reported, 
with an explanation in the mid-year or annual report to audit and governance 
committee. Detailed information for the assessment of risk is shown in appendix C. 

 

84. Performance indicators are set to assess the adequacy of the treasury function over 
the year. These are distinct historic performance indicators, as opposed to the 
predominantly forward-looking prudential indicators. The indicators used to assess the 
performance of the treasury function are: 
 

 Cash investments – 3-month compounded SONIA rate. 

 Property related investments – IPD Balance Property Unit Trust Index. 
 
85. The results of these indicators will be reported in both the annual mid-year and year-

end treasury reports. 
 

 

Page 40

Agenda Item 7



 
 

Policy on the use of treasury management advisors 
 
86. The council has a joint contract with Vale of White Horse District Council for treasury 

management advice, which is currently supplied by Link Asset Services.  A range of 
services are provided and include: 

 

 technical support on treasury matters, capital finance issues, statutory reports; 

 economic forecasts and interest rate analysis; 

 credit ratings / market information service involving the three-main credit rating 
agencies; 

 strategic advice including a review of the investment and borrowing strategies 
 and policy documents; 

 treasury management training. 
 
87. The council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions always 

remains with the organisation and will ensure that undue reliance is not placed upon 
external service providers. It also recognises that there is value in employing external 
providers of treasury management services in order to acquire access to specialist 
skills, resources and up to date market information. 

 
Treasury management scheme of delegation and the role of the Section 151 officer 
 
88. Council 

 

 receiving and reviewing reports on treasury management policies, practices and 
activities; 

 approval of annual strategy. 
 
89. Joint Audit and Governance Committee/ Cabinet  

 approval of/amendments to the organisation’s adopted clauses, treasury 
management policy statement and treasury management practices; 

 receiving and reviewing regular monitoring reports and acting on 
recommendations; 

 Ensuring effective scrutiny of the treasury management function 

 
90. Section 151 Officer/Head of Finance  

 

 recommending clauses, treasury management policy/practices for approval, 
reviewing the same regularly, and monitoring compliance; 

 submitting regular treasury management policy reports; 

 submitting budgets and budget variations; 

 reviewing the performance of the treasury management function; 

 ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and the 
effective division of responsibilities within the treasury management function; 

 ensuring the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with external audit; 

 Approving the selection of external service providers and agreeing terms of 
appointment.  

 

Page 41

Agenda Item 7



 
 

91. The above list of specific responsibilities of the S151 officer in the 2017 Treasury 
Management Code has not changed.  However, implicit in the changes in both codes, 
is a major extension of the functions of this role, especially in respect of non-financial 
investments, (which CIPFA has defined as being part of treasury management), (See 
Appendix G). 

 
Summary 

 

92. Prior to the beginning of each financial year the council must approve the treasury 
management strategy. The strategy sets the parameters within which officers can 
manage the council’s cash flows and invest any surplus fund. 

 

93. This strategy provides a commentary on the current financial climate and sets out the 
council’s lending strategy in response to this. 

  

Page 42

Agenda Item 7



 
 

Appendix B  

ECONOMIC BACKGROUND – Provided by Link Treasury Services 

COVID-19 vaccines.  

These were the game changer during 2021 which raised high hopes that life in the UK 
would be able to largely return to normal in the second half of the year. However, the 
bursting onto the scene of the Omicron mutation at the end of November, rendered the 
initial two doses of all vaccines largely ineffective in preventing infection. This has dashed 
such hopes and raises the spectre again that a fourth wave of the virus could overwhelm 
hospitals in early 2022. What we now know is that this mutation is very fast spreading with 
the potential for total case numbers to double every two to three days, although it possibly 
may not cause so much severe illness as previous mutations.  

Rather than go for full lockdowns which heavily damage the economy, the government 
strategy this time is focusing on getting as many people as possible to have a third 
(booster) vaccination after three months from the previous last injection, as a booster has 
been shown to restore a high percentage of immunity to Omicron to those who have had 
two vaccinations. There is now a race on between how quickly boosters can be given to 
limit the spread of Omicron, and how quickly will hospitals fill up and potentially be unable 
to cope. In the meantime, workers have been requested to work from home and 
restrictions have been placed on large indoor gatherings and hospitality venues. 

With the household saving rate having been exceptionally high since the first lockdown in 
March 2020, there is plenty of pent-up demand and purchasing power stored up for 
services in sectors like restaurants, travel, tourism and hotels which had been hit hard 
during 2021, but could now be hit hard again by either, or both, of government restrictions 
and/or consumer reluctance to leave home. 

Growth will also be lower due to people being ill and not working, similar to the pingdemic 
in July. The economy, therefore, faces significant headwinds although some sectors have 
learned how to cope well with Covid. However, the biggest impact on growth would come 
from another lockdown if that happened. 

The big question still remains as to whether any further mutations of this virus could 
develop which render all current vaccines ineffective, as opposed to how quickly vaccines 
can be modified to deal with them and enhanced testing programmes be implemented to 
contain their spread until tweaked vaccines become widely available. 

 
A SUMMARY OVERVIEW OF THE FUTURE PATH OF BANK RATE 

 In December, the Bank of England became the first major western central bank to put 
interest rates up in this upswing in the current business cycle in western economies as 
recovery progresses from the Covid recession of 2020. 

 The next increase in Bank Rate could be in February or May, dependent on how 
severe an impact there is from Omicron. 

 If there are lockdowns in January, this could pose a barrier for the MPC to putting 
Bank Rate up again as early as 3rd February. 

 With inflation expected to peak at around 6% in April, the MPC may want to be seen to 
be active in taking action to counter inflation on 5th May, the release date for its 
Quarterly Monetary Policy Report. 

 The December 2021 MPC meeting was more concerned with combating inflation over 
the medium term than supporting economic growth in the short term. 

 Bank Rate increases beyond May are difficult to forecast as inflation is likely to drop 
sharply in the second half of 2022. 

Page 43

Agenda Item 7



 
 

 However, the MPC will want to normalise Bank Rate over the next three years so that 
it has its main monetary policy tool ready to use in time for the next down-turn; all rates 
under 2% are providing stimulus to economic growth. 

 We have put year end 0.25% increases into Q1 of each financial year from 2023 to 
recognise this upward bias in Bank Rate - but the actual timing in each year is difficult 
to predict. 

 Covid remains a major potential downside threat in all three years as we ARE likely to 
get further mutations. 

 How quickly can science come up with a mutation proof vaccine, or other treatment, – 
and for them to be widely administered around the world? 

 Purchases of gilts under QE ended in December.  Note that when Bank Rate reaches 
0.50%, the MPC has said it will start running down its stock of QE.   

 
MPC MEETING 16H DECEMBER 2021 
 The Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) voted 8-1 to raise Bank Rate by 0.15% from 

0.10% to 0.25% and unanimously decided to make no changes to its programme of 
quantitative easing purchases due to finish in December 2021 at a total of £895bn. 

 
 The MPC disappointed financial markets by not raising Bank Rate at its November 

meeting. Until Omicron burst on the scene, most forecasters, therefore, viewed a Bank 
Rate increase as being near certain at this December meeting due to the way that 
inflationary pressures have been comprehensively building in both producer and 
consumer prices, and in wage rates. However, at the November meeting, the MPC 
decided it wanted to have assurance that the labour market would get over the end of 
the furlough scheme on 30th September without unemployment increasing sharply; 
their decision was, therefore, to wait until statistics were available to show how the 
economy had fared at this time.   

 
 On 10th December we learnt of the disappointing 0.1% m/m rise in GDP in 

October which suggested that economic growth had already slowed to a crawl even 
before the Omicron variant was discovered in late November. Early evidence suggests 
growth in November might have been marginally better. Nonetheless, at such low 
rates of growth, the government’s “Plan B” COVID-19 restrictions could cause the 
economy to contract in December. 

 
 On 14th December, the labour market statistics for the three months to October and 

the single month of October were released.  The fallout after the furlough scheme was 
smaller and shorter than the Bank of England had feared. The single-month data were 
more informative and showed that LFS employment fell by 240,000, unemployment 
increased by 75,000 and the unemployment rate rose from 3.9% in September to 
4.2%. However, the weekly data suggested this didn’t last long as unemployment was 
falling again by the end of October. What’s more, the 49,700 fall in the claimant count 
and the 257,000 rise in the PAYE measure of company payrolls suggests that the 
labour market strengthened again in November.  The other side of the coin was a 
further rise in the number of vacancies from 1.182m to a record 1.219m in the three 
months to November which suggests that the supply of labour is struggling to keep up 
with demand, although the single-month figure for November fell for the first time since 
February, from 1.307m to 1.227m. 

 
 These figures by themselves, would probably have been enough to give the MPC the 

assurance that it could press ahead to raise Bank Rate at this December meeting.  
However, the advent of Omicron potentially threw a spanner into the works as it poses 

Page 44

Agenda Item 7



 
 

a major headwind to the economy which, of itself, will help to cool the economy.  The 
financial markets, therefore, swung round to expecting no change in Bank Rate.  

 
 On 15th December we had the CPI inflation figure for November which spiked up 

further from 4.2% to 5.1%, confirming again how inflationary pressures have been 
building sharply. However, Omicron also caused a sharp fall in world oil and other 
commodity prices; (gas and electricity inflation has generally accounted on average for 
about 60% of the increase in inflation in advanced western economies).  

 
 Other elements of inflation are also transitory e.g., prices of goods being forced up 

by supply shortages, and shortages of shipping containers due to ports being clogged 
have caused huge increases in shipping costs.  But these issues are likely to clear 
during 2022, and then prices will subside back to more normal levels.  Gas prices and 
electricity prices will also fall back once winter is passed and demand for these falls 
away.  

 
 Although it is possible that the Government could step in with some fiscal support for 

the economy, the huge cost of such support to date is likely to pose a barrier to 
incurring further major economy wide expenditure unless it is very limited and targeted 
on narrow sectors like hospitality, (as announced just before Christmas). The 
Government may well, therefore, effectively leave it to the MPC, and to monetary 
policy, to support economic growth – but at a time when the threat posed by rising 
inflation is near to peaking! 

 
 This is the adverse set of factors against which the MPC had to decide on Bank Rate. 

For the second month in a row, the MPC blind-sided financial markets, this time with a 
surprise increase in Bank Rate from 0.10% to 0.25%.  What’s more, the hawkish 
tone of comments indicated that the MPC is now concerned that inflationary pressures 
are indeed building and need concerted action by the MPC to counter. This indicates 
that there will be more increases to come with financial markets predicting 1% by the 
end of 2022. The 8-1 vote to raise the rate shows that there is firm agreement that 
inflation now poses a threat, especially after the CPI figure hit a 10-year high this 
week. The MPC commented that “there has been significant upside news” and that 
“there were some signs of greater persistence in domestic costs and price pressures”.  

 
 On the other hand, it did also comment that “the Omicron variant is likely to weigh 

on near-term activity”. But it stressed that at the November meeting it had said it 
would raise rates if the economy evolved as it expected and that now “these conditions 
had been met”.  It also appeared more worried about the possible boost to inflation 
form Omicron itself. It said that “the current position of the global and UK economies 
was materially different compared with prior to the onset of the pandemic, including 
elevated levels of consumer price inflation”. It also noted the possibility that renewed 
social distancing would boost demand for goods again, (as demand for services would 
fall), meaning “global price pressures might persist for longer”. (Recent news is that 
the largest port in the world in China has come down with an Omicron outbreak which 
is not only affecting the port but also factories in the region.) 

 
 On top of that, there were no references this month to inflation being expected to be 

below the 2% target in two years’ time, which at November’s meeting the MPC 
referenced to suggest the markets had gone too far in expecting interest rates to rise 
to over 1.00% by the end of the year.  

 

Page 45

Agenda Item 7



 
 

 These comments indicate that there has been a material reappraisal by the MPC of 
the inflationary pressures since their last meeting and the Bank also increased its 
forecast for inflation to peak at 6% next April, rather than at 5% as of a month ago. 
However, as the Bank retained its guidance that only a “modest tightening” in policy 
will be required, it cannot be thinking that it will need to increase interest rates that 
much more. A typical policy tightening cycle has usually involved rates rising by 0.25% 
four times in a year. “Modest” seems slower than that. As such, the Bank could be 
thinking about raising interest rates two or three times next year to 0.75% or 1.00%. 

 
 In as much as a considerable part of the inflationary pressures at the current time are 

indeed transitory, and will naturally subside, and since economic growth is likely to be 
weak over the next few months, this would appear to indicate that this tightening cycle 
is likely to be comparatively short.  

 
 As for the timing of the next increase in Bank Rate, the MPC dropped the comment 

from November’s statement that Bank Rate would be raised “in the coming months”. 
That may imply another rise is unlikely at the next meeting in February and that May is 
more likely.  However, much could depend on how adversely, or not, the economy is 
affected by Omicron in the run up to the next meeting on 3rd February.  Once 0.50% is 
reached, the Bank would act to start shrinking its stock of QE, (gilts purchased by the 
Bank would not be replaced when they mature). 

 
 The MPC’s forward guidance on its intended monetary policy on raising Bank 

Rate versus selling (quantitative easing) holdings of bonds is as follows: - 
o Raising Bank Rate as “the active instrument in most circumstances”. 
o Raising Bank Rate to 0.50% before starting on reducing its holdings. 
o Once Bank Rate is at 0.50% it would stop reinvesting maturing gilts. 
o Once Bank Rate had risen to at least 1%, it would start selling its holdings. 

 
 US.  Shortages of goods and intermediate goods like semi-conductors, have been 

fuelling increases in prices and reducing economic growth potential. In November, CPI 
inflation hit a near 40-year record level of 6.8% but with energy prices then falling 
sharply, this is probably the peak. The biggest problem for the Fed is the mounting 
evidence of a strong pick-up in cyclical price pressures e.g., in rent which has hit a 
decades high. 

  
 Shortages of labour have also been driving up wage rates sharply; this also poses a 

considerable threat to feeding back into producer prices and then into consumer prices 
inflation. It now also appears that there has been a sustained drop in the labour force 
which suggests the pandemic has had a longer-term scarring effect in reducing 
potential GDP. Economic growth may therefore be reduced to between 2 and 3% in 
2022 and 2023 while core inflation is likely to remain elevated at around 3% in both 
years instead of declining back to the Fed’s 2% central target. 

 
 Inflation hitting 6.8% and the feed through into second round effects, meant that it was 

near certain that the Fed’s meeting of 15th December would take aggressive action 
against inflation. Accordingly, the rate of tapering of monthly $120bn QE purchases 
announced at its November 3rd meeting. was doubled so that all purchases would now 
finish in February 2022.  In addition, Fed officials had started discussions on running 
down the stock of QE held by the Fed. Fed officials also expected three rate rises in 
2022 of 0.25% from near zero currently, followed by three in 2023 and two in 2024, 
taking rates back above 2% to a neutral level for monetary policy.  

Page 46

Agenda Item 7



 
 

 
 The first increase could come as soon as March 2022 as the chairman of the Fed 

stated his view that the economy had made rapid progress to achieving the other goal 
of the Fed – “maximum employment”. The Fed forecast that inflation would fall from an 
average of 5.3% in 2021 to 2.6% in 2023, still above its target of 2% and both figures 
significantly up from previous forecasts. What was also significant was that this month 
the Fed dropped its description of the current level of inflation as being “transitory” and 
instead referred to “elevated levels” of inflation: the statement also dropped most of 
the language around the flexible average inflation target, with inflation now described 
as having exceeded 2 percent “for some time”. It did not see Omicron as being a major 
impediment to the need to take action now to curtail the level of inflationary pressures 
that have built up, although Fed officials did note that it has the potential to exacerbate 
supply chain problems and add to price pressures. 

 
See also comments in paragraph 3.3 under PWLB rates and gilt yields. 

 
 EU. The slow role out of vaccines initially delayed economic recovery in early 2021 

but the vaccination rate then picked up sharply.  After a contraction of -0.3% in Q1, Q2 
came in with strong growth of 2%. With Q3 at 2.2%, the EU recovery was then within 
0.5% of its pre Covid size. However, the arrival of Omicron is now a major headwind to 
growth in quarter 4 and the expected downturn into weak growth could well turn 
negative, with the outlook for the first two months of 2022 expected to continue to be 
very weak.  

   
 November’s inflation figures breakdown shows that the increase in price pressures is 

not just due to high energy costs and global demand-supply imbalances for durable 
goods as services inflation also rose. Headline inflation reached 4.9% in November, 
with over half of that due to energy. However, oil and gas prices are expected to fall 
after the winter and so energy inflation is expected to plummet in 2022.  

 
 Core goods inflation rose to 2.4% in November, its second highest ever level, and is 

likely to remain high for some time as it will take a long time for the inflationary impact 
of global imbalances in the demand and supply of durable goods to disappear. Price 
pressures also increased in the services sector, but wage growth remains subdued 
and there are no signs of a trend of faster wage growth which might lead 
to persistently higher services inflation - which would get the ECB concerned. The 
upshot is that the euro-zone is set for a prolonged period of inflation being above the 
ECB’s target of 2% and it is likely to average 3% in 2022, in line with the ECB’s latest 
projection. 

 
 ECB tapering. The ECB has joined with the Fed by also announcing at its meeting on 

16th December that it will be reducing its QE purchases - by half from October 2022, 
i.e., it will still be providing significant stimulus via QE purchases for over half of next 
year.  However, as inflation will fall back sharply during 2022, it is likely that it will leave 
its central rate below zero, (currently -0.50%), over the next two years. The main 
struggle that the ECB has had in recent years is that inflation has been doggedly 
anaemic in sticking below the ECB’s target rate despite all its major programmes of 
monetary easing by cutting rates into negative territory and providing QE support.  

 
 The ECB will now also need to consider the impact of Omicron on the economy, and 

it stated at its December meeting that it is prepared to provide further QE support if the 
pandemic causes bond yield spreads of peripheral countries, (compared to the yields 

Page 47

Agenda Item 7



 
 

of northern EU countries), to rise. However, that is the only reason it will support 
peripheral yields, so this support is limited in its scope. 

 

 The EU has entered into a period of political uncertainty where a new German 
government formed of a coalition of three parties with Olaf Scholz replacing Angela 
Merkel as Chancellor in December 2021, will need to find its feet both within the EU 
and in the three parties successfully working together.  

 

 In France there is a presidential election coming up in April 2022 followed by the 
legislative election in June. In addition, Italy needs to elect a new president in January 
with Prime Minister Draghi being a favourite due to having suitable gravitas for this 
post.  However, if he switched office, there is a significant risk that the current 
government coalition could collapse. That could then cause differentials between 
Italian and German bonds to widen when 2022 will also see a gradual running down of 
ECB support for the bonds of weaker countries within the EU. These political 
uncertainties could have repercussions on economies and on Brexit issues. 

 

 CHINA.  After a concerted effort to get on top of the virus outbreak in Q1 2020, 
economic recovery was strong in the rest of 2020; this enabled China to recover all the 
initial contraction. During 2020, policy makers both quashed the virus and 
implemented a programme of monetary and fiscal support that was particularly 
effective at stimulating short-term growth. At the same time, China’s economy 
benefited from the shift towards online spending by consumers in developed markets. 
These factors helped to explain its comparative outperformance compared to western 
economies during 2020 and earlier in 2021. 

 

 However, the pace of economic growth has now fallen back in 2021 after this initial 
surge of recovery from the pandemic and looks likely to be particularly weak in 2022. 
China has been struggling to contain the spread of the Delta variant through using 
sharp local lockdowns - which depress economic growth. Chinese consumers are also 
being very wary about leaving home and so spending money on services. However, 
with Omicron having now spread to China, and being much more easily transmissible, 
this strategy of sharp local lockdowns to stop the virus may not prove so successful in 
future. In addition, the current pace of providing boosters at 100 billion per month will 
leave much of the 1.4 billion population exposed to Omicron, and any further 
mutations, for a considerable time.  

 

 The People’s Bank of China made a start in December 2021 on cutting its key 
interest rate marginally so as to stimulate economic growth. However, after credit has 
already expanded by around 25% in just the last two years, it will probably leave the 
heavy lifting in supporting growth to fiscal stimulus by central and local government. 

 

 Supply shortages, especially of coal for power generation, were causing widespread 
power cuts to industry during the second half of 2021 and so a sharp disruptive impact 
on some sectors of the economy. In addition, recent regulatory actions motivated by a 
political agenda to channel activities into officially approved directions, are also likely 
to reduce the dynamism and long-term growth of the Chinese economy.  

 

 JAPAN. 2021 has been a patchy year in combating Covid.  However, recent business 
surveys indicate that the economy has been rebounding rapidly in 2021 once the bulk 
of the population had been double vaccinated and new virus cases had plunged. 
However, Omicron could reverse this initial success in combating Covid.  

Page 48

Agenda Item 7



 
 

 

 The Bank of Japan is continuing its very loose monetary policy but with little 
prospect of getting inflation back above 1% towards its target of 2%, any time soon: 
indeed, inflation was actually negative in July. New Prime Minister Kishida, having won 
the November general election, brought in a supplementary budget to boost growth, 
but it is unlikely to have a major effect.  

 

 WORLD GROWTH.  World growth was in recession in 2020 but recovered during 
2021 until starting to lose momentum in the second half of the year, though overall 
growth for the year is expected to be about 6% and to be around 4-5% in 2022. 
Inflation has been rising due to increases in gas and electricity prices, shipping costs 
and supply shortages, although these should subside during 2022.  

 

 While headline inflation will fall sharply, core inflation will probably not fall as quickly as 
central bankers would hope. It is likely that we are heading into a period where there 
will be a reversal of world globalisation and a decoupling of western countries from 
dependence on China to supply products, and vice versa. This is likely to reduce world 
growth rates from those in prior decades.  

 

 SUPPLY SHORTAGES. The pandemic and extreme weather events, followed by a 
major surge in demand after lockdowns ended, have been highly disruptive of 
extended worldwide supply chains.  Major queues of ships unable to unload their 
goods at ports in New York, California and China built up rapidly during quarters 2 and 
3 of 2021 but then halved during quarter 4. Such issues have led to a misdistribution of 
shipping containers around the world and have contributed to a huge increase in the 
cost of shipping. Combined with a shortage of semi-conductors, these issues have had 
a disruptive impact on production in many countries.  

 

 The latest additional disruption has been a shortage of coal in China leading to power 
cuts focused primarily on producers (rather than consumers), i.e., this will further 
aggravate shortages in meeting demand for goods. Many western countries are also 
hitting up against a difficulty in filling job vacancies. It is expected that these issues will 
be gradually sorted out, but they are currently contributing to a spike upwards in 
inflation and shortages of materials and goods available to purchase.  

 
  

Page 49

Agenda Item 7



 
 

Appendix C 
 
Benchmarking and Monitoring Security, Liquidity and Yield in the Investment 
Service. 
 
1. These benchmarks are targets and so may be exceeded from time to time. Any 
variation will be reported, along with supporting reasons, in the Annual Treasury 
Report. 
 
2. Yield.  
 
This council will use an investment benchmark to assess the performance of cash 
investments of three month SONIA.  Property related investments are benchmarked 
against the IPD Balanced Property Unit Trust Index. 
 
3. Liquidity.  
 
Liquidity is defined as the council “having adequate, though not excessive, cash 
resources, borrowing arrangements, overdrafts or standby facilities to enable it at all times 
to have the level of funds available to it which are necessary for the achievement of its 
business/service objectives” (CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice). 
 
4. In respect of this area, the council shall seek to: 
 

 maintain a minimal balance held in the council’s main bank account at the close of 
each working day. Transfers to the councils call accounts, MMF and investments 
will be arranged in order to achieve this, while maintaining access to adequate 
working capital at short notice. 

 

 use the authorised bank overdraft facility or short term borrowing where there is 
clear business case for doing so, to cover working capital requirements at short 
notice 

 
5. Security of the investments.  
 
In the context of benchmarking, assessing security is very much more a subjective area to 
assess. Security is currently evidenced by the application of minimum credit quality criteria 
to investment counterparties, primarily through the use of credit ratings supplied by the 
three main credit rating agencies (Fitch, Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s). Whilst this 
approach embodies security considerations, benchmarking levels of risk is more 
problematic.  
 
One method to benchmark security risk is to assess the historic level of default against the 
minimum criteria used in the Council’s investment strategy. The table beneath shows 
average defaults for differing periods of investment grade products for each Fitch long 
term rating category over the last 20-30 years. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 50

Agenda Item 7



 
 

Average defaults for differing periods of investment 
 

Long 
term rating  

1 year  2 years  3 years  4 years  5 years 

AA  0.02%  0.04% 0.09% 0.16% 0.23% 

A  0.05%  0.14%  0.26%  0.38%  0.54% 

BBB  0.14%  0.38%  0.66%  1.01%  1.36% 

 

6. The council’s minimum long term (i.e. plus 365 day duration) rating criteria is currently 
“A-”. For comparison, the average expectation of default for a two year investment in a 
counterparty with an “A” long term rating would be 0.14 per cent of the total investment 
(e.g. for a £1m investment the average loss would be £1,400). This is an average - any 
specific counterparty loss is likely to be higher. These figures act as a proxy benchmark for 
risk across the portfolio. 
 

 
  

Page 51

Agenda Item 7



 
 

Appendix D 
 

Explanation of Prudential and Treasury Indicators 
Prudential borrowing permits local government organisations to borrow to fund capital 
spending plans provided they could demonstrate their affordability. Prudential indicators 
are the means to demonstrate affordability. 
 
Authorised limit for external debt – this is the maximum limit for external borrowing. This 
is the statutory limit determined under section 3(1) of the Local Government Act 2003. This 
limit is set to allow sufficient headroom for day-to-day operational management of cash 
flows. 
 
Operational boundary for external debt – this is set as the more likely amount that may 
be required for day-to-day cash flow. 
 
Upper limit for fixed and variable interest rate exposure – these limits allow the 
council flexibility in its investment and borrowing options. 
 
Upper limit for total principal sums invested for over 365 days – the amount it is 
considered can be prudently invested for periods in excess of a year 
 
 

  

Page 52

Agenda Item 7



 
 

Appendix E 

 
Treasury Management Practice (TMP) 1 – credit and counterparty risk management 
 
The CLG issued Investment Guidance in 2010, and this forms the structure of the 
council’s policy below. 

The key aim of the guidance is to maintain the current requirement for councils to invest 
prudently, and that priority is given to security and liquidity before yield. In order to facilitate 
this objective, the guidance requires this council to have regard to the CIPFA publication 
Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral 
Guidance Notes. In accordance with the code, the Interim Head of Finance has produced 
its treasury management practices (TMPs). This part, TMP1(1), covering investment 
counterparty policy requires approval each year 

 

The key requirements of both the Code and the investment guidance are to set an annual 
investment strategy, as part of its annual treasury strategy for the following year, covering 
the identification and approval of following: 
 

 the strategy guidelines for decision making on investments, particularly non-
specified investments.  

 the principles to be used to determine the maximum periods for which funds can be 
committed. 

 specified investments that the Council will use. These are high security (i.e. high 
credit rating, although this is defined by the Council, and no guidelines are given), 
and high liquidity investments in sterling and with a maturity of no more than a year. 

 non-specified investments, clarifying the greater risk implications, identifying the 
general types of investment that may be used and a limit to the overall amount of 
various categories that can be held at any time. 

 
The investment policy proposed for the Council is: 
 
Strategy guidelines – The main strategy guidelines are contained in the body of the 
treasury strategy statement. 
 
Specified investments – These investments are sterling investments of not more than 
one-year maturity, or those which could be for a longer period but where the Council has 
the right to be repaid within 12 months if it wishes.  These are considered low risk assets 
where the possibility of loss of principal or investment income is small.  These would 
include sterling investments which would not be defined as capital expenditure with: 
 

 UK government Debt Management Agency Deposit Facility (DMADF) 

 UK government – treasury stock (Gilts) with less than one year to maturity 

 Supranational bonds of less than one year’s duration 

 Deposits with UK local authorities 

 Pooled investment vehicles such as Money Market Funds (MMF) (AAA rated) 

 Deposits with banks and building societies (minimum F1/A-) 

 Certificates of deposits issued by banks and building societies (minimum rating as 
above) covers pooled investment vehicles, such as money market funds, rated AAA 
by Standard and Poor’s, Moody’s and / or Fitch rating agencies. 
 

Page 53

Agenda Item 7



 
 

Within these bodies, and in accordance with the Code, the council has set additional 
criteria to set the time and amount of monies which will be invested in these bodies. 
These criteria are as stated in table 6 to this report. 
 
Non-specified investments 
These are any other type of investment (i.e. not defined or specified above). The 
identification and rationale supporting the selection of these other investments and the 
maximum limits to be applied are as set out in Table 6. 
 
Implementation in 2018/19 
In December 2017, CIPFA issued a revised Treasury Management Code of Practice and a 
revised Prudential Code. These revisions have particularly focused on non-treasury 
investments and especially on the purchase of property with a view to generating income.  
Such purchases could involve undertaking external borrowing to raise the cash to finance 
these purchases, or the use of existing cash balances.  
 
The 2017 CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management abolished the treasury 
indicators on limits for fixed and variable rate exposure. However, this was on the basis that 
authorities would explain in words how they control interest rate risk.  
 
IFRS  9 
Risk management will need to take account of the 2018/19 Accounting Code of Practice 
proposals for the valuation of investments. Key considerations are: 
 

 Expected credit loss model. Whilst this should not be material for ordinary treasury 
investments such as bank deposits, this is likely to be challenging for some funds e.g. 
property funds, (and also for non-treasury management investments dealt with in the 
capital strategy e.g. longer dated service investments, loans to third parties or loans 
to subsidiaries). 

 The valuation of investments previously valued under the available for sale category 
e.g. equity related to the “commercialism” agenda, property funds, equity funds and 
similar, will be changed to Fair Value through the Profit and Loss (FVPL).  

 
Following the consultation undertaken by the then Ministry of Housing, Communities and 
Local Government, [MHCLG], on IFRS9 the Government has introduced a mandatory 
statutory override for local authorities to reverse out all unrealised fair value movements 
resulting from pooled investment funds. This will be effective from 1 April 2018.  The 
statutory override applies for five years from this date. Local authorities are required to 
disclose the net impact of the unrealised fair value movements in a separate unusable 
reserve throughout the duration of the override in order for the Government to keep the 
override under review and to maintain a form of transparency. 
 
 
 

  

Page 54

Agenda Item 7



 
 

Appendix F 
 
Extension to the specific responsibilities of the S151 officer as per the Treasury 
Management code 
 

The below list of specific responsibilities of the S151 officer in the 2017 Treasury 
Management Code has not changed.  However, implicit in the changes in both codes, is a 
major extension of the functions of this role, especially in respect of non-financial 
investments, (which CIPFA has defined as being part of treasury management); 

 

 preparation of a capital strategy to include capital expenditure, capital financing, 
non-financial investments and treasury management, with a long-term timeframe. 

 ensuring that the capital strategy is prudent, sustainable, affordable and prudent in 
the long term and provides value for money 

 ensuring that due diligence has been carried out on all treasury and non-financial 
investments and is in accordance with the risk appetite of the authority 

 ensure that the authority has appropriate legal powers to undertake expenditure on 
non-financial assets and their financing 

 ensuring the proportionality of all investments so that the authority does not 
undertake a level of investing which exposes the authority to an excessive level of 
risk compared to its financial resources 

 ensuring that an adequate governance process is in place for the approval, 
monitoring and ongoing risk management of all non-financial investments and long 
term liabilities 

 provision to members of a schedule of all non-treasury investments including 
material investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, loans and financial guarantees  

 ensuring that members are adequately informed and understand the risk exposures 
taken on by an authority 

 ensuring that the authority has adequate expertise, either in house or externally 
provided, to carry out the above 

 creation of Treasury Management Practices which specifically deal with how non 
treasury investments will be carried out and managed, to include the following 

o Risk management (TMP1 and schedules), including investment and risk 
management criteria for any material non-treasury investment portfolios; 

  
o Performance measurement and management (TMP2 and schedules), 

including methodology and criteria for assessing the performance and 
success of non-treasury investments;          

  
o Decision making, governance and organisation (TMP5 and schedules), 

including a statement of the governance requirements for decision making in 
relation to non-treasury investments; and arrangements to ensure that 
appropriate professional due diligence is carried out to support decision 
making; 

  
o Reporting and management information (TMP6 and schedules), including 

where and how often monitoring reports are taken; 
  

Page 55

Agenda Item 7



 
 

o Training and qualifications (TMP10 and schedules), including how the 
relevant knowledge and skills in relation to non-treasury investments will be 
arranged. 

 

  

Page 56

Agenda Item 7



 
 

Appendix G 
 
GLOSSARY OF TERMS 
 

Authorised Limit  
The maximum amount of external debt at any one time in the 
financial year. 

Basis Point (BP)  1/100th of 1%, i.e. 0.01% 

Base Rate  Minimum lending rate of a bank or financial institution in the UK. 

Benchmark  
A measure against which the investment policy or performance of a 
fund manager can be compared. 

Bill of Exchange  A financial instrument financing trade. 

Callable Deposit  

A deposit placed with a bank or building society at a set rate for a 
set amount of time. However, the borrower has the right to repay 
the funds on pre-agreed dates, before maturity. This decision is 
based on how market rates have moved since the deal was agreed. 
If rates have fallen the likelihood of the deposit being repaid rises, 
as cheaper money can be found by the borrower. 

Cash Fund 
Management 

Fund management is the management of an investment portfolio of 
cash on behalf of a private client or an institution, the receipts and 
distribution of dividends and interest, and all other administrative 
work in connection with the portfolio. 

Certificate of 
Deposit (CD) 

Evidence of a deposit with a specified bank or building society 
repayable on a fixed date. They are negotiable instruments and 
have a secondary market; therefore, the holder of a CD is able to 
sell it to a third party before the maturity of the CD. 

Commercial 
Paper 

Short-term obligations with maturities ranging from 2 to 270 days 
issued by banks, corporations and other borrowers. Such 
instruments are unsecured and usually discounted, although some 
may be interest bearing. 

Corporate Bond  

Strictly speaking, corporate bonds are those issued by companies. 
However, the term is used to cover all bonds other than those 
issued by governments in their own currencies and includes issues 
by companies, supranational organisations and government 
agencies. 

Counterparty  
Another (or the other) party to an agreement or other market 
contract (e.g. lender/borrower/writer of a swap/etc.) 

CDS  

Credit Default Swap – a swap designed to transfer the credit 
exposure of fixed income products between parties. The buyer of a 
credit swap receives credit protection, whereas the seller of the 
swap guarantees the credit worthiness of the product. By doing 
this, the risk of default is transferred from the holder of the fixed 
income security to the seller of the swap. 

CFR  Capital Financing Requirement. 

CIPFA  Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy. 

Derivative  

A contract whose value is based on the performance of an 
underlying financial asset, index or other investment, e.g. an option 
is a derivative because its value changes in relation to the 
performance of an underlying stock. 

DMADF  
Deposit Account offered by the Debt Management Office, 
guaranteed by the UK government. 

Page 57

Agenda Item 7



 
 

ECB  

European Central Bank – sets the central interest rates in the EMU 
area. The ECB determines the targets itself for its interest rate 
setting policy; this is the keep inflation within a band of 0 to 2 per 
cent. It does not accept that monetary policy is to be used to 
manage fluctuations in unemployment and growth caused by the 
business cycle. 

Enhanced Cash 
Funds 

A pooled investment fund. Longer dated investment than a MMF 
and, unlike a MMF, enhanced cash funds have variable asset 
value. Assets are marked to market on a daily basis and the unit 
prices vary accordingly. Investments can be withdrawn on a notice 
basis (the length of which depends on the fund) although such 
funds would typically be used for investments of 3 to 6 month 
duration. 

Equity  
A share in a company with limited liability. It generally enables the 
holder to share in the profitability of the company through dividend 
payments and capital gain. 

Forward Deal  
The act of agreeing today to deposit funds with an institution for an 
agreed time limit, on an agreed future date, at an agreed rate. 

Forward Deposits  Same as forward dealing (above). 

Fiscal Policy  The government policy on taxation and welfare payments. 

GDP  Gross Domestic Product. 

Gilt  
Registered British government securities giving the investor an 
absolute commitment from the government to honour the debt that 
those securities represent. 

Mark to Market 
Accounting 

Accounting on the basis of the “fair value” of an asset or liability, 
based on the current market price. As a result, values will change 
with market conditions. 

Minimum 
Revenue 
Provision 

This is a prudent sum set aside each year to offset the principal 
repayment of any loan to smooth the impact on the local taxpayer. 

Money Market 
Fund 

A well rated, highly diversified pooled investment vehicle whose 
assets mainly comprise of short-term instruments. It is very similar 
to a unit trust, however a MMF relies on loans to companies rather 
than share holdings. 

Monetary Policy 
Committee (MPC) 

Government body that sets the bank rate (commonly referred to as 
being base rate). Their primary target is to keep inflation within 
plus or minus 1 per cent of a central target of 2.5 per cent in two 
years’ time from the date of the monthly meeting of the committee. 
Their secondary target is to support the government in maintaining 
high and stable levels of growth and employment. 

Non-UCITS Retail 
Scheme (NURS) – 

Undertakings for collective investments are funds authorised to be 
sold in the UK that are required to meet standards set by the UK 
services regulator. An example is property funds. 

Operational 
Boundary 

The most likely, prudent but not worst-case scenario of external 
debt at any one time. 

Other Bonds Pooled funds investing in a wide range of bonds. 

PWLB  Public Works Loan Board. 

QE  Quantitative Easing. 

Retail Price Index  
Measurement of the monthly change in the average level of prices 
at the retail level weighted by the average expenditure pattern of 
the average person. 

Page 58

Agenda Item 7



 
 

Sovereign Issues 
(Ex UK Gilts) 

Bonds issued or guaranteed by nation states, but excluding UK 
government bonds. 

Supranational 
Bonds 

Bonds issued by supranational bodies, e.g. European Investment 
Bank. The bonds – also known as Multilateral Development Bank 
bonds – are generally AAA rated and behave similarly to gilts, but 
pay a higher yield (“spread”) given their relative illiquidity when 
compared with gilts. 

Treasury Bill  
Treasury bills are short-term debt instruments issued by the UK or 
other governments. They provide a return to the investor by virtue 
of being issued at a discount to their final redemption value. 

 

 
 

Page 59

Agenda Item 7



1 
 

Cabinet Report 

 
Report of Head of Finance  

Author: Simon Hewings 

Telephone: 01235 422499 

E-mail: simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk 

Cabinet member responsible: Leigh Rawlins 

Tel: 01189 722565 

E-mail: Leigh.Rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk 

To: CABINET  03 February 2022 

To: COUNCIL 17 February 2022 

Date: 03 February 2022 
 

 

 

Capital strategy 2022/23 to 2031/32 

Recommendations 

1) That cabinet recommends council to approve the capital strategy 2022/23 to 
2031/32 which is contained in appendix one of the reports of the head of finance to 
cabinet on 3 February 2022. 

2) That cabinet recommends to council to agree the strategy for flexible use of capital 
receipts which is contained as annex 1 of the capital strategy. 

 

Purpose of Report 

1. To request cabinet to recommend council to approve the capital strategy for 2022/23 to 
2031/32. The capital strategy outlines the council’s approach to capital spending, 
based on the council’s corporate strategy, and is linked to the council’s corporate 
objectives, medium-term financial strategy, and management of projects and 
programmes. 

Strategic Objectives  

2. The allocation of financial resources within capital budgets needs to match the 
objectives agreed by the council. 

Background 

3. The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Prudential Code 
requires local authorities to produce a capital strategy to demonstrate that capital 
expenditure and investment decisions are taken in line with service objectives and take 
account of stewardship, value for money, prudence, sustainability and affordability.  

Page 60

Agenda Item 8



2 
 

Under the Code, a capital strategy is required to be agreed ahead of the 2022/23 
financial year and will be reviewed on an annual basis. 

4. The capital strategy for 2022/23 to 2031/32 is attached as appendix one to this report. 
The strategy provides the overall policy framework for capital expenditure and 
investment.  It does this by bringing together the requirements of the council’s strategic 
objectives, and the constraints of its medium-term financial plan, and within the 
parameters set by those it determines how capital schemes can be progressed from 
initial idea through to conclusion.  

5. A key change to the strategy proposed to be adopted is to broaden the areas where 
capital investment will be considered to include the following broad categories: 

• Property investments – maximising the use and value of council owned assets to 
support council services, or for regeneration purposes to deliver a wider social, or 
community benefit. 

• Loans – to companies and other organisations to support the delivery of the 
council’s corporate objectives. 

• Renewable energy schemes – to support delivery of the council’s climate action 
priorities. 

In all cases investment will need to be within the council’s legal powers, be 
proportionate to the council’s financial standing, and primarily in support of council 
objectives and not commercial gain. 

6. A further change to the strategy this year is the inclusion of a strategy for the flexible 
use of capital receipts.  This identifies revenue activity which, under guidance issued by 
the Secretary of State for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities, is eligible to be 
funded using capital receipts rather than revenue resources.   

7. The capital strategy is a key document for the council.  It provides a high-level overview 
of how capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury management activity 
contribute to the provision of services. It also provides an overview of how associated 
risk is managed and the implications for future financial sustainability.  It will increase 
transparency in the planning, approval and monitoring of capital expenditure.  

Climate and Ecological Impact Implications 

8. There are no direct implications arising from implementing the strategy. As part of the 
asset management and ongoing review process for the council’s property asset 
portfolio, measures will be introduced to enhance building sustainability, reduce water 
consumption and waste and improve energy efficiency in new developments and 
refurbishment projects in line with the council’s adopted Climate Action Plan. 

Financial Implications 

9. There are no direct financial implications arising from implementing the strategy.  

Legal Implications 

10. None. 

Page 61

Agenda Item 8



3 
 

Conclusion 

11. This report provides details of the proposed capital strategy for 2022/23 to 2031/32 and 
asks cabinet to recommend the capital strategy to council. These documents provide 
the parameters within which capital expenditure and investment decisions will be made 
once the supporting requirements are in place. 

Background Papers 

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Prudential Code for 
Capital Finance in Local Authorities.  

Appendices 

Appendix one Capital strategy 2022/23 to 2031/32.  

 

Page 62

Agenda Item 8



 

1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Capital Strategy 

2022/23 – 2031/32 

 
  

Page 63

Agenda Item 8



 

2 
 

Contents 
  

1 Introduction ......................................................................................................................................... 3 

2 Purpose ................................................................................................................................................ 3 

3 Scope .................................................................................................................................................... 3 

4 Capital Expenditure .............................................................................................................................. 4 

5 Delivery and Commercial Investments ................................................................................................ 4 

5.1 Delivery investments......................................................................................................................... 4 

5.2 Commercial investments .................................................................................................................. 4 

6 Due Diligence ....................................................................................................................................... 5 

7 Council Objectives ................................................................................................................................ 5 

8 The Capital Budget Setting Process ..................................................................................................... 6 

8.1 Key Criteria for Strategy ................................................................................................................... 6 

8.2 Deciding which Schemes are to be put forward for review.............................................................. 7 

8.3 Prioritisation of Schemes put forward .............................................................................................. 8 

8.4 Options Appraisals and Feasibility Studies ....................................................................................... 8 

8.5 Investment Opportunities ................................................................................................................. 9 

8.6 Governance Arrangements ............................................................................................................. 10 

9 Monitoring of capital programme expenditure ................................................................................. 10 

10 Multi-year schemes .......................................................................................................................... 11 

11 Funding strategy and capital policies ............................................................................................... 11 

11.1 Capital programme financing principles ....................................................................................... 11 

11.2 External funding ............................................................................................................................ 11 

11.3 Capital receipts ............................................................................................................................. 12 

11.5 Prudential/unsupported borrowing.............................................................................................. 13 

11.6 Invest to save schemes ................................................................................................................. 13 

11.7 Leasing .......................................................................................................................................... 14 

12 Procurement and Value for Money ................................................................................................. 14 

13 Performance management .............................................................................................................. 15 

14 Risk management ............................................................................................................................. 15 

Annex A ................................................................................................................................................. 17 

 

 

 

 

Page 64

Agenda Item 8



 

3 
 

1 Introduction  

The council’s capital strategy represents its approach to future investment in 

achieving its agreed objectives, whilst having regard to governance and its limited 

financial resources available. The council has a significant capital investment 

programme for the period from 2022/23 to 2026/27, whilst facing a number of 

competing demands on finite resources. To achieve its aims and objectives the 

council seeks to work with partners who share its ambitions for improved outcomes 

for all its residents and will introduce a capital investment programme that will 

facilitate its key objectives.  

2 Purpose  

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Prudential Code 

requires local authorities to produce a capital strategy to demonstrate that capital 

expenditure and investment decisions are taken in line with long-term objectives and 

take account of stewardship, value for money, prudence, sustainability and 

affordability.  

The definition of an investment covers all the financial assets of a local authority as 

well as other non-financial assets that the organisation holds primarily or partially to 

generate a profit; for example, investment property portfolios. 

The Prudential Code requires authorities to look at capital expenditure and 

investment plans in the light of overall organisational strategy and resources and 

ensure that decisions are made with sufficient regard to the long-term financing 

implications and potential risks to the authority. 

The Capital Strategy will be a key document for the Council and will form part of the 

authority’s integrated revenue, capital and balance sheet planning. It will provide a 

high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury 

management activity contribute to the provision of services. It will also provide an 

overview of how associated risk is managed and the implications for future financial 

sustainability.  It will include an overview of the governance processes for developing 

proposals, approval and monitoring of capital expenditure.  

3 Scope  

This Capital Strategy will include all capital expenditure and capital investment 

decisions for the council, entered into as an individual local authority and also under 

joint arrangements. It sets out the long-term context in which decisions are made 

with reference to the life of the projects/assets and will stress the need for evidence-

based decision making. 

The Capital Strategy specifically excludes investments that are entered into under 

Treasury Management powers; these are covered in the Treasury Management 

Strategy.  The Treasury Management Strategy also includes the policy for borrowing 

to finance capital expenditure. 

Page 65

Agenda Item 8



 

4 
 

4 Capital Expenditure  

Capital expenditure is incurred on the acquisition or creation of assets, or 

expenditure that enhances or adds to the life or value of an existing fixed asset that 

is needed to provide services. Fixed assets are tangible or intangible assets that 

yield benefits to the Council generally for a period of more than one year, e.g. land, 

buildings, vehicles. This contrasts with revenue expenditure which is spending on the 

day to day running costs of services such as employee costs and supplies and 

services.   

The capital programme is the authority’s plan of capital works for future years, 

including details on the funding of the schemes. Included are projects such as the 

purchase of land and buildings, the construction of new buildings, design fees and 

the acquisition of vehicles and major items of equipment.   

The council’s proposed capital programme for 2022/23 to 2026/27 and latest budget 

for 2021/22 totals £73.973 million and is summarised in the table below. 

 

5 Delivery and Commercial Investments  

The CIPFA Prudential Code identifies categories of capital investment expenditure 

as those which are outside of normal treasury management activity. These may 

include:  

5.1 Delivery investments  

These are investments held clearly and explicitly in the course of the provision, and 

for the purposes, of operational delivery, including regeneration.  

A local authority may choose to make loans to local enterprises, local charities, 

wholly owned companies and joint ventures as part of a wider strategy for local 

economic growth, if total financial exposure to these types of loans is proportionate 

and policy and risk management conditions specified in the Code are met. 

5.2 Commercial investments  

These are investments taken for mainly financial reasons. These may include:  

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

latest estimate estimate estimate estimate estimate

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Total expenditure 10,960 33,399 14,042 10,548 2,513 2,513

Financing

Grant funding 2,343 5,183 1,518 1,518 1,518 1,518

Developers' contributions/CIL 5,672 13,185 1,500 0 0 0

Borrowing 0 5,000 10,000 0 0 0

Usable capital receipts/revenue reserves 2,945 10,031 1,024 9,030 995 995

Total financing 10,960 33,399 14,042 10,548 2,513 2,513

Page 66

Agenda Item 8



 

5 
 

1. investments arising as part of business structures, such as shares and 

loans in subsidiaries or other outsourcing structures such as IT providers 

or building services providers;  

2. investments explicitly taken with the aim of making a financial surplus for 

the Council.  

Commercial investments also include fixed assets which are held primarily for 

financial benefit, such as investment properties.   

Due to the nature of the assets or for valid investment reasons, such investments do 

not always give priority to security and liquidity over yield. In these cases, such a 

decision will be explicit, with the additional risks set out and the impact on financial 

sustainability identified and reported.  

The Section 151 Officer/Head of Finance will ensure that the Council has the 

appropriate legal powers to undertake such investments and will also ensure the 

proportionality of all investments so that the Council does not undertake a level of 

investing which exposes it to an excessive level of risk compared to its financial 

resources.  

In compliance with the latest CIPFA Prudential Code, the council will not invest in 

commercial property, primarily for financial gain. 

6 Due Diligence  

For all capital investments, it is proposed that the appropriate level of due diligence 

will be undertaken with the extent and depth reflecting the level of additional risk 

being considered.  

The process and procedures will include effective scrutiny of proposed investments 

that will, for example, consider: 

• identification of the risk to both the capital sums invested and the returns;  

• understanding the extent and nature of any external underwriting of those 

risks;  

• the potential impact on the financial sustainability of the Council if those 

risks come to fruition;  

• identification of the assets being held for security against debt and any 

prior charges on those assets;   

• where necessary independent and expert advice will be sought. 

The Section 151 Officer/Head of Finance will ensure that members are adequately 

informed and understand the risk exposures being taken.  Internal control and policy 

compliance will regularly be assessed by Joint Audit and Governance Committee.  

7 Council Objectives  

In October 2020 the Council published a Corporate Plan for 2020-24 setting out the 

council’s priorities to help communities and people across South Oxfordshire thrive.  

The plan was developed with community consultation and sets out the corporate 

Page 67

Agenda Item 8



 

6 
 

aims, priorities and objectives which shape the provision of services.  Capital 

investment projects if, and when undertaken, must be in line with these overall 

objectives and considered in the longer term.  

 

The corporate plan priority themes are: 

• Protect and restore our natural world 

• Openness and Accountability 

• Action on the Climate Emergency 

• Improved economic and community well-being 

• Homes and Infrastructure that meet local needs 

• Investment that rebuilds our financial viability 

 

The council monitors its progress towards achieving the Corporate Plan aims and 

priorities and publishes a quarterly report on performance against the six strategic 

themes. 

 

During 2021 a Strategic Property Review of the council’s assets was conducted to 

evaluate how each asset could help support and deliver the council’s strategic aims 

and to establish priorities for the ongoing management and development of the 

council’s estate.  Following the review an Asset Management Group (AMG) was set 

up to check and challenge property findings to ensure they meet the council’s 

priorities.   

 

The aim is for the Strategic Property Review to be the beginning of a rolling 

programme with all assets within the portfolio to be reviewed and challenged on a 

regular and frequent basis. 

 

The council’s ambition is to be amongst the leading public sector organisations for 

development, property and asset management with a proactive approach to deriving 

the best from its asset base and service delivery. 

 

8 The Capital Budget Setting Process  

8.1 Key Criteria for Strategy  

During preparation of the council’s annual budget, the key criteria for considering 

capital budget proposals will be set. These may include for example:  

• Maintenance of the essential infrastructure of the organisation;  

• Essential Health and Safety works;  

• Essential rolling programmes; 

• Invest to save schemes; 

• Match funded investment for regeneration projects;  

• The outcome of feasibility studies. 

Page 68

Agenda Item 8



 

7 
 

8.2 Deciding which Schemes are to be put forward for review 

When decisions on capital projects to be put forward are made it is proposed that 

consideration is given to the following:  

Prudence: 

• Recognition of the ability to prioritise and refocus following changes to the 

council’s Corporate Plan; 

• Recognition of the capacity in the organisation to deliver such a 

programme;  

• Recognition of the knowledge and skills available and whether these are 

commensurate with the appetite for risk; 

• Recognition of the future vision of the authority; 

• The approach to commercial activities including ensuring effective due 

diligence, defining the risk appetite and considerations of proportionality in 

respect of overall resources; 

• The approach to treasury management and the management of risk is set 

out in the Treasury Management Strategy.  

Affordability: 

• Revenue impact of the proposals on the Medium-Term Financial Plan; 

• The borrowing position of the council as required, projections of external 

debt and the use of internal borrowing to support capital expenditure; 

• The authorised limits and operational boundaries; 

• Whether schemes are profiled to the appropriate financial year.  

Sustainability: 

• An overview of asset management planning including maintenance 

requirements and planned disposals; 

• A long-term view of capital expenditure plans, where long term is defined 

by the financing strategy and risks faced with reference to the life of the 

project/assets; 

• If the need to borrow is approved, provision for the repayment of debt over 

the life of the underlying debt as set out in the Minimum Revenue 

Provision policy, and consideration by Joint Audit and Governance 

Committee of the impact on the repayment on future viability. 

All proposals would be produced in line with the Corporate Delivery Framework 

which will ensure the above points on prudence, affordability and sustainability are 

considered. 

The Corporate Delivery Framework uses a three-stage approach to ensure strong 

governance and consistency in delivering programmes of work.  The framework sets 

out the procedures and approval process to be followed dependent upon the size 

and complexity of the project. 

Page 69

Agenda Item 8



 

8 
 

The business case for a project is defined during the first stage of the Corporate 

Delivery Framework and includes proposed funding arrangements. Sources of 

funding would be considered for each of the proposed capital schemes. Each project 

would be considered in terms of revenue funding to cover the operational running 

costs of the asset and any borrowing repayment costs, and how the asset would be 

funded in terms of capital expenditure. This is known as whole life budgeting.  

8.3 Prioritisation of Schemes put forward  

The Council is introducing a corporate landlord model for the operations and 

management of its land and building corporate assets and is working towards 

developing a Corporate Asset Management Document (AMD) to include 

• A high-level policy which links the aims and objectives of the 
organisations into key property vision and behaviours; 

• An intermediate strategy which takes the property vision and explains how 
it will be delivered; 

• A working action plan that lists the key property initiatives and projects 

and can be used to manage this at a corporate level.  

 

In order to ensure that Corporate Plan objectives are prioritised the advisory Asset 

Management Group (AMG) meets on a regular basis to review the Property team’s 

recommendations for the council’s assets.  The AMG recommendations may be 

agreed by way of the appropriate formal decision, in accordance with the terms of 

the council’s constitution. A capital expenditure register will be used to prioritise 

projects and rank against corporate plan priorities and apply for external funding 

from CIL or alternative sources. 

8.4 Options Appraisals and Feasibility Studies  

As part of the process of producing a list of potential schemes the capital programme 

option appraisals will be required to determine the most cost effective and best 

service delivery options.  

Some projects may require a feasibility study. As part of any feasibility study an 

assessment of the maintenance costs per annum averaged over the whole life of the 

asset will be calculated.  

For complex projects a financial assessment of the business case for the proposed 

project should be carried out. This should normally take the form of a discounted 

cash flow projection in order to calculate the Net Present Value (NPV) of a proposal, 

although other assessment methods may be used where more appropriate, such as 

internal rate of return or payback period. 

A standard methodology for calculating NPV should be followed as set out in 

separate guidance notes. This should include a sensitivity analysis based on the 

risks of the project and the key assumptions adopted in the financial analysis. 

Page 70

Agenda Item 8



 

9 
 

The actual sensitivities used may vary from project to project but should include: 

• Costs more than expected by five per cent; 

• Expected savings / income less than expected by five per cent;  

• Costs more than expected by five per cent AND expected savings / income 

less than expected by five per cent; 

• How much would cost increase / savings need to reduce by to make the 

project unviable. 

All costs and benefits must be clearly broken down so that it is clear what is included 

and so that the behaviours of the individual elements can be properly assessed and 

scrutinised. Costs and benefits with different behaviours and / or dependencies 

should therefore be separately identified.  

The overall impact on cashflow, income and expenditure account and balance sheet 

should be identified. 

A risk assessment should be undertaken using the council’s standard methodology. 

The assessment summarises the significant risks specifically related to the project 

and should explain clearly what the causes, consequences, controls and mitigations 

are and how the risks are managed 

8.5 Investment Opportunities  

Property schemes which arise during the year will only be considered for inclusion in 

the capital programme if they meet key criteria set out in section 8.1 or one or more 

of the following criteria:  

• The location of the property to be purchased will bring added value to the 

estate; 

• The requirement for the asset is an extraordinary service demand which could 

not be anticipated in the normal planning processes. 

 

Capital investment opportunities will be considered under the following broad 

categories: 

 

• Property investments – maximising the use and value of council owned assets 

(land and buildings) to support council services, or for regeneration purposes 

to deliver a wider social, or community benefit; 

 

• Loans - to companies and other organisations to support the delivery of the 

council’s corporate objectives; 

 

• Renewable energy schemes – Investments in renewable energy schemes to 

support delivery of the council’s climate action priorities. 

 

In all cases investment will need to be: 

 

Page 71

Agenda Item 8



 

10 
 

• Within the council’s legal powers; 

• Primarily in support of council objectives and not primarily for commercial 

gain; 

• Proportionate to the council’s financial standing. 

 

Investment will be subject to satisfactory business case, due diligence and analysis 

of risk (which may require external support) and will require a Cabinet 

recommendation to Council on a case-by-case basis – at that point budgets will be 

created. 

8.6 Governance Arrangements 

The Prudential Code sets out that the responsibility for decision making and on-
going monitoring in respect of capital expenditure, investment and borrowing, 
including prudential indicators, sits with full Council.  However, detailed 
implementation and monitoring may be delegated to a committee. 

Council and the Cabinet are the key democratic decision-making bodies for the 
capital programme.  The Council approves the key policy documents and the capital 
programme as part of the Council’s Policy and Budgetary Framework.  The Cabinet 
recommends priorities, policy direction and the new capital programme to the 
Council for approval.  Cabinet and Council also approve new inclusions to the capital 
programme in line with the scheme of delegation and the financial procedure rules.  

Delegations to officers and individual Cabinet members are set out in the council’s 
financial regulations. 

9 Monitoring of capital programme expenditure  

The Section 151 Officer, jointly with the senior managers with responsibility for 
delivery of the capital programme, are responsible for ensuring that appropriate 
arrangements are in place to monitor the capital programme and resources. 

Capital budget monitoring reports are produced periodically, listing provisional and 
approved capital schemes, giving details of the project manager, budgets, year to 
date spend, brought forward spend and capital financing.  

The reports are sent to budget managers of each department for review and 
comment and returned to the finance team to incorporate into a consolidated capital 
budget monitoring report. The consolidated report is reviewed and considered by the 
Strategic Management Team (SMT) to ensure schemes are on target.  Summaries 
are presented to formal Cabinet meetings for consideration. 

When the capital schemes are completed a full evaluation report will be made 
available.  

Page 72

Agenda Item 8



 

11 
 

10 Multi-year schemes  

Payments for capital schemes often occur over many years, depending on the size 

and complexity of the project. Estimated payment patterns are calculated for each 

project so that the expected capital expenditure per year is known. This is known as 

a cash flow projection and is key to analysing funding requirements.  

The length of the planning period is defined by the financing strategy and the risks 

faced with reference to the life of the project/assets.  For example, some schemes 

may span two or three years whereas others may be over much longer timeframes. 

This allows greater integration of the revenue budget and capital programme and 

matches the time requirement for scheme planning and implementation since 

schemes have a considerable initial development phase.  

11 Funding strategy and capital policies  

This section sets out the policies of the council in relation to funding capital 

expenditure and investment.  

11.1 Capital programme financing principles 

The council’s capital programme financing principles are: 

• The council will continue to be proactive in ensuring, as far as possible, 

that additional capital investment needs arising from new developments 

are funded from developer contributions; 

• Ringfenced resources are used for the purposes for which they are 

issued; 

• Non ringfenced capital grants are treated as a corporate resource and 

used flexibly; 

• Capital receipts are treated as a corporate resource and used across the 

capital programme flexibly; 

• Prudential borrowing will only be considered where it is affordable; 

• Revenue contributions can be used to finance the capital programme, 

subject to the levels of revenue funding available and the judgement of 

the Head of Finance (section 151 officer). 

11.2 External funding  

The council will seek to maximise external funding wherever possible to support 

capital schemes. This can be in the form of grants and contributions from outside 

bodies including central government.  

Prior to submitting proposals for grant funding, an assessment of the risk of a 

contract price increase, associated with market conditions or abnormal building plan 

demands attached to some grants, must be completed to estimate the likelihood of 

additional funding being needed.  

Page 73

Agenda Item 8



 

12 
 

As part of the planning process and negotiations on major developments the council 

takes a positive approach to securing land and buildings through Section 106 

agreements.   

In April 2021 the council published its Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) spending 

strategy, which sets out how the council allocates CIL funds collected.  Funds 

available at 30 September are used as the basis for calculating allocations included 

in the capital programme and approved as part of the council’s budget setting each 

February.   

Funding may be allocated and approved for projects during the year in line with the 

council’s financial procedure rules. A procedural overview of the process for 

allocating spending and reporting of CIL is outlined in the CIL Spending Strategy. 

The council publishes on its website, no later than 31 December each year, an 

annual infrastructure funding statement showing both CIL and S106 income and 

expenditure for the preceding financial year. 

11.3 Capital receipts  

A capital receipt is an amount of money which is received from the sale of an asset. 

In most cases they cannot be spent on revenue items. However, capital receipts may 

be spent on certain projects as defined in the Statutory Guidance on the Flexible Use 

of Capital Receipts (updated) March 2016 by Department for Communities and Local 

Government. 

An ongoing asset challenge process to review the council’s property and land assets 

on a rolling programme, identifies asset rationalisation and disposal opportunities 

and provides assurance that funds are spent in the right places and on the right 

buildings. 

The council’s disposal policy provides a framework by which the council considers 

how surplus or underperforming assets can deliver and maximise capital receipts 

and/or income revenue, in order to facilitate the council’s provision of existing and 

future services and locality needs. 

 

The objectives of the council’s disposal strategy are intended to align with the 

council’s Corporate Plan, with reference to reducing the funding gap between 

income and expenditure in adherence to the council’s Medium Term Financial Plan, 

and aim to: 

 

• Complement the council’s policy of only holding assets that meet the 

council’s objectives for operational, socio-economic or investment 

purposes; 

• Enable actual and latent capital value tied up in potentially surplus assets 

to be realized;  

• Eliminate liabilities; 

• Unlock the benefits of regeneration; 

• Enable Local Development Plan/Framework policies to be realised; 

Page 74

Agenda Item 8



 

13 
 

• Maximise the proceeds or land use benefit from disposals for the benefit 

of the council and its community. 

The disposals policy sets out a five-stage procedure to be adopted by the council in 

connection with the disposal of its surplus and underperforming assets.  

 
• PROCESS – to identify the assets as ‘surplus’ or ‘underperforming’; 

• PREPARATION - for disposal, including obtaining confirmation that the 

property is suitable for disposal; 

• DETERMINATION - of the method of disposal; 

• ONGOING MANAGEMENT - for managing the asset in the run up to 

disposal;  

• DISPOSAL of the asset. 

 

11.4 Flexible use of capital receipts 

The council will adopt a strategy on the flexible use of capital receipts as detailed in 

Annex A of this report. 

11.5 Prudential/unsupported borrowing  

Local authorities can set their own borrowing levels based on their capital need and 

their ability to pay for the borrowing. The levels will be set by using the indicators and 

factors set out in the Prudential Code. This borrowing may also be referred to as 

Prudential Borrowing.   

Section 151 Officer/Head of Finance will make an assessment of the overall 

prudence, affordability and sustainability of the total borrowing which is reviewed by 

the Joint Audit and Governance Committee before approval by the Council. The 

impact of this borrowing will be reported in the Treasury Management Strategy 

alongside the Prudential Indicators required by CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital 

Finance. 

The view of the Section 151 Officer/Head of Finance will be fed into the corporate 

budget process so that, should the required borrowing levels be unaffordable or not 

prudent, then the schemes will be prioritised against the available funding from 

borrowing.  

Section 151 Officer/Head of Finance will also determine whether the borrowing 

should be from internal resources, or whether to enter external borrowing.  

The council’s current capital programme includes borrowing of £15 million to finance 

capital expenditure.  

11.6 Invest to save schemes  

Occasionally projects arise which require set-up costs.  Such projects may bring long 

term service delivery improvements and/or cost savings. The initial set up costs may 

Page 75

Agenda Item 8



 

14 
 

be of a revenue or capital nature. Assistance for these schemes must be considered 

on an individual basis.  

For ‘invest to save’ schemes it is expected that in the longer term these schemes will 

produce savings and/or additional income that will support the revenue budget.  

11.7 Leasing  

Section 151 Officer/Head of Finance may enter into finance leasing agreements to 

fund capital expenditure. However, a full option appraisal and comparison of other 

funding sources will be made, and the Section 151 Officer/Head of Finance will 

ascertain that leasing provides the best value for money method of funding the 

scheme.  

Under the Prudential Code finance leasing agreements are counted against the 

overall borrowing levels when looking at the prudence of the authority’s borrowing.  

12 Procurement and Value for Money  

In October 2021 the council adopted a Procurement Strategy and Action Plan 

providing guidance of matters to be considered and procedures to followed when 

purchasing goods, services and works. The Procurement Strategy and Action Plan 

aim to ensure resources are focussed on delivering the councils’ priorities and 

strategic themes.   

The council requires consideration of climate and ecological impacts to be at the 

heart of procurement decisions. Due consideration of the carbon footprint of service 

delivery, goods manufacturing and provision of works should be factored into the 

procurement process through statements of requirements and evaluation criteria. 

 

The council recognises that through the purchase of goods, services and works the 

resulting contracts should promote ethical procurement. Decisions made during the 

procurement process can have a direct effect on socio-economic and environmental 

implications. The council’s approach to this is set out in its Ethical Procurement 

Statement. 
 

It is essential that all procurement activities comply with procurement legislation and 

adhere to the relevant requirements. Guidance on this can be sought from the 

Procurement team. Procurement must also comply with the council’s policies and 

regulations such as Contract Procedural Rules and Financial Regulations.  

The main aim is to hold ‘value for money’ as a key goal in all procurement activity to 

optimise the combination of cost and quality and ensure all expenditure is 

appropriate. 

The council has drafted a Land and Property Asset Acquisition Policy to set out the 

principles and rules by which the council will acquire land and property.  The policy, 

when adopted, will inform officers and members when considering the acquisition of 

Page 76

Agenda Item 8



 

15 
 

additional property holdings (land or buildings) to be brought under the control of the 

council. 

 

This policy places emphasis on adopting procedures that are consistent and which 

ensure maximum benefit from the effective acquisition and subsequent management 

of the council’s property whether on a freehold, leasehold or other basis. 

 

13 Performance management  

Clear measurable outcomes will be developed for each capital scheme. After the 

scheme has been completed, the gateway three stage of the Corporate Delivery 

Framework ensures programmes of work are reviewed and all lessons learnt are 

identified to ensure that we are constantly refining and improving the approach we 

take to delivering our work. 

Reviews will look at the effectiveness of the whole project in terms of operational 

delivery outcomes, design and construction, financing etc. and identify good practice 

and lessons to be learnt in delivering future projects.  

14 Risk management  

Risk is the threat that an event or action will adversely affect the council’s ability to 

achieve its desired outcomes and to execute its strategies successfully. 

Risk management is the process of identifying risks, evaluating their potential 

consequences and determining the most effective methods of managing them and/or 

responding to them. It is both a means of minimising the costs and disruption to the 

organisation caused by undesired events and of ensuring that staff understand and 

appreciate the element of risk in all their activities.  

The aim is to reduce the frequency of adverse risk events occurring (where 

possible), minimise the severity of their consequences if they do occur, or to 

consider whether risk can be transferred to other parties.  

To manage risk effectively, the risks associated with each capital project will be 

identified, analysed, and monitored.  

As part of the Corporate Delivery Framework a project dashboard is created for each 

project, this includes the details of project risks and mitigation defined at the 

Gateway 2 stage. 

It is important to identify the appetite for risk by each scheme and for the capital 

programme, especially when investing in capital assets held primarily for financial 

returns. Under the CIPFA Prudential Code these are defined as investments and so 

the key principle of control of risk and optimising returns consistent with the level of 

risk applies.  

Page 77

Agenda Item 8



 

16 
 

Section 151 Officer/Head of Finance will explicitly identify the affordability and risk 

associated with the Capital Strategy. Where appropriate they will consider 

specialised advice to assist in decision making.  

An assessment of risk will therefore be built into every capital project and major risks 

recorded in a Risk Register, before consideration by Council.  

   

Page 78

Agenda Item 8



 

17 
 

Annex A 

Strategy for Flexible use of Capital Receipts 

Purpose 

1. This report reviews the statutory guidance on the flexible use of Capital Receipts 
and its application within this Council. 

Background 

2. Capital receipts can only be used for specific purposes and these are set out in 
Regulation 23 of the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) 
Regulations 2003 made under Section 11 of the Local Government Act 2003. The 
main permitted purpose is to fund capital expenditure but the use of capital receipts 
to support revenue expenditure is not permitted by these regulations. 

3. The Secretary of State is empowered to issue Directions allowing expenditure 
incurred by local authorities to be treated as capital expenditure. Where such a 
direction is made, the specified expenditure can then be funded from capital receipts 
under these Regulations. 

4. The Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government has issued 
guidance in March 2016, giving local authorities greater freedoms with how capital 
receipts can be used to finance expenditure. This Direction allows for the following 
expenditure to be treated as capital, 

“expenditure on any project that is designed to generate ongoing revenue savings in 
the delivery of public services and/or transform service delivery to reduce costs 
and/or transform service delivery in a way that reduces costs or demand for services 
in future years for any of the public sector delivery partners.” 

5. In order to comply with this Direction, the Council must consider the Statutory 
Guidance issued by the Secretary of State. This Guidance requires authorities to 
prepare, publish and maintain a Flexible Use of Capital Receipts Strategy with the 
initial strategy being effective from 1 April 2016 with future Strategies included within 
future Annual Budget documents. 

6. There is no prescribed format for the Strategy, the underlying principle is to 
support local authorities to deliver more efficient and sustainable services by 
extending the use of capital receipts to support the revenue costs of reform projects. 

7. The Statutory Guidance for the Flexible Use of Capital Receipts Strategy states 
that the Strategy should include a list of each project which plans to make use of the 
capital receipts flexibility. The Strategy should also include the impact of this 
flexibility on the affordability of borrowing by including updated Prudential Indicators. 

Page 79

Agenda Item 8



 

18 
 

                                                                                                    

Flexible Use of Capital Receipts Strategy 

8. Government has provided a definition of expenditure which qualifies to be funded 
from capital receipts. This is: 

“Qualifying expenditure is expenditure on any project that is designed to generate 
ongoing revenue savings in the delivery of public services and/or transform service 
delivery to reduce costs and/or transform service delivery in a way that reduces 
costs or demand for services in future years for any of the public sector delivery 
partners. Within this definition, it is for individual local authorities to decide whether 
or not a project qualifies for the flexibility.” 

9. The council intends to use the following use of capital receipts to fund 
transformation projects as follows: 

Project 

Description  

2022/23 

£000 

2023/24 

£000 

2024/25 

£000 

2025/26 

£000 

2026/27 

£000 

Five 

Councils’ 

Partnership 

0 0 150 1,350 0 

Total  0 0 150 1,350 0 

 

11. The Council will revisit the use of capital receipts to fund projects during the 

financial year if further opportunities arise for consideration.  

                                                                                                       

Impact on Prudential Indicators 

12. The guidance requires that the impact on the Council’s Prudential Indicators 

should be considered when preparing a Flexible Use of Capital Receipts Strategy. 

13. The key indicator that is impacted by this strategy is the “Estimates of Capital 

Expenditure Indicator”, which will reflect the £1,500,000 over the five financial years. 

 

Page 80

Agenda Item 8



 

 

Report to:   

Cabinet  

Scrutiny Committee  

Council 

Report of Head of Finance 

Author: Simon Hewings 

Tel: 01235 422499 

E-mail: Simon.Hewings@southandvale.gov.uk  

Cabinet Member responsible: Leigh Rawlins 

Tel: 01189 722565 

E-mail: Leigh.Rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk  

To: CABINET                                                              3 February 2022 
To: SCRUTINY COMMITTEE                                     7 February 2022 
To: COUNCIL                                                            17 February 2022 
 

 

 

Revenue Budget 2022/23 and Capital 

Programme to 2026/27 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. That Cabinet recommends to Council that it: 

a. sets the revenue budget for 2022/23 as set out in appendix A.1 to this report, 

b. approves the capital programme for 2022/23 to 2026/27 as set out in appendix 
D.1 to this report, together with the capital programme changes as set out in 
appendix D.2 and Appendix D.3 to this report, 

c. sets the council’s prudential limits as listed in appendix E to this report, 

d. approves the medium-term financial plan to 2026/27 as set out in appendix F to 
this report,  

e. allocates £500,000 to fund the Communities Capital and Revenue grant scheme, 

f. asks officers to review the Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) following the 
announcement by the Secretary of State for Levelling Up, Housing and 
Communities (DLUHC) of changes to the council’s future funding streams 

2. That Cabinet agrees that the cabinet member for finance, in conjunction with the 
head of finance, may make minor adjustments to this report and the prudential 
indicators should they prove necessary prior to its submission to Council on 17 
February 2022. 

 

 

 
Page 81

Agenda Item 9

mailto:Leigh.Rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk


 

 

Purpose of report 

1. This report: 

 brings together all relevant information to allow Cabinet to recommend to Council 
a revenue budget for 2022/23 and a capital programme for 2022/23 to 2026/27; 

 recommends the prudential indicators to be set by the council in accordance with 
‘the Prudential Code’ introduced as part of the Local Government Act 2003; 

 contains the opinion of the council’s chief financial officer on the robustness of 
estimates and adequacy of the council’s financial reserves; 

 contains the Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP) which provides details of the 
forward budget model for the next five years. 

Strategic objectives 

2. The allocation of financial resources within the revenue and capital budgets needs to 
match the objectives agreed by the council. 

Revenue budget setting 2022/23  

Background 

3. The revenue budget for 2021/22 agreed by Council in February 2021 was balanced by 
a significant draw on revenue reserves of £4.3 million.  Whilst this draw reflected an 
anticipated increase in net costs due to the Coronavirus pandemic, a significant draw 
was anticipated to be required from reserves across all years of the Medium-Term 
Financial Plan (MTFP) and was predicted to be in excess of £5 million by 2025/26.   

4. As noted in the budget setting report, this use of reserves was considered manageable 
in the period covered by the MTFP (in light of the reserves and balances available to the 
council and the council’s ability to vary budgets and redirect funding) but was not 
considered sustainable over the medium and long term.  

5. The use of reserves highlighted in the February 2021 budget setting report, and the 
need to address them, was also highlighted by the council’s external auditor, EY when 
they addressed Joint Audit and Governance Committee (JAGC) in July 2021.  Kevin 
Suter, Associate Partner, in addressing JAGC members, advised that: 

“What I am flagging here is I need to be assured next year that those decisions are at 
least being prepared or considered in order to reduce that budget gap over time and 
before the councils, and this will apply to both South Oxfordshire and Vale of White 
Horse, before they get to a position where a S114 notice would be required because 
those reserves have been diminished to such a level.”  

6. Over the summer officers discussed the budget situation informally with cabinet 
members to agree an approach to the 2022/23 budget setting round that would continue 
to address the financial challenges facing the council.  Those discussions highlighted 
that, whilst a comparatively low-cost council, South Oxfordshire’s revenue situation was 
affected by a number of key issues: 

Page 82

Agenda Item 9



 

 

 The council’s Band D Council Tax of £131.24 in 2021/22 is the eighth lowest in the 
country for a shire district council and is well below the national average of 
£198.96, 

 The council had, unlike other councils, not benefitted from the business rates 
retention scheme, 

 The council had benefitted from the “New Homes Bonus” funding stream but that 
was under review by government and was expected to be less generous in the 
future. 

7. The approach to budget setting agreed with cabinet members for 2022/23 was that 
officers would undertake a thorough review of the base budget and, subject to what that 
process could achieve, a more managed approach to the use of reserves in future years 
would be adopted.   

Revenue base budget setting 2022/23 

8. The starting point for building the council’s base budget 2022/23 is the 2021/22 base 
service budgets for service teams of £20,308,245.  This has then been updated for the 
following: 

 opening budget adjustments, including the removal of one-off growth items relating 
to 2021/22 

 addition of  

- inflation, salary increments and other salary adjustments 

- essential growth 

 removal of costs relating to  

- base budget savings. 

9. In the MTFP agreed as part of the budget setting in February 2021, the base budget for 
2022/23 was estimated to be £18,271,813.  This included an estimate for inflationary 
pressure and essential growth.  

10. Base budgets for 2022/23 have been constructed by heads of service and budget 
holders supported by finance business partners from the Strategic Finance Team.  
They have been scrutinised through a “base budget challenge” exercise undertaken by 
the Interim Head of Policy and Programmes and the Head of Finance supported by 
project accountants from the Strategic Finance Team.  The challenge exercise, which 
took place during October and November focussed on the following key areas: 

 Identification and removal of all surplus budgets and consolidation of one 
corporate contingency budget, 

 Ensuring that all discretionary fees and charges increase by a minimum of five per 
cent to ensure all costs are recovered, 

 Centralisation of certain budgets e.g. property, legal and IT to enable better 
financial control.  

Page 83

Agenda Item 9



 

 

Officers have also engaged with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Local Government Association (LGA) to benchmark the 
cost of services provided by the council. 

Revenue budget 2022/23  

Budget composition 2022/23   

11. Appendix A.1 summarises the movements in the base budget from £20,308,245 in 
2021/22 to £16,271,079 in 2022/23. These movements are detailed below. 

12.  Opening budget adjustment reduction (£3,028,930) (appendix A.2).  This includes 
the removal of one-off growth items relating to previous years’ budgets.     

13. Additions to the base budget: 

 inflation, salary increments and other salary adjustments £596,821 (appendix 
A.3).  For all employees an increase in salary of 1.9 per cent is budgeted for 
2022/23.  Increments payable to council employees not at the top of their salary 
range total £135,553.  Other salary adjustments represent a cost of £227,615. 

 essential growth – one-off £298,674 and ongoing £887,227 (appendix A.4), 
these items comprise additional expenditure items, and reductions in income, which 
have been identified by officers as unavoidable and reflect changes that have 
occurred in the current year or which are known will happen in 2022/23.  Given the 
value of these additional essential growth items they have been scrutinised during 
the base budget challenge.   

14. Deductions from the base budget:  

 base budget reductions £2,471,182, (appendix A.5) These base budget savings 
are reductions in costs identified by officers which may be the result of more 
efficient working or previously agreed policy decisions, cost reductions outside of 
the council’s control, increases in income, or correction to budgets. 

One of the most significant reductions is in respect of the costs of the Local Plan.  
Local plan costs fluctuate significantly from year to year depending on at what stage 
the council is in the local plan process.  Officers intend to manage this going 
forward by creating a separate reserve, to which the council will make a fixed 
annual contribution, to pay for the non-staffing costs of the local plan to manage 
these fluctuations.  It is also proposed that the underspend on these costs at the 
end of 2021/22 will be added to this reserve. 

 increase in managed vacancy factor £219,776. The council has previously 
operated a managed vacancy factor level of four per cent i.e. it anticipates only 
spending 96 per cent of the employee budget due to, for example, in year 
vacancies.  Officers have concluded that this can be increased to five per cent. 

 In year savings target £300,000.  In undertaking the base budget challenge 
exercise, officers consider that there is further potential to realise further savings 
from the base budgets from future exercises.  The following areas have been 
identified as initial areas for review: 

 
- Development management, 

Page 84

Agenda Item 9



 

 

 
- Front of house, 

- Grounds maintenance. 

15. Realising the level of base budget savings identified above is not without risk and 
budgets that could have withstood potential in year service pressures have been 
removed.  In mitigation, officers feel it appropriate to increase the contingency 
budget from its previous base level of £200,000 to £400,000.  (Note that the 
contingency budget was increased for 2021/22 for one-year only from £200,000 to 
£1,100,000 due to the Coronavirus pandemic). 

16. As a result of these changes the council’s revised base budget for 2022/23 is 
£16,271,079 some £4,037,166 less than that set in 2021/22.  This decrease is due to 
the removal of prior year one off budgets and savings identified during the budget 
challenge. 

Revenue growth 

17. Revenue growth of £612,500 has been included in the budget for 2022/23.  This is 
detailed in appendix B.1 and reflects the following.   

 The ongoing increase in employer National Insurance costs which commences in 
2022/23, government funding for which has now been confirmed to be in the 
settlement, 

 One-off funding, totalling £500,000, to fund activity in support of the following 
corporate plan priorities: 

o Climate action, 

o Nature recovery, and 

o Community well-being. 

 A one-off increase in the budget to fund transformation activities, to be funded 
from the projected underspend in 2021/22.  Transformation activities are 
discussed later in this report. 

Revenue savings 

18. Savings proposals relate to an ongoing proposed change in car parking fees has been 
included in the budget for 2022/23.  This is detailed in appendix B.2 and amounts to 
£105,000. 

Borrowing costs 

19. The revised capital programme for 2021/22 to 2025/26 agreed by Council in October 
2021 was funded in part by external borrowing.  Borrowing costs of £101,500, 
reflecting anticipated interest costs, are included in the budget for 2021/22.  

Gross treasury income  

20. Treasury income earned in 2022/23 is currently forecast to be £1,776,730 and will be 
allocated as follows:  

Page 85

Agenda Item 9



 

 

 £1,376,730 to support future revenue budgets; and 

 £400,000 reinvested in financial instruments. 

21. Investment income remains low because of very low interest rates forecast over the 
medium term.  More details of treasury income can be found in the council’s Treasury 
Management Strategy report1. 

22. Including revenue growth and savings, borrowing costs and treasury income results in 
a net expenditure budget for the council of £15,103,349. 

Reserves and other funding  

Transfers from reserves    

23. The proposed transfers to earmarked reserves total £545,890 and reflect: 

 The transfer from reserves of projected treasury income earned in 2021/22 and 
earmarked to support the revenue account in 2022/23 - £1,210,000, 

 The transfer to reserves of treasury income earned in 2022/23 - £1,777,000, 

 The transfer to reserves of the affordable homes element of the New Homes Bonus 
(NHB) payment - £90,160, 

 Other transfers from the revenue grants reserve - £111,270. 

24. Based on the above use of reserves and other funding, the amount of revenue 
expenditure to be financed from government settlement, council tax and unearmarked 
reserves in 2022/23 is £15,649,239 (appendix A.1). 

Funding  

Local government settlement 

25. Following the Spending Review in November 2021, the provisional local government 
settlement for 2022/23 was announced in December 2021.  As with the previous 
year’s settlement, this is for one year only.   

26. Table 1 below details the government’s funding for the council in 2022/23. 

 
  

                                            
1 Considered by Cabinet 3 February 2022, Council 17 February 2022 

Page 86

Agenda Item 9



 

 

Table 1:  provisional local government finance settlement 2022/23 
 

 
 

27. The provisional settlement for 2022/23 is over five per cent lower than 2021/22.  Whilst 
the provisional settlement, at a national level, includes an average increase in “core 
revenue spending power” of 6.8 per cent, council tax income is included in that 
definition and, in calculating the increase, government assumes that council tax will 
increase by the maximum allowed before a referendum is required. As shown in the 
government’s calculations, the council’s core revenue spending power will increase by 
1.1 per cent, reflecting an increasing reliance on council tax income whilst government 
grant funding reduces. 

28. Included within the government’s definition of core revenue spending power is NHB, 
which has become critical to the sustainability of the council’s MTFP. As identified 
above funding has been provisionally announced along with the settlement this year at 
£2,003,256 for 2022/23.   

29. Outside of core revenue spending power, government has also provided additional 
one-off services grant funding.  This amounts to £179,575 and is in addition to lower 
tier services grant funding of £116,848.  

30. At the time of writing this report the final settlement figures had not been received from 
the government.  It is not anticipated that when this information is available it will be 
significantly different to the provisional figures. 

31. In announcing the settlement, the Secretary of State for Levelling Up, Housing and 
Communities stated that: 

“Government is committed to ensuring that funding allocations for councils are based 
on an up-to-date assessment of their needs and resources. The data used to assess 
this has not been updated in a number of years, dating from 2013-14 to a large 
degree, and even as far back as 2000. Over the coming months, we will work closely 
with the sector and other stakeholders to update this and to look at the challenges and 
opportunities facing the sector before consulting on any potential changes. 

As part of this we will look at options to support local authorities through transitional 
protection. Councils should note the one-off 2022/23 Services Grant provided in the 

Provisional

Settlement

£

Business rates retention scheme (2,604,892)

Revenue Support Grant (377)

Indexation (214,029)

NDR at safety net 195,367

Settlement Funding Assessment (2,623,931)

Other funding

New Homes Bonus (2,003,256)

Rural Services Delivery Grant (44,314)

Lower tier services grant (116,848)

22/23 services grant (179,575)

Grand total (4,967,924)

Page 87

Agenda Item 9



 

 

Local Government Finance Settlement in 2022/23 will be excluded from potential 
transitional protections.” 

32. For budget setting purposes it has been assumed that the council’s “core revenue 
spending power” will remain constant during the period covered by the MTFP period.  
It is conceivable that this may be too optimistic an approach, or indeed too pessimistic.  
Unlike a number of other district councils for whom core revenue spending power had 
not changed in the last two settlements, this council has seen small increases over 
that period.  Officers therefore consider it prudent to project core revenue spending 
power being maintained over the MTFP period.   

33. The actual funding generated in future years will depend on the outcome of the review 
of the retained business rates scheme which will include changes to: 
 

 The percentage of business rates growth is retained by the different tiers of local 
government,  
 

 the baseline in accordance with the fair funding review, 
 

together with the outcome of the review of NHB. 
 

34. Business rates retained by the council as planning authority relating to facilities 
generating renewable energy within the district is estimated at £76,894 (MTFP row 54). 

 
Collection fund 

35. The surplus on the collection fund is estimated in 2022/23 to be £275,396.  
 
Use of reserves 

 
36. The difference between expenditure requirement and the funding available is 

smoothed over the medium-term financial plan by transfers to and from the general 
fund balance.  The net impact of these budget proposals is a draw on reserves of 
£2,107,799 in 2022/23.  This is considerably lower than the £4.3 million required to 
balance the revenue budget in 2021/22.  Its is also lower than the £3,564,356 that, 
when the 2021/22 budget was set, was the estimated draw on reserves required for 
2022/23.   

Cabinet member for finance’s revenue budget proposal 

37. Based on the amendments detailed above, and as shown in appendix A.1 of this 
report, the cabinet member’s budget proposal, including growth, is for a net revenue 
budget of £15,103,349.  This revenue budget as proposed would result in an increase 
of £5.00 to current band “D” council tax to £136.24.   

38. Appendix C shows the breakdown of the revenue budget.   

  

Page 88

Agenda Item 9



 

 

Capital programme 2022/23 to 2026/27 

Current capital programme 

39. The latest capital programme (before growth) is attached at appendix D.1 and is 
summarised in table 2 below.  It is the capital programme as set by Council in February 
2021 plus: - 

 slippage (caused by delays to projects) carried forward from 2020/21, 

 new schemes approved by Council during 2021/22, 

 re-profiling of expenditure on schemes from the 2021/22 financial year to future 
years where delays to schemes have occurred, 

 cabinet approved movement of schemes from the provisional to the approved capital 
programme, 

 the deletion of previously agreed schemes that have completed or are no longer 
being pursued at this time in their original form. 

40. A number of existing schemes have been identified as being available to be funded 
from the council’s share of Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). £296,000 has been 
allocated the following existing schemes in the provisional programme:- 

 Abbey Sports Centre Artificial Turf Pitch 

 Park Leisure Centre Roof Lights 

 Thame Leisure Centre Combined Heat and Power Unit 

41. The capital programme also includes CIL receipts that are payable to Oxfordshire 
County Council and Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group. 

Cabinet capital programme proposals 

42. Appendix D.2 contains a list of capital schemes that are being recommended for 
inclusion and amendment in the capital programme. Appendix D.3 contains a further 
list of proposals that will be funded from CIL and Section 106 receipts. Officers will 
amend the provisional capital programme to include the proposals if approved by 
Cabinet and Council. 

 
Financing the capital programme 

43. Where permitted, capital expenditure is funded in the first instance from specific 
government grants, earmarked reserves and other external contributions.  The 
balance of the programme is funded from the council’s capital receipts reserve. 

44. Table 2 contains a schedule showing the current and proposed capital programme 
and how it will be financed, including the growth proposals, if they are approved.  The 
total planned capital expenditure is £73.973 million over five years. 

45. The council’s usable capital receipts, based on current estimates, are expected to be 
£4.26 million by the end of 2026/27.  In addition, future asset sales and realisation of 

Page 89

Agenda Item 9



 

 

capital receipts are anticipated to be generated via implementation of the Strategic 
Property Review. 

Table 2: current and proposed capital programme with financing 

 

Future pressures on the capital programme 

46. Table 2 also shows the use of council resources to fund the capital programme.  
Officers advise Cabinet not to earmark all available resources in proposing the budget 
to Council, as the prudential code requires local authorities to set sustainable budgets.  
By retaining unallocated balances, Cabinet can demonstrate that through a 
combination of this and future income (that can be expected beyond the period of the 
budget) it can fund future pressures. 

47. In terms of future capital spending, Cabinet has indicated that it would like to prioritise 
spending to support the following corporate plan priorities: 

 Climate action, 

 Nature recovery,  

 Homes and infrastructure. 

The prudential code and prudential indicators 

48. In setting its revenue and capital budgets for 2022/23, the council must agree 
prudential indicators in accordance with the prudential code (see below).  When 
recommending its budgets to Council, Cabinet must also recommend the prudential 
indicators.   

49. From 1 April 2004, government control of local authorities’ borrowing was abolished 
and replaced by a prudential system of self-regulation.  Authorities are able to borrow 
based on need and affordability, which they demonstrate through compliance with the 
prudential code developed by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) and given statutory force by government regulation. 

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 GRAND

latest

estimate

estimate estimate estimate estimate estimate TOTAL

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Capital programme before growth

- approved 8,845 16,528 11,802 9,791 1,782 1,782 50,530

- provisional 2,115 10,570 625 652 626 626 15,214

10,960 27,098 12,427 10,443 2,408 2,408 65,744

Capital growth proposals (Appendix D.2) 0 827 115 105 105 105 1,256

Capital growth proposals externally funded (Appendix D.3) 0 5,474 1,500 0 0 0 6,974

Total expenditure 10,960 33,399 14,042 10,548 2,513 2,513 73,973

Financing

Grant funding 2,343 5,183 1,518 1,518 1,518 1,518 13,598

Developers' contributions/CIL 5,672 13,185 1,500 0 0 0 20,357

Borrowing 0 5,000 10,000 0 0 0 15,000

Usable capital receipts/revenue reserves 2,945 10,031 1,024 9,030 995 995 25,019

Total financing 10,960 33,399 14,042 10,548 2,513 2,513 73,973

Estimated balances as at 31 March 2027 (excluding amounts ring-fenced as part of the the MTFS)

Usable capital receipts 4,251

General fund balance 18,375

New homes bonus:

Unringfenced 0

Affordable homes 1,822

Page 90

Agenda Item 9



 

 

50. The key objectives of the prudential code are to ensure that the capital investment 
plans of the authority are affordable, prudent and sustainable.  To demonstrate that 
authorities have had regard to these objectives, the prudential code sets out a number 
of indicators that must be considered covering five distinct areas – capital expenditure, 
affordability, prudence, external debt and treasury management.  Council must approve 
the indicators through the budget process before 1 April each year, but they can be 
revised during the year if required.  

51. The key indicators that will drive the capital budget decision making process will be 
those concerning long term affordability, as these measure the impact of capital 
investment decisions on the overall revenue budget and in particular the precept 
against the collection fund. 

52. In setting or revising the prudential indicators the council is required to have regard to: 

 affordability e.g. implications for the precept 

 prudence and sustainability e.g. implications for external borrowing 

 value for money e.g. option appraisal 

 stewardship of assets e.g. asset management planning 

 service objectives e.g. strategic planning for the council 

 Practicality e.g. achievability of the forward plan.  

53. Under the code, the head of finance as chief finance officer is responsible for ensuring 
that the council considers all relevant matters when setting or revising indicators 
through a report.  The head of finance is also required to establish procedures to 
monitor performance against all forward-looking indicators; and report upon any 
significant deviations from forward forecasts with proposed actions. 

54. Appendix E contains the recommended prudential indicators, which have been 
calculated based on the budget proposals.  The head of finance is satisfied that these 
indicators show that the council’s capital investment plans are affordable, prudent and 
sustainable. 

The Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP) 

55. The MTFP provides a forward budget model for the next five years. Appendix F 
contains the MTFP for 2022/23 to 2026/27.  This is a projection of the revenue budget 
up to 31 March 2027.  As identified above it assumes that core revenue spending 
power will remain unchanged over the MTFP period.  It also incorporates assumptions 
on interest income and other predictable pressures on the council, such as inflation and 
salary increments. 

56. Included within the MTFP is an estimate of costs associated with the exit and service 
transformation required when the Five Councils Partnership contract ends in 
September 2025.  It is proposed that the council will, as allowed under the rules for the 
flexible use of capital receipts, fund these costs, anticipated at this time to be around 
£1.5 million, from those receipts.    

57. As a result of the work undertaken through the budget challenge process, the future 
projections represent a significantly improved position as compared to that estimated 
in previous years.  Whilst in all financial years revenue expenditure exceeds revenue 
income, and there is an increasing draw on reserves to balance the budget, the annual 

Page 91

Agenda Item 9



 

 

draw on reserves is significantly lower than previously forecast and reflects the budget 
strategy agreed by Cabinet.  Based on these latest estimates, revenue reserves are 
sufficient to set a balanced budget across the MTFP period to 2026/27 and beyond the 
end of that period, but not indefinitely. 

58. Government have confirmed that details regarding the spending review will be brought 
forward within the current parliamentary term.   

Table 3: use of reserves during MTFP period to balance the revenue budget 

 

59. The council’s MTFS states that the council will hold £50 million of investments of which 
up to £35 million can be invested in capital schemes that will produce a return of 
certainty.  The remaining balance can be invested in treasury investments.  Whilst the 
treasury investments may in some cases be capable of being realised, investment in 
capital schemes is not capable of being realised.  Such principles will need to be 
reviewed and potentially adjusted in accordance with the level of future government 
funding. 

60. As at 31 March 2027 the council is currently projected to have invested or earmarked 
at least £30 million of the £35 million permitted in capital schemes, including an 
ongoing £15 million loan to South Oxfordshire Housing Association.  A further £15 
million has been invested in long term financial instruments.  

61. Excluding the £50 million investment, the council is projected to hold £18.3 million of 
general revenue balances and £7.7 million earmarked revenue reserves as at 31 
March 2027.   

Communities Capital and Revenue Grant Scheme 

62. On an annual basis, the council has considered the amount to be made available for 
the Community Capital Grant Scheme. From 2018/19, some of this funding has been 
allocated to revenue projects.  The council is asked to consider the amount to be made 
available for the Community Capital and Revenue Scheme and it is recommended that 
a grants budget of £500,000 be set for 2022/23 comprising: 

 £180,000 for individual councillor grants, 

 £320,000 for the communities’ capital grants scheme. 

Any underspend on the individual councillor grants will be available to fund     additional 
spend on the communities’ capital grants scheme. 

 

Financial Use of revenue Use of capital

year reserves receipts

£000 £000

2022/23 2,137 0 

2023/24 1,752 0 

2024/25 1,965 150 

2025/26 2,316 1,350 

2026/27 3,018 0 

Total 11,189                1,500                  

Page 92

Agenda Item 9



 

 

The robustness of the estimates and the adequacy of reserves  

63. The Local Government Act 2003 places a duty on the chief finance officer (i.e. the head 
of finance) to report on the robustness of the estimates and the adequacy of reserves.  
The council must have regard to this report when making decisions about the setting of 
the budget. 

64. The construction of the budget has been managed by qualified accountants and as 
identified above, has this year been subject to significant challenge both by strategic 
management team and cabinet members.   

65. An informal cabinet update on December 17 2021 noted an interim report on progress 
with on budget setting.  A detailed informal briefing on this budget proposal was given 
to the council’s scrutiny committee members on 7 February 2022.  This session was 
open to all councillors. 

66. In view of the process undertaken and his own knowledge of the budget, the head of 
finance is satisfied that the budget for 2022/23 is both prudent and robust.   However, 
as demonstrated above and based on current assumptions, revenue expenditure 
exceeds revenue income in all years of the MTFP.  Whilst the council’s revenue 
reserves are sufficient to cover that gap over the MTFP period and beyond, the 
ongoing budget gap, whilst much reduced, still needs to be addressed.  The Head of 
Finance is satisfied, based on their knowledge of the current work to deliver the long 
term transformation programme, that there is strong member and officer commitment 
to achieve this.   

67. The transformation activity, which was first agreed in the 2020/21 budget and forms 
part of the corporate plan delivery activity, is central to the council’s efforts to tackle 
the ongoing budget gap.  This work, whilst progressing, has been impacted by the 
pandemic.  However, officers are now working on defining more closely the scope and 
remit of this work, which is anticipated progress at pace in 2022/23 and will benefit 
from the additional £250,000 being proposed in this budget and funded from the 
projected 2021/22 underspend. 

68. It is anticipated that a dedicated team of officers, supported by external consultants as 
appropriate, will drive and programme manage the delivery of the transformation work, 
which will be focussed initially on the following areas that have been identified in 
discussions between officers and cabinet members: 

 Implementation of the IT strategy, 

 Customer services including front of house, 

 Strategic property review and implementation of the corporate landlord model, 

 Development management, 

 Grounds maintenance. 

69. Further details on this work will be presented to cabinet as they progress in 
accordance with the council’s democratic process.   

70. The head of finance’s full report will be available at full Council. 

 
Page 93

Agenda Item 9



 

 

Climate and ecological impact implications 

71. Agreement of the revenue budget for 2022/23 and capital programme to 2026/27 
agrees the allocation of funding to support the council’s corporate objectives, including 
the objectives of Protect and Restore our Natural World and Action on the Climate 
Emergency, for which revenue growth has been included. 

Legal Implications 

72. The Cabinet needs to make recommendations to Council on its spending proposals.  
Under the Local Government Act 2000 it is Council that must agree the revenue and 
capital spending plans, and then set the council tax.  Council will meet on 17 February 
2022 in order to set the budget, and the council tax (including amounts set by 
Oxfordshire County Council and the Police and Crime Commissioner for the Thames 
Valley). 

73. The requirement placed on the council by the Local Government Act 2003 to set 
prudential indicators and for the chief finance officer to make a report to the authority 
on the robustness of the estimates and the adequacy of reserves are addressed within 
the body of this report. 

Other Implications 

74. Agreement of the revenue and capital budgets authorises expenditure in accordance 
with the council’s delegated powers and financial procedure rules.  The officer, 
councillor or councillor body taking those decisions will take into account the human 
resources, sustainability and equality and diversity implications of individual spending 
decisions. 

Conclusion 

75. This report provides details of the revenue base budget for 2022/23, the capital 
programme 2022/23 to 2026/27, government grants (the settlement), uncommitted 
reserves and balances, the cabinet member for finance’s budget proposals and the 
resulting prudential indicators.    

76. In light of the information provided Cabinet must make a number of recommendations 
to Council regarding the revenue budget, the capital programme and the prudential 
indicators. 

  

Page 94

Agenda Item 9



 

 

Appendices 

Appendix A.1 Revenue budget 2022/23 
Appendix A.2 Opening budget adjustments 
Appendix A.3 Inflation, salary increments and other salary adjustments  
Appendix A.4 Essential growth 
Appendix A.5 Base budget savings 
Appendix A.6  Revenue contingency 
Appendix B Budgeted corporate plan activity 
Appendix C Service budget analysis 
Appendix D.1 Capital programme before growth 
Appendix D.2 Capital growth bids 
Appendix D.3 Capital growth bids funded by CIL 
Appendix E Prudential indicators 
Appendix F Medium term financial plan 
  

Background Papers 

Provisional settlement figures (December 2021) 
Council tax base 2022/23 – Cabinet 2 December 2021, Council 9 December 2021 
Treasury management strategy – Cabinet 3 February 2022, Council 17 February 2021 
 

Page 95

Agenda Item 9



Appendix A.1
South Oxfordshire DC - revenue budget summary 2022/23

2021/22 2022/23
Budget Budget Appendix Ref:

Opening base budget 2020/21 20,308,245
Revisions to base budget

Opening budget adjustments (3,028,930) Appendix A.2
Inflation, salary increments and adjustments 596,821 Appendix A.3
Essential growth - one-off 298,674
Essential growth - ongoing 887,227
Base budget savings (2,471,182) Appendix A.5
Movement in revenue contingency 200,000
Movement in managed vacancy factor (219,776)

Total base budget after revisions 20,308,245 16,271,079

Growth proposals
Revenue - one-off 500,000
Revenue - ongoing 112,500

Savings proposals (105,000) Appendix B.2

Borrowing costs 0 101,500
Gross treasury income (1,846,610) (1,776,730)
Net expenditure 18,461,635 15,103,349 #REF!

Funding
(Funding from reserves)/Contribution to reserves (4,381,172) (1,561,909)
Funding from government grants and council tax (14,080,462) (13,541,440)

Total Funding (18,461,635) (15,103,349)

Council tax yield required 7,765,628 8,221,226

Appendix A.4

Appendix B.1

1

Page 96

Agenda Item 9



Appendix A.2

South Oxfordshire DC - 2022/23 budget build changes
Opening budget adjustments

Year of bid Summary

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27
£ £ £ £ £

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT TEAM
2020/21 Additional funding for transformation activities (317,000) (317,000) (317,000) (317,000) (317,000)

(317,000) (317,000) (317,000) (317,000) (317,000)

CORPORATE SERVICES
2014/15 Bi-annual residents survey (24,000) 0 (24,000) 0 (24,000)
2020/21 Review of costs and income at Cornerstone (73,122) (73,122) (73,122) (73,122) (73,122)
2021/22 Contract extension of two communications officers (44,009) (44,009) (44,009) (44,009) (44,009)
2021/22 Budget reduction pending grants policy review 85,289 85,289 85,289 85,289 85,289

(55,842) (31,842) (55,842) (31,842) (55,842)

DEVELOPMENT & REGENERATION
2019/20 Lease of 135 and car parking (20,000) (40,000) (40,000) (40,000) (40,000)
2019/20 Rent of 135 - Vale contribution 157,500 315,000 315,000 315,000 315,000
2019/20 Rental of 135 ceases in 2022 (322,500) (645,000) (645,000) (645,000) (645,000)
2020/21 Repairs & maintenance to HQ (10,000) (10,000) (10,000) (10,000) (10,000)
2020/21 Rent for 135 Milton Park (14,782) (29,565) (29,565) (29,565) (29,565)
2020/21 No longer receiving rent for the data centre (5,134) (10,268) (10,268) (10,268) (10,268)
2021/22 Additional resources for property team (54,718) (54,718) (54,718) (54,718) (54,718)
2021/22 Increase maintenance budget/NNDR for 135 0 (65,343) (65,343) (65,343) (65,343)
2021/22 Additional resources for property team (131,800) (131,800) (131,800) (131,800) (131,800)

(401,434) (671,694) (671,694) (671,694) (671,694)

FINANCE
2020/21 Reduction in income from overpaid HB debtors 30,469 50,688 57,105 57,105 57,105

30,469 50,688 57,105 57,105 57,105

Spending profile

Appendix A.2 Opening Budget Adjustments - South 2022-23 1 09/12/2021, 10:56

P
age 97

A
genda Item

 9



Appendix A.2

South Oxfordshire DC - 2022/23 budget build changes
Opening budget adjustments

Year of bid Summary

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27
£ £ £ £ £

Spending profile

HOUSING & ENVIRONMENT
2020/21 NNDR on public conveniences (9,800) (9,800) (9,800) (9,800) (9,800)
2020/21 Homelessness prevention/supported accommodation (101,824) (101,824) (101,824) (101,824) (101,824)
2020/21 Additional resource for waste contract re-tender 2,000 2,000 (33,843) (33,843) (33,843)
2021/22 Temporary increase in Env/Housing officers (72,678) (170,266) (170,266) (170,266) (170,266)
2021/22 Additional waste technical officer 0 0 0 (20,070) (20,070)
2021/22 Domestic abuse service budget shortfall (10,625) (10,625) (10,625) (10,625) (10,625)

(192,927) (290,515) (326,358) (346,428) (346,428)
LEGAL &  DEMOCRATIC
2018/19 District and parish election 50,000 100,000 0 0 50,000
2020/21 Storage costs for election equipment 0 (5,000) (5,000) (5,000) (5,000)
2020/21 District/parish elections 0 40,000 0 0 0

50,000 135,000 (5,000) (5,000) 45,000

PARTNERSHIPS
2017/18 Corporate contract savings (87,923) (87,923) (87,923) (87,923) (87,923)
2018/19 Additional costs 5CP from renegotiation 54,000 54,000 54,000 54,000 54,000
2020/21 Reprofiling of Capita 5CP costs (135,515) (542,061) (542,061) (542,061) (542,061)
2021/22 Growth Board contribution Oxfordshire Plan 0 (60,000) (60,000) (60,000) (60,000)

(169,438) (635,984) (635,984) (635,984) (635,984)
PLANNING
2019/20 Local plan (25,000) (25,000) (25,000) (25,000) (25,000)
2020/21 Cost of new local plan 205,000 205,000 205,000 205,000 205,000
2020/21 Reduction in planning fees (100,178) (200,356) (200,356) (200,356) (200,356)
2020/21 Development management posts not recruited due to fewer applications 38,319 76,319 76,319 76,319 76,319
2020/21 Development Income to return to 2017/18 levels by end of MTFP period 0 0 (50,000) (50,000) (50,000)
2021/22 Funding for potential challenges to Local Plan (250,000) (250,000) (250,000) (250,000) (250,000)

(131,859) (194,037) (244,037) (244,037) (244,037)

Appendix A.2 Opening Budget Adjustments - South 2022-23 2 09/12/2021, 10:56

P
age 98

A
genda Item

 9



Appendix A.2

South Oxfordshire DC - 2022/23 budget build changes
Opening budget adjustments

Year of bid Summary

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27
£ £ £ £ £

Spending profile

POLICY & PROGRAMMES
2021/22 Extension of climate change lead post (15,899) (15,899) (15,899) (15,899) (15,899)

(15,899) (15,899) (15,899) (15,899) (15,899)

ALL SERVICES
2021/22 Income losses due to Covid-19 (925,000) (925,000) (925,000) (925,000) (925,000)
2021/22 Additional contingency budget for Covid-19 (900,000) (900,000) (900,000) (900,000) (900,000)

(1,825,000) (1,825,000) (1,825,000) (1,825,000) (1,825,000)

(3,028,930) (3,796,283) (4,039,709) (4,035,779) (4,009,779)GRAND TOTAL

Appendix A.2 Opening Budget Adjustments - South 2022-23 3 09/12/2021, 10:56

P
age 99

A
genda Item

 9



Appendix A.3

South Oxfordshire DC - 2022/23 budget build changes
Inflation, salary increments and other salary adjustments

Summary

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27
£ £ £ £ £

ALL SERVICES
Salary inflation 204,680                413,453     626,401         843,609         1,065,161      
Salary increments 135,553                273,817     414,846         558,696         705,423         
Other salary adjustments 227,615                232,168     236,811         241,547         246,378         
Other net inflation 28,973                 86,920       147,185         175,578         205,722         

596,821                1,006,357  1,425,243      1,819,430      2,222,684      

Spending profile

GRAND TOTAL

1

P
age 100

A
genda Item

 9



Appendix A.4

South Oxfordshire DC - 2022/23 budget build changes
Essential growth

No Title of bid Summary
2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

£ £ £ £ £
STRATEGIC MANAGEMENT TEAM

1 Additional staffing costs Additional ongoing costs resulting from the confirmation of the 
senior management structure

Ongoing 12,435 12,435 12,435 12,435 12,435

12,435 12,435 12,435 12,435 12,435

CORPORATE SERVICES
2 Staff cost re-apportionment Re-apportionment of staffing costs in service to reflect Ongoing 62,931 62,931 62,931 62,931 62,931

62,931 62,931 62,931 62,931 62,931

DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION
3 Leisure facilities Additional costs associated with the council's leisure facilities Ongoing 124,580 124,580 124,580 124,580 124,580

4 Womens Cycle Tour Additional one-off costs associated with hosting the Womens 
Cycle Tour event

One-off 30,000 0 0 0 0

5 Property costs Net one-off expenditure on council property One-off 31,000 7,560 7,560 0 0

6 Office accomodation SODC share of office accomodation on departure from 135MP One-off 123,214 148,214 74,107 0 0

7 Corporate landlord Additional costs associated with the strategic property review 
and the implementation of the corporate landlord model, 
including stock condition serveys

Ongoing 136,673 56,835 56,835 144,794 56,835

445,467 337,189 263,082 269,374 181,415

Spending profile:One-off/ 
Ongoing

P
age 101

A
genda Item

 9



Appendix A.4

South Oxfordshire DC - 2022/23 budget build changes
Essential growth

No Title of bid Summary
2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

£ £ £ £ £

Spending profile:One-off/ 
Ongoing

HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT
8 Business Rates Increase in business rates for council car parks Ongoing 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000

9 Increased waste contract costs 
due to household growth

Increased contract costs to Biffa for waste collection services, 
increased subscribers to the garden waste service not included 
in the base budget

Ongoing 16,000 16,000 16,000 16,000 16,000

10 Loss of income for bulky waste Loss of income for bulky waste Ongoing 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000

11 Homelessness prevention and 
supported accommodation

SODC received Homelessness Support Grant in 2021/22 and it 
is anticipated that this support will be ongoing.  The grant "may 
be used only to prevent and deal with homelessness". It will be 
used to: a) fund supported housing for SODC residents who are 
homeless or at risk of becoming homeless in 2022/23; b) to 
help households secure sustainable accommodation FULLY 
FUNDED

Ongoing 110,918 185,418 185,418 185,418 185,418

12 Additional waste technical 
officers

Linked to the previously approved growth bid (2020/21) for 
tendering of new waste contract. Resource  to collate detailed 
information needed in preparation for retendering the waste 
contract, while still maintaining  current contractors 
performance. Information required includes: audit of litter bin 
provision, review assisted collections list, review Schedule 1 
collections, produce a litter strategy, road indemnities database, 
review communal bin store provision

One-off 25,807 0 0 0 0

13 Grounds maintenance Additional ongoing costs of provision of service Ongoing 48,170 48,170 48,170 48,170 48,170

14 Staff cost re-apportionment Re-apportionment of staffing costs in service to reflect 
workloads

Ongoing 19,056 19,056 19,056 19,056 19,056

239,951 288,644 288,644 288,644 288,644P
age 102

A
genda Item

 9



Appendix A.4

South Oxfordshire DC - 2022/23 budget build changes
Essential growth

No Title of bid Summary
2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

£ £ £ £ £

Spending profile:One-off/ 
Ongoing

LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC
15 Councillors allowances Increased budget to reflect changes in members allowances Ongoing 13,755 13,755 13,755 13,755 13,755

13,755 13,755 13,755 13,755 13,755

PARTNERSHIPS 
16 Five Councils Partnership Provision for additional future costs, relflecting potential 

inflationary and volumetric pressures
Ongoing 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000

17 Five Councils Partnership Costs associated with exit and service transformation One-off 0 0 150,000 1,350,000 0
18 Future Oxfordshire partnership Additional contribution to the Future Oxfordshire Partnership One-off 88,653 88,653 0 0 0

188,653 188,653 250,000 1,450,000 100,000

PLANNING
19 Planning fee income Anticipated reduction in planning fee income Ongoing 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000

200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000
 

POLICY AND PORGRAMMES
20 Corporate Programme Correction to existing budget Ongoing 22,709 22,709 22,709 22,709 22,709

22,709 22,709 22,709 22,709 22,709

1,185,901 1,126,316 1,113,556 2,319,848 881,889TOTAL

P
age 103

A
genda Item

 9



Appendix A.5

South Oxfordshire DC - 2022/23 budget build changes
Base budget savings

Item Summary
2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

£ £ £ £ £
STRATEGIC MANAGEMENT TEAM

1 Recovery of costs for staff time working on multi-council partnerships On-going (51,808) (51,808) (51,808) (51,808) (51,808)

(51,808) (51,808) (51,808) (51,808) (51,808)

CORPORATE SERVICES

2 Reduction in net running costs of Cornerstone On-going (170,836) (170,836) (170,836) (170,836) (170,836)

3 Reduction in publicity and promotion costs On-going (17,500) (17,500) (17,500) (17,500) (17,500)

4 Reduction in corporate consultation costs On-going (36,878) (36,878) (36,878) (36,878) (36,878)

5 Reduction in external grant funding On-going (85,289) (85,289) (85,289) (85,289) (85,289)

6 Reduction in insurance costs following retendering exercise On-going (39,772) (39,772) (39,772) (39,772) (39,772)

7 Reduction in training costs On-going (37,631) (37,631) (37,631) (37,631) (37,631)

8 Other minor savings On-going (32,267) (32,267) (32,267) (32,267) (32,267)

(420,173) (420,173) (420,173) (420,173) (420,173)

DEVELOPMENT & REGENERATION

9 Increase in commercial property rental income On-going (292,731) (292,731) (292,731) (292,731) (292,731)

10 Net reduction in property running costs On-going (49,031) (49,031) (49,031) (49,031) (49,031)

11 Reduction in community centre running costs On-going (56,209) (56,209) (56,209) (56,209) (56,209)

12 Reduction in costs of fees and hired services On-going (76,804) (76,804) (76,804) (76,804) (76,804)

13 Anticipated additional net income from Didcot Gateway regeneration 
schemes

On-going 0 0 78,407 (418,340) (418,340)

14 Other minor savings On-going (35,370) (35,370) (35,370) (35,370) (35,370)

(510,145) (510,145) (431,738) (928,485) (928,485)

 

FINANCE

15 Additional anticipated income from court fees and government grants On-going (47,904) (47,904) (47,904) (47,904) (47,904)

16 Net reduction in housing benefit costs On-going (113,342) (113,342) (113,342) (113,342) (113,342)

17 Other minor savings On-going (18,291) (18,291) (18,291) (18,291) (18,291)

(179,537) (179,537) (179,537) (179,537) (179,537)

 

One-off or 
ongoing?

Spending profile:

P
age 104

A
genda Item

 9



Appendix A.5

South Oxfordshire DC - 2022/23 budget build changes
Base budget savings

Item Summary
2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

£ £ £ £ £

One-off or 
ongoing?

Spending profile:

HOUSING & ENVIRONMENT

18 Reduction in staffing costs as temporary contracts end On-going (91,043) (91,043) (91,043) (91,043) (91,043)

19 Reduction in base waste contract costs On-going (223,719) (223,719) (223,719) (223,719) (223,719)

20 Anticipated increase in recycling credit income On-going (141,950) (141,950) (141,950) (141,950) (141,950)

21 Other minor savings On-going (58,660) (58,660) (58,660) (58,660) (58,660)

(515,372) (515,372) (515,372) (515,372) (515,372)

 

LEGAL SERVICES

22 Minor savings On-going (25,829) (25,829) (25,829) (25,829) (25,829)

(25,829) (25,829) (25,829) (25,829) (25,829)

PARTNERSHIPS

23 Reduction in Five Councils Partnership client team costs On-going (44,294) (44,294) (44,294) (44,294) (44,294)

(44,294) (44,294) (44,294) (44,294) (44,294)

PLANNING

24 Review of salary budgets and recharging to Vale of White Horse DC On-going (219,178) (219,178) (219,178) (219,178) (219,178)

25 Local plan On-going (423,539) (423,539) (423,539) (423,539) (423,539)

26 Other minor savings On-going (81,307) (81,307) (81,307) (81,307) (81,307)

(724,024) (724,024) (724,024) (724,024) (724,024)

 
(2,471,182) (2,471,182) (2,392,775) (2,889,522) (2,889,522)

P
age 105

A
genda Item

 9



Appendix B.1

South Oxfordshire DC - 2022/23 revenue budgets bids 

No Title of bid Summary
2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

£ £ £ £ £
ALL SERVICES

1 National Insurance One year uplift in National Insurance contributions Ongoing South only 112,500 112,500 112,500 112,500 112,500

2 Transformation budget Fully funded increase in budget for transformation activities One-off Joint 250,000 0 0 0 0

2 Transformation budget Funding for increase in transformation activities One-off Joint (250,000) 0 0 0 0

112,500 112,500 112,500 112,500 112,500

CLIMATE ACTION

1 Climate action To fund the accelerating of activity to support retrofit actions contained in the 
Climate Action Plan (CAP), green business fairs in towns, development of 
green construction skills and activity to support car sharing clubs

One-off South only 150,000 0 0 0 0

150,000 0 0 0 0

NATURE RECOVERY

1 Nature recovery To include funding to support tree/hedge planting by towns and parishes, the 
delivery of tiny forests and to accelerate tree planting on council owned land

One-off South only 150,000 0 0 0 0

150,000 0 0 0 0

COMMUNITY WELLBEING

1 Community wellbeing To fund additional activity in accordance with corporate plan priorities.  
Potential projects under discussion - support access and use of blue and green 
natural assets, renovate public toilets, additional deep cleans, children's 
activities, action on litter prevention and funding for active community leisure 
projects

One-off South only 200,000 0 0 0 0

200,000 0 0 0 0

GRAND TOTAL 612,500 112,500 112,500 112,500 112,500

One-off or 
ongoing?

South only or 
joint bid?

Spending profile:

P
age 106

A
genda Item

 9



Appendix B.2
South Oxfordshire DC - 2022/23 Revenue savings

No Summary
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

£ £ £ £ £
DEVELOPMENT & CORPORATE LANDLORD
1 Changes to car parking fees Ongoing (105,000) (105,000) (105,000) (105,000) (105,000)

(105,000) (105,000) (105,000) (105,000) (105,000)

Overall total (105,000) (105,000) (105,000) (105,000) (105,000)

One-off or 
ongoing?

Spending profile:

P
age 107

A
genda Item

 9



Appendix C

South Oxfordshire DC Service budget analysis 2022/23

Final Budget Final Budget
Budget head £ £

Corporate Management Team 851,685
Corporate Services 3,856,085
Development & Regeneration 655,734
Finance 234,450
Housing & Environment 5,676,314
Legal Services 1,118,725
Partnerships 2,696,400
Planning 1,290,676
Policy & Programmes 424,114

Managed Vacancy Factor (738,105)
Contingency 400,000
In year savings target (300,000)
All services - growth 612,500

Net cost of delivering services 16,778,579

Borrowing costs 101,500
Gross treasury income (1,776,730)

Net expenditure 15,103,349

Transfer to reserves
New Homes Bonus 90,160
Interest and dividends 1,776,730

Transfer from reserves
Previous years interest (1,210,000)
Earmarked revenue reserves (111,000)

545,890

Total net revenue budget 15,649,239

1

Page 108

Agenda Item 9



 No. App/Prov Note Costc

2021/22 
Latest 
Budget 
£000

2022/23 
£000

2023/24 
£000

2024/25 
£000

2025/26 
£000

2026/27 
£000

CAPITAL PROGRAMME TO 31 MARCH 2027

SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

APPROVED PROGRAMME

Corporate Services App 827 7,000 10,000 7,796 0 0

Development & Corporate Landlord App 6,842 7,820 109 308 109 109

Finance App 53

Housing & Environment App 1,123 1,708 1,693 1,687 1,673 1,673

TOTAL APPROVED PROGRAMME App 8,845 16,528 11,802 9,791 1,782 1,782

PROVISIONAL PROGRAMME Prov 2,115 10,570 625 652 626 626

GRAND TOTAL Both 10,960 27,098 12,427 10,443 2,408 2,408

Cumulative Total Budget (Approved & Provisional) 65,744

CAPITAL FINANCING

Grants Both 2,343 5,183 1,518 1,518 1,518 1,518

Developers contributions & CIL Both 5,672 7,711 0 0 0 0

Borrowing Both 0 5,000 10,000 0 0 0

Usable capital receipts Both 2,945 9,204 909 8,925 890 890

GRAND TOTAL Both 10,960 27,098 12,427 10,443 2,408 2,408

Capital receipts b/f from previous year 30,770 27,825 18,621 17,712 8,637 6,397

Capital receipts earmarked for transformation funding 150 1,350

Capital receipt balance to c/f 27,825 18,621 17,712 8,637 6,397 5,507

S:\Budget Setting\2022-23\South\Cabinet & Council\Appendix D.1 Capital programme - SOUTH BUDGET 22-23Cap Prog 1

P
age 109

A
genda Item

 9



 No. App/Prov Note Costc

2021/22 
Latest 
Budget 
£000

2022/23 
£000

2023/24 
£000

2024/25 
£000

2025/26 
£000

2026/27 
£000

CAPITAL PROGRAMME TO 31 MARCH 2027

SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Corporate Services

Programmes & Assurance

Didcot Gateway Regeneration Schemes 307 App 2018/19 (4) A307 500 7,000 10,000 7,796

IT Operations

Upgrade GIS 088 App A088 5

IT Infrastructure 251 App 201314 (22) A251 12

CIF Grants App

Capital Grants - 16/17 Delegated Powers App A293 125

Capital Grants - 17/18 Delegated Powers App A306 12

Capital Grants - 18/19 Delegated Powers App A308 69

Capital Grants - 19/20 Delegated Powers App A319 104

827 7,000 10,000 7,796 0 0

S:\Budget Setting\2022-23\South\Cabinet & Council\Appendix D.1 Capital programme - SOUTH BUDGET 22-23Cap Prog 2

P
age 110

A
genda Item

 9



 No. App/Prov Note Costc

2021/22 
Latest 
Budget 
£000

2022/23 
£000

2023/24 
£000

2024/25 
£000

2025/26 
£000

2026/27 
£000

CAPITAL PROGRAMME TO 31 MARCH 2027

SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Development & Corporate Landlord

Property

Operational Property Assets - essential works 326 App 202122 (5) A326 109 109 109 109 109 109

Technical App

Housing Act Works Refurbishment 103 App X170 9

Flood Alleviation 143 App A143 157

Grounds Team Equipment 310 App A310 40

Toilets

Greys Road WC 291 App 2016/17 (7) A291 145

Leisure App

Henley Leisure Centre - spend to save 274 App A274 120

Park Sports Centre - gym equipment 275 App A275 66

Abbey Sports Centre - gym equipment 285 App A285 38

Thame Leisure Centre - gym equipment replacement 287 App A287 1 95

Thame LC Dryside Refurbishment 315 App 2018/19 (dc) A315 9

Sports Hall Floor Berinsfield 318 App 2019/20 (dc) A318 60

Abbey Sports Hall Lighting 324 App s106 A324 7

Didcot Wave Pool Filters 327 App CIL A327 45

DLC reception flooring 328 App s106 A328 5

Henley Leisure Centre sports hall lighting TBC App s106 TBC 11

Didcot Wave Flooring s106 X155 5

Leisure Centre - capital works 078 App 201314 (8) X155 285

S:\Budget Setting\2022-23\South\Cabinet & Council\Appendix D.1 Capital programme - SOUTH BUDGET 22-23Cap Prog 3

P
age 111

A
genda Item

 9



 No. App/Prov Note Costc

2021/22 
Latest 
Budget 
£000

2022/23 
£000

2023/24 
£000

2024/25 
£000

2025/26 
£000

2026/27 
£000

CAPITAL PROGRAMME TO 31 MARCH 2027

SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Development

CIL - OCC App TBC 6,528

CIL - CCG App TBC 4,059 1,183

Private housing renovation

Didcot Broadway affordable housing S106 TBC 500

Growth Points 136 App A136 1,275

6,842 7,820 109 308 109 109

Finance

General Ledger 325 App A325 53

53 0 0 0 0 0

Housing & Environment

Customer Service, Licensing & Land Charges

Licensing Software Project App A259 0 1

Private housing renovation App

Mandatory disabled facilities grants 011 App 201516 (1) X108 971 1,518 1,518 1,518 1,518 1,518

Discretionary assistance 012 App X109 12 65 65 59 45 45

Waste

Wheeled Bins 279 App A068 110 110 110 110 110 110

Community Safety

Replacement CCTV Cameras 271 App 201516 (8) A271 30 14

1,123 1,708 1,693 1,687 1,673 1,673

S:\Budget Setting\2022-23\South\Cabinet & Council\Appendix D.1 Capital programme - SOUTH BUDGET 22-23Cap Prog 4

P
age 112

A
genda Item

 9



 No. App/Prov Note Costc

2021/22 
Latest 
Budget 
£000

2022/23 
£000

2023/24 
£000

2024/25 
£000

2025/26 
£000

2026/27 
£000

CAPITAL PROGRAMME TO 31 MARCH 2027

SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Provisional Capital Programme

CORPORATE SERVICES

External Capital Grants 009, 010 PROV 201314 (4) 321 320 320 320 320 320

Volunteer brokerage IT solution 302 PROV 2017/18 (9) 40

IT Operations purchase of hardware 321 PROV 202021 (2) 75 50 50 50 50 50

DEVELOPMENT & CORPORATE LANDLORD

Leisure Centres Essential Works 173 PROV 201314 (8) 198 198 198 198 198 198

Leisure Centres General Works 320 PROV 202021 (1) 20 20 20 20 20 20

Abbey Sports Centre - ATP renovation 330 PROV 202122 (2) 250

Park Sports Centre - roof light replacement 331 PROV 202122 (3) 5

Thame Leisure Centre - replace CHP 332 PROV 202122 (4) 180

Car Park Resurfacing & Improvement 142 PROV 201314 (10) 42

Car Park resurfacing    323 PROV 202021 (4) 22 26 25 52 26 26

Refurb Kidmore and Wallingford cemetaries 265 PROV 201415 (6) 0 34

Grounds Team Equipments 310 PROV 2018/19 (2) 0 30

Electric Vehicles 333 PROV 202122 (6) 0 30

Flood Alleviation Wheatley 246 PROV 201314 (17) 0 59

Flood Defence 281 PROV 201516 (7) 0 15

Replacement Sewage Pumping Station for FMP 309 PROV 2018/19 (1) 0 60

Public Art - Great Western Park 248 PROV 201314 (19) 156

Cornerstone Capital Works 242 PROV 201314 (13) 56

S:\Budget Setting\2022-23\South\Cabinet & Council\Appendix D.1 Capital programme - SOUTH BUDGET 22-23Cap Prog 5

P
age 113

A
genda Item

 9



 No. App/Prov Note Costc

2021/22 
Latest 
Budget 
£000

2022/23 
£000

2023/24 
£000

2024/25 
£000

2025/26 
£000

2026/27 
£000

CAPITAL PROGRAMME TO 31 MARCH 2027

SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

HOUSING & ENVIRONMENT PROV

Affordable Homes Delivery Plan 317 PROV 2019/20 (3) 0 3,665

Replacement CCTV Cameras 271 PROV 201516 (8) 0 4

CCTV replacement cameras 322 PROV 202021 (3) 0 59 12 12 12 12

Temporary Accommodation 312 PROV Council 10/17 0 1,000

PARTNERSHIP & INSIGHT

Investment in Pension Scheme Assets 311 PROV 2018/19 (5) 0 5,000

CONTINGENCY

Capital Contingency 235 PROV 201314 (2) 750

2,115 10,570 625 652 626 626

S:\Budget Setting\2022-23\South\Cabinet & Council\Appendix D.1 Capital programme - SOUTH BUDGET 22-23Cap Prog 6

P
age 114

A
genda Item

 9



Appendix D.2
South Oxfordshire DC - 2022/23 capital growth bids

No Title of bid Summary

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Funded from internal resources
DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION

1 Capitalisation of staff costs 
for property

Costs of staff employed on property related matters that 
can be capitalised

Ongoing Joint 135,811 104,558 104,558 104,558 104,558

5 Essential capital works Essential capital works in maintaining the council's 
property estate

One-off South only 500,000

635,811 104,558 104,558 104,558 104,558 0 0 0 0 0

CORPORATE SERVICES

6 IT operations Delivery of the Technology Strategy One-off Joint 191,500 10,000 0 0 0 0 0

191,500 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

GRAND TOTAL 827,311 114,558 104,558 104,558 104,558 0 0 0 0 0

REVENUE CONSEQUENCES
Spending profile:One-off 

or 
rolling

CAPITAL SPEND
South 
only or 

joint 
bid?

Spending profile:

1

P
age 115

A
genda Item

 9



Appendix D.3
South Oxfordshire DC - 2022/23 capital growth bids

No Title of bid Summary

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Funded from CIL

1 Wallingford Riverside 
Splashpad Extension

Create a larger splashpad by creating a new one on the 
adjacent green space to the current location inc. building 
a refreshment kiosk 

One-off South 200,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2 Wallingford Riverside Campsite 
Improvements

Full refurbishment of campsite changing block and 
potential removal of pill box to create more space and 
easier access to the river front 

One-off South 150,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3 Abbey Sports Centre Pool 
Improvements

Replacement of pool prom tiles and improvement works 
to current pool drainage 

One-off South 100,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4 Henley Leisure Centre - Sports 
Hall Floor

Replacement of sports hall floor as approaching end of 
service life 

One-off South 200,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5 Henley Leisure Centre - 
Replacement Sauna and 
Steam Room

Replacement of current sauna and steam area which are 
both in a poor condition having exceeded their service life 

One-off South 55,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

6 Didcot Wave Spin Studio Create a new spin studio by combining the current 
kitchen/store/party space which is no longer used 

One-off South 140,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

7 Park Leisure Centre - Roof 
Replacement

Replacement of flat roof covering across the whole 
centre as service life has already been exceeded by two 

One-off South 250,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

8 Thame Leisure Centre - Sauna 
and Steam Room

Install a sauna and steam area to poolside utilising the 
current pool store

One-off South 55,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

9 Thame Leisure Centre - New 
Gym Area

Create a new gym area downstairs for multi-functional 
fitness and a new studio, and creating a spin studio by 
reconfiguring current areas.

One-off South 350,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

10 Cornerstone Roof 
Replacement

Critical roof improvements including replacement and 
upgrade of equipment to improve energy efficiency

One-off South 250,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

11 Wallingford Moorings Access To improve existing access path and ramp at Wallingford 
Riverside Moorings to provide improved access for 
wheelchair users and other visitors to the site.

One-off South 148,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

12 Tiny Forests The Tiny Forests will be sited to improve green 
infrastructure and open spaes in areas where there is a 
deficit of green spaces.  Pilot site

One-off South 25,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

13 Strategic Partnership with Trust 
for Oxfordshire's Environment 
to protect the natural world

Allocate funds to Trust for Oxfordshire's Environment to 
deliver at least 3 projects in South Oxfordshire, for new 
wildlife habitats, tree planting and access to the 
countryside.

One-off South 50,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

1,973,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Fudned from Section 106
1 Affordable housing Funding for affordable housing schemes One-off South 3,500,000 1,500,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3,500,000 1,500,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

GRAND TOTAL 5,473,500 1,500,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

One-off 
or 

rolling

CAPITAL SPEND
South 
only or 

joint 
bid?

Spending profile:
REVENUE CONSEQUENCES

Spending profile:

1

P
age 116

A
genda Item

 9



Appendix E 

  
 

Prudential indicators – South Oxfordshire DC 

1 Affordability 

1.1 Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream   

These indicators compare the net interest payable less investment income receivable 
to the overall net revenue spending of the council. Because the council has a high 
level of investment income and lower cost of borrowing this indicator is negative and 
remains so throughout the period. 

Indicator A-1 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 
Ratio of financing costs 
to net revenue stream 

estimate estimate estimate estimate estimate 

Non – HRA (8.5%) (8.1%) (8.5%) (6.3%) (5.7%) 
 
2 Prudence 

2.1 Gross borrowing and the capital financing requirement 

It is prudent to ensure that borrowing is only used to fund capital (as opposed to 
revenue) expenditure. The indicator to measure whether this is achieved is to 
demonstrate that external borrowing does not, except in the short term, exceed the 
total of capital financing requirement in the preceding year plus the estimates of any 
additional capital financing requirement for the current and next two financial years. 

Indicator P-1 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25  
  actual estimate estimate estimate estimate  
 £m £m £m £m £m  

Capital financing 
requirement 
 

0 0 5 15 15  

Gross borrowing 
 

0 0 5 10 0  

 
In this instance the capital financing requirement is shown as zero for 2021/22 but 
increases as borrowing begins to be undertaken in future years.  The head of finance 
reports that the authority had no difficulty meeting this requirement in 2020/21.  

The proposed 2022/23 capital programme includes £15 million debt financing for 
capital projects. The forecast capital financing requirement for 2024/25 is £15million. 

2.2 Capital expenditure 
 
The first indicator shows the total capital expenditure plans of the council’s approved 
plus provisional programme including capital growth proposals put forward. 
 

 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 
Indicator P-2 estimate estimate estimate estimate estimate estimate 
 
 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Estimates of capital 
expenditure 

10,960 33,399 14,042 10,548 2,513 2,513 

 
 
The second indicator records actual capital expenditure for the previous financial year. 
 

Page 117

Agenda Item 9



Appendix E 

  
 

 2020/21 2020/21 
Indicator P-3 estimate actual 
 £000 £000 
Actual capital expenditure 4,101 2,099 

 
2.3 Borrowing need 

This indicator reflects the authority’s underlying need to borrow for a capital purpose, 
its Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). This borrowing may not need to take place 
externally, and the council may judge it prudent to make use of cash that it has 
already invested for long term purposes. 

 
 31/3/2022 31/3/2023 31/3/2024 31/3/2025 31/3/2026 31/03/2027 
Indicator P-4 estimate estimate estimate estimate estimate estimate 
  £m £m £m £m £m £m 
Estimate of 
CFR 

         

    Non-HRA 0 0 0 15 15 15 
Estimate of 
movement in 
year 

      

    Non-HRA 0 0 0 15 0 0 
 
The capital financing requirement as at 31 March each year is derived from specific 
balances within the balance sheet, and adjustments are made for capital expenditure, 
and the resources applied to finance the expenditure. The authority’s capital 
expenditure is resourced immediately from capital receipts, reserves, grants, 
contributions and directly from revenue, the CFR is forecast to remain zero until 
2024/25. 

The actual CFR for 31 March 2021 is shown below. 

 31/3/2021 
Indicator P-5 actual 
  £000 
Actual capital financing requirement  
    Non-HRA 0 
Actual movement in year  
    Non-HRA 0 

 

Page 118

Agenda Item 9



Latest medium term financial plan to 2026/27 Appendix C

1
2

3

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

34

35

36

37

38

40

41

42

43

44

47

48

49

50

51

52

56

57

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68
69

70

A B C D E FA

South Oxfordshire District Council Budget Indicative Indicative Indicative Indicative
2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

£ £ £ £ £
Base budget bfwd 20,308,245 20,308,245 20,308,245 20,308,245 20,308,245
Revisions to base budget
Opening budget adjustments (3,028,930) (3,796,283) (4,039,709) (4,035,779) (4,009,779)
Inflation, salary increments and adjustments 596,821 1,006,357 1,425,243 1,819,430 2,222,684
Essential growth - one-off 298,674 244,427 231,667 1,350,000 0
Essential growth - ongoing 887,227 881,889 881,889 969,848 881,889
Future essential growth 0 250,000 500,000 750,000 1,000,000
Base budget savings (2,471,182) (2,471,182) (2,392,775) (2,889,522) (2,889,522)
In year savings target (300,000) (300,000) (300,000) (300,000) (300,000)
Movement in revenue contingency 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000
Movement in managed vacancy factor (219,776) (219,776) (219,776) (219,776) (219,776)
Total revised base budget 16,271,079 16,103,677 16,594,784 17,952,447 17,193,741
Growth, savings and other budget adjustments
Growth proposals

   Revenue - one-off 500,000 0 0 0 0
   Revenue - ongoing 112,500 112,500 112,500 112,500 112,500

Savings proposals (105,000) (105,000) (105,000) (105,000) (105,000)
Net cost of services 16,778,579 16,111,177 16,602,284 17,959,947 17,201,241
Borrowing costs 101,500 304,500 298,410 592,320 586,230
Gross treasury income (1,776,730) (1,899,260) (1,999,560) (1,882,960) (1,761,410)
Net expenditure 15,103,349 14,516,417 14,901,134 16,669,307 16,026,061
Transfers to/from earmarked reserves 545,890 522,530 500,300 283,400 278,450
Amount to be financed 15,649,239 15,038,947 15,401,434 16,952,707 16,304,511
Financing
Core Government Funding (4,967,924) (4,384,355) (3,971,849) (3,550,686) (3,120,715)
Core Funding (4,967,924) (4,384,355) (3,971,849) (3,550,686) (3,120,715)
NDR - renewable energy (76,894) (76,894) (76,894) (76,894) (76,894)
Collection fund surplus/deficit (275,396) (200,000) (200,000) (200,000) (200,000)
Council tax req'ment before reserves funding 10,329,025 10,377,698 11,152,691 13,125,127 12,906,902
Use of reserves to balance budget (2,107,799) (1,752,479) (2,114,965) (3,666,238) (3,018,042)
Council tax req'ment after reserves funding 8,221,226 8,625,220 9,037,725 9,458,889 9,888,860
Tax base 60,343.7 61,067.8 61,800.6 62,542.2 63,292.8
Band D Council tax 136.24 141.24 146.24 151.24 156.24
Council tax increase from previous year 3.7% 3.7% 3.5% 3.4% 3.3%

Usable balances at year end:* £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
General fund balance (25,427) (23,675) (21,710) (21,394) (18,375)
Earmarked revenue reserves - allocated (7,142) (7,665) (8,165) (7,449) (7,727)
Capital receipts (12,795) (11,781) (7,601) (5,256) (4,261)

Total (45,365) (43,121) (37,476) (34,098) (30,363)

* Excludes balances held for the long term as per the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy

S:\Budget Setting\2022-23\South\Cabinet & Council\Appendix F MTFP 2022-23 - South Budget

Page 119

Agenda Item 9



Report to: 

Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

Cabinet 

Council 

 

 

Report of Head of Finance 

 

Author: Simon Hewings 

Telephone: 01235 422499 

E-mail: simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk 

Wards affected: all 

Cabinet member responsible:  Councillor Leigh Rawlins 

Telephone: 01189 722565 

E-mail:  leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk 

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee    25 January 2022 
To: Cabinet                                                       3 February 2022 
To: Council                                                       17 February 2022 

 

 

Future provision of external audit 

services 

Recommendations 

1) That Joint Audit and Governance Committee notes the reports and makes any 
recommendations on the proposals contained herein to Cabinet. 
 

2) That Cabinet recommends to Council to: 
 

a) Accept Public Sector Audit Appointments’ invitation to opt into the sector-led 
option for the appointment of external auditors to principal local government 
and police bodies for five financial years from 1 April 2023; and 

 
b) Authorise the Head of Finance to opt into the national scheme for auditor 

appointments for the provision of external audit services starting with the audit 
of the 2023/24 accounts. 

 

 

Purpose of report 

1. This report sets out proposals for appointing the external auditor to the Council for 
the accounts for the five-year period from 2023/24 and seeks authority for the Head 
of Finance to opt into the national scheme for auditor appointments on behalf of the 
Council in accordance with the recommendation from Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee. 

Page 120

Agenda Item 10

mailto:simon
mailto:leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk


Strategic objectives  

2. Effective financial management, including the effective external audit of the 
council’s accounts, helps underpin the council’s ability to deliver services and meet 
the council’s strategic objectives. 

Background 

3. The current auditor appointment arrangements cover the period up to and including 
the audit of the 2022/23 accounts.  The Council opted into the ‘appointing person’ 
national auditor appointment arrangements established by Public Sector Audit 
Appointments (PSAA) for the period covering the accounts for 2018/19 to 2022/23. 

 
4. PSAA is now undertaking a procurement for the next appointing period, covering 

audits for 2023/24 to 2027/28. All local government bodies need to decide their 
external audit arrangements from 2023/24. They have the options to arrange their 
own procurement, or they can join the national collective scheme administered by 
PSAA. 

5. If the council wishes to take advantage of the national arrangements, then full 
Council is required under the local audit regulations to make this decision so that 
the council can opt-in by 11 March 2022. 

Procurement of External Audit for the period 2023/24 to 2027/28 

6. Under the Local Government Audit & Accountability Act 2014 (“the Act”), the 
Council is required to appoint an auditor to audit its accounts for each financial year.  
The Council has three options: 

 To appoint its own auditor, which requires it to follow the procedure set out in 

the Act.  

 To act jointly with other authorities to procure an auditor following the 

procedures in the Act.  

 To opt into the national auditor appointment scheme administered by a body 

designated by the Secretary of State as the ‘appointing person’.  The body 

currently designated for this role is PSAA. 

The Appointed Auditor 

7. The auditor appointed at the end of the procurement process will undertake the 
statutory audit of accounts and Best Value assessment of the council in each 
financial year, in accordance with all relevant codes of practice and guidance.  The 
appointed auditor is also responsible for investigating questions raised by electors 
and has powers and responsibilities in relation to Public Interest Reports and 
statutory recommendations. 

8. The auditor must act independently of the Council and the main purpose of the 
procurement legislation is to ensure that the appointed auditor is sufficiently 
qualified and independent. 

9. The auditor must be registered to undertake local audits by the Financial Reporting 
Council (FRC) employ authorised Key Audit Partners to oversee the work. As the 
report below sets out there is a currently a shortage of registered firms and Key 
Audit Partners. 

10. Auditors are regulated by the FRC, which will be replaced by a new body with wider 
powers, the Audit, Reporting and Governance Authority (ARGA) during the course 
of the next audit contract. 

Page 121

Agenda Item 10



11. Councils therefore have very limited influence over the nature of the audit services 
they are procuring, the nature and quality of which are determined or overseen by 
third parties. 

Appointment by the Council itself or jointly 

12. The Council may elect to appoint its own external auditor under the Act, which 
would require the council to: 

 Establish an independent auditor panel to make a stand-alone appointment. 
The auditor panel would need to be set up by the council itself, and the 
members of the panel must be wholly or a majority of independent members 
as defined by the Act. Independent members for this purpose are independent 
appointees, excluding current and former elected members (or officers) and 
their close families and friends. This means that elected members will not have 
a majority input to assessing bids and choosing to which audit firm to award a 
contract for the council’s external audit.  

 

 Manage the contract for its duration, overseen by the Auditor Panel. 
 
13. Alternatively, the Act enables the council to join with other authorities to establish a 

joint auditor panel. Again, this will need to be constituted of wholly or a majority of 
independent appointees. Further legal advice would be required on the exact 
constitution of such a panel having regard to the obligations of each council under 
the Act and the council would need to liaise with other local authorities to assess the 
appetite for such an arrangement. 

The national auditor appointment scheme 

14. PSAA is specified as the ‘appointing person’ for principal local government under 
the provisions of the Act and the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015. 
PSAA let five-year audit services contracts in 2017 for the first appointing period, 
covering audits of the accounts from 2018/19 to 2022/23. It is now undertaking the 
work needed to invite eligible bodies to opt in for the next appointing period, from 
the 2023/24 audit onwards, and to complete a procurement for audit services. 
PSAA is a not-for-profit organisation whose costs are around 4 per cent of the 
scheme with any surplus distributed back to scheme members. 

15. In summary the national opt-in scheme provides the following: 

 the appointment of a suitably qualified audit firm to conduct audits for each of 
the five financial years commencing 1 April 2023; 

 appointing the same auditor to other opted-in bodies that are involved in 
formal collaboration or joint working initiatives to the extent this is possible with 
other constraints; 

 managing the procurement process to ensure both quality and price criteria 
are satisfied. PSAA has sought views from the sector to help inform its 
detailed procurement strategy; 

 ensuring suitable independence of the auditors from the bodies they audit and 
managing any potential conflicts as they arise during the appointment period; 

 minimising the scheme management costs and returning any surpluses to 
scheme members; 

 consulting with authorities on auditor appointments, giving the Council the 
opportunity to influence which auditor is appointed; 

 consulting with authorities on the scale of audit fees and ensuring these reflect 
scale, complexity, and audit risk; and Page 122

Agenda Item 10



 ongoing contract and performance management of the contracts once these 
have been let. 

Pressures in the current local audit market and delays in issuing 
opinions 

16. Much has changed in the local audit market since audit contracts were last awarded 
in 2017. At that time the audit market was relatively stable, there had been few 
changes in audit requirements, and local audit fees had been reducing over a long 
period. 98 per cent of those bodies eligible opted into the national scheme and 
attracted very competitive bids from audit firms. The resulting audit contracts took 
effect from 1 April 2018. 

17. During 2018 a series of financial crises and failures in the private sector year led to 
questioning about the role of auditors and the focus and value of their work. Four 
independent reviews were commissioned by Government: Sir John Kingman’s 
review of the Financial Reporting Council (FRC), the audit regulator; the 
Competition and Markets Authority review of the audit market; Sir Donald Brydon’s 
review of the quality and effectiveness of audit; and Sir Tony Redmond’s review of 
local authority financial reporting and external audit. The recommendations are now 
under consideration by Government, with the clear implication that significant 
reforms will follow. A new audit regulator (ARGA) is to be established, and 
arrangements for system leadership in local audit are to be introduced. Further 
change will follow as other recommendations are implemented. 

18. The Kingman review has led to an urgent drive for the FRC to deliver rapid, 
measurable improvements in audit quality. This has created a major pressure for 
audit firms to ensure full compliance with regulatory requirements and expectations 
in every audit they undertake. By the time firms were conducting 2018/19 local 
audits during 2019, the measures they were putting in place to respond to a more 
focused regulator were clearly visible. To deliver the necessary improvements in 
audit quality, firms were requiring their audit teams to undertake additional work to 
gain deeper levels of assurance. However, additional work requires more time, 
posing a threat to the firms’ ability to complete all their audits by the target date for 
publication of audited accounts. Delayed opinions are not the only consequence of 
the FRC’s drive to improve audit quality. Additional audit work must also be paid for. 
As a result, many more fee variation claims have been needed than in prior years.  

19. This situation has been accentuated by growing auditor recruitment and retention 
challenges, the complexity of local government financial statements and increasing 
levels of technical challenges as bodies explore innovative ways of developing new 
or enhanced income streams to help fund services for local people. These 
challenges have increased in subsequent audit years, with Covid-19 creating further 
significant pressure for finance and audit teams.  

20. None of these problems is unique to local government audit. Similar challenges 
have played out in other sectors, where increased fees and disappointing 
responses to tender invitations have been experienced during the past two years. 

The National Scheme Invitation and Procurement Process 

21. PSAA is now inviting the council to opt in for the second appointing period, for 
2023/24 to 2027/28, along with all other eligible authorities. Based on the level of 
opt-ins it will enter into contracts with appropriately qualified audit firms and appoint 
a suitable firm to be the council’s auditor. 

22. The prices submitted by bidders through the procurement will be the key 
determinant of the value of audit fees paid by opted-in bodies. PSAA has pledged 
to: 

Page 123

Agenda Item 10



 seek to encourage realistic fee levels and to benefit from the economies of 
scale associated with procuring on behalf of a significant number of bodies; 
 

 continue to pool scheme costs and charge fees to opted-in bodies in 
accordance with the published fee scale as amended following consultations 
with scheme members and other interested parties (pooling means that 
everyone within the scheme will benefit from the prices secured via a 
competitive procurement process – a key tenet of the national collective 
scheme); 

 

 continue to minimise its own costs, around 4 per cent of scheme costs, and as 
a not-for-profit company will return any surplus funds to scheme members. In 
2019 it returned a total £3.5 million to relevant bodies and in 2021 a further 
£5.6 million was returned; 

 

 seek to encourage market sustainability in its procurement. Firms will be able 
to bid for a variety of differently sized contracts so that they can match their 
available resources and risk appetite to the contract for which they bid. They 
will be required to meet appropriate quality standards and to reflect realistic 
market prices in their tenders, informed by the scale fees and the supporting 
information provided about each audit. Where regulatory changes are in train 
which affect the amount of audit work suppliers must undertake, firms will be 
informed as to which developments should be priced into their bids. 

 
23. The scope of a local audit is fixed. It is determined by the Code of Audit Practice 

(currently published by the National Audit Office), the format of the financial 
statements (specified by CIPFA/LASAAC) and the application of auditing standards 
regulated by the FRC. These factors apply to all local audits irrespective of whether 
an eligible body decides to opt into PSAA’s national scheme or chooses to make its 
own separate arrangements. The requirements are mandatory; they shape the work 
auditors undertake and have a bearing on the actual fees required. 

24. There are currently nine audit providers eligible to audit local authorities and other 
relevant bodies under local audit legislation. This means that a local procurement 
exercise would seek tenders from the same firms as the national procurement 
exercise, subject to the need to manage any local independence issues. Local firms 
cannot be invited to bid. Local procurements must deliver the same audit scope and 
requirements as a national procurement, reflecting the auditor’s statutory 
responsibilities. 

Not Opting in to the National Scheme 

25. If the council did not opt in there would be a need to establish an independent 
auditor panel to make a stand-alone appointment. The auditor panel would need to 
be set up by the council itself, and the members of the panel must be wholly or a 
majority of independent members as defined by the Act. Independent members for 
this purpose are independent appointees, excluding current and former elected 
members (or officers) and their close families and friends. This means that elected 
members will not have a majority input to assessing bids and choosing to which 
audit firm to award a contract for the council’s external audit. 

26. Alternatively, the council could join with other authorities to establish a joint auditor 
panel. Again, this will need to be constituted of wholly or a majority of independent 
appointees. Further legal advice would be required on the exact constitution of such 
a panel having regard to the obligations of each council under the Act and the 
council would need to liaise with other local authorities to assess the appetite for 
such an arrangement. 

Page 124

Agenda Item 10



27. These would be more resource-intensive processes to implement for the council, 
and without the bulk buying power of the sector-led procurement would be likely to 
result in a more costly service. It would also be more difficult to manage quality and 
independence requirements through a local appointment process. The council 
would still be unable to influence the scope of the audit and the regulatory regime 
inhibits the council’s ability to affect quality.  The council and its auditor panel would 
need to maintain ongoing oversight of the contract. 

28. The national procurement provides the appointment of an independent auditor with 
limited administrative cost to the council. By joining the scheme, the council would 
be acting with other councils to optimise the opportunity to influence the market that 
a national procurement provides. 

29. The recommended approach is therefore to opt in to the national auditor 
appointment scheme. 

The Process to Opt in to the National Scheme 

30. Regulation 19 of the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 requires that 
a decision to opt in must be made by a meeting full Council.  

31. The Council then needs to respond formally to PSAA’s invitation in the form 
specified by PSAA by the close of the opt-in period (11 March 2022).  

32. PSAA will commence the formal procurement process in early February 2022. It 
expects to award contracts in August 2022 and will then consult with authorities on 
the appointment of auditors so that it can make appointments by the statutory 
deadline of 31 December 2022. 

Climate and ecological impact implications 

33. There are no direct climate or ecological implications arising from this report. 

Financial Implications 

34. Any council decision that has financial implications must be made with the 
knowledge of the council’s overarching financial position. For South, the position 
reflected in the council’s medium-term financial plan (MTFP) as reported to Full 
Council in February 2021 showed that the council is due to receive £4.3 million less 
in revenue funding than it plans to spend in 2021/22 (with the balance coming from 
reserves including unallocated New Homes Bonus).  

 
35. This funding gap is predicted to increase to over £5 million by 2025/26. As there 

remains no certainty on future local government funding, following the 
announcement of a one-year spending review by government, and as the long-term 
financial consequences of the Coronavirus pandemic remain unknown, this gap 
could increase further. Every financial decision made needs to be cognisance of the 
need to eliminate this funding gap in future years. 

 
36. There is a risk that current external audit fee levels could increase when the current 

contracts end. It is clear that the scope of audit has increased, requiring more audit 
work. There are also concerns about capacity and sustainability in the local audit 
market. 

37. Opting into a national scheme provides maximum opportunity to ensure fees are as 
realistic as possible, while ensuring the quality of audit is maintained, by entering 
into a large scale collective procurement arrangement. 

38. If the national scheme is not used some additional resource may be needed to 
establish an auditor panel and conduct a local procurement. Until a procurement 
exercise is completed it is not possible to state what, if any, additional resource may 
be required for audit fees from 2023/24. Page 125

Agenda Item 10



Legal implications 

39. Section 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 requires a relevant council 
to appoint a local auditor to audit its accounts for a financial year not later than 31 
December in the preceding year.  

40. Section 8 governs the procedure for appointment including that the council must 
consult and take account of the advice of its auditor panel on the selection and 
appointment of a local auditor. Section 8 provides that where a relevant council is a 
local Council operating executive arrangements, the function of appointing a local 
auditor to audit its accounts is not the responsibility of an executive of the council 
under those arrangements. 

41. Section 12 makes provision for the failure to appoint a local auditor. The council 
must immediately inform the Secretary of State, who may direct the council to 
appoint the auditor named in the direction or appoint a local auditor on behalf of the 
council.  

42. Section 17 gives the Secretary of State the power to make regulations in relation to 
an ‘appointing person’ specified by the Secretary of State.  This power has been 
exercised in the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 (SI 192) and this 
gives the Secretary of State the ability to enable a sector-led body to become the 
appointing person. In July 2016 the Secretary of State specified PSAA as the 
appointing person. 

Conclusion 

43. The report concludes that the sector-wide procurement conducted by PSAA will 
produce better outcomes and will be less burdensome for the council than a 
procurement undertaken locally because: 

 collective procurement reduces costs for the sector and for individual 
authorities compared to a multiplicity of smaller local procurements; 

 if it does not use the national appointment arrangements, the council will need 
to establish its own auditor panel with an independent chair and independent 
members to oversee a local auditor procurement and ongoing management of 
an audit contract; 

 it is the best opportunity to secure the appointment of a qualified, registered 
auditor - there are only nine accredited local audit firms, and a local 
procurement would be drawing from the same limited supply of auditor 
resources as PSAA’s national procurement; and 

 supporting the sector-led body offers the best way of to ensuring there is a 
continuing and sustainable public audit market into the medium and long term. 

44. If the council wishes to take advantage of the national auditor appointment 
arrangements, it is required under the local audit regulations to make the decision at 
full Council. The opt-in period starts on 22 September 2021 and closes on 11 March 
2022. To opt into the national scheme from 2023/24, the council needs to return 
completed opt-in documents to PSAA by 11 March 2022. 

 

Page 126

Agenda Item 10



 

 
1 

 

Council Report 

 

  

Report of Deputy Chief Executive 

Author: Adrianna Partridge 

Telephone: 01235 422422 

E-mail: adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk 

To: Council 

Date: 17 February 2022 

 

 

Pay policy statement 2022/23 

Recommendation 

That Council approve the attached statement of pay policy for 2022/23. 

 

 

Purpose of report 

1. This Pay Policy Statement is provided in accordance with Section 38(1) of the 
Localism Act 2011 and is updated annually from April each year. This pay policy 
statement sets out South Oxfordshire District Council’s policies relating to the pay 
of its workforce for the financial year 2022-23, in particular: 

a) the remuneration of its Chief Officers 
b) the remuneration of its “lowest paid employees” 
c) the relationship between 
• the remuneration of its Chief Officers and 
• the remuneration of its employees who are not Chief Officers 
 

Background 

2. The purpose of the pay policy statement is to promote transparency on public 
sector pay, particularly in relation to remuneration of senior officers.  Comparisons 
are also made with the remuneration of the lowest paid employees and with 
average salaries. 

3. The pay policy statement must be approved by 31 March each year, by a meeting 
of the Full Council.  The pay policy statement may be amended during the year by 
further resolution of the Council.   

4. Once approved, the Pay Policy statement must be published on the council 
website and by any other means that the council sees fit. 

CONFIDENTIAL 

Page 127

Agenda Item 12



 

 
2 

 

5. Officers of each council are placed at the disposal of the other and their costs are 
shared, as such, the Pay Policy statement attached has been drafted jointly 
between the councils.     

Recommendation 

6. Council is asked to approve the Pay Policy statement for 2022/23. 

Background papers 

None 

Page 128

Agenda Item 12



 

 
3 

 

Pay Policy Statement for 2022/23 

INTRODUCTION 

1. This is a joint statement of South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District 
Councils. 

 
2. The Localism Act 2011 requires each council to produce and publish annually a 

pay policy statement.  The statement which relates to the forthcoming financial 
year, must be approved by 31 March each year, by a meeting of the Full Council, 
and must then be published on the council’s website.  The pay policy statement 
may be amended during the year by further resolution of the council. 

 
3. The pay policy statement must as a minimum include details of the council’s policy 

on: 
 

 the remuneration of its chief officers 

 the remuneration of its lowest-paid employees 

 the relationship between the remuneration of its chief officers and other officers. 
 
4. For the purposes of the Localism Act 2011 and this statement, the term “Chief 

Officers” is defined by Section 2 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989.  
For these councils, the term “chief officers” refers to the Chief Executive (Head of 
Paid Service), Deputy Chief Executives, Heads of Service, Service Managers, the 
Monitoring Officer and the Chief Finance (S151) Officer. 

 
5. Chief Officers may be employed by either council, and are placed at the disposal of 

the other by means of an agreement made under Section 113 of the Local 
Government Act 1972. 

 
6. Lowest paid employees” refers to those staff employed within grade 1 of the 
      council’s pay framework. The above definition for the “lowest paid employees” has 
      been adopted because grade 1 is the lowest grade on the council’s pay  
      framework. 
 

ORGANISATION STRUCTURE 

7. On the 9 June 2021, the Joint Staff Committee resolved to agree to make the 
management structure permanent and confirmed the interim postholders in the 
posts on a permanent basis.  The committee also resolved to confirm the acting 
Head of Service, Finance and Accountancy in post. Recruitment for vacant 
positions will continue in 2022/23.  
 

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF OFFICERS 

8. Chief officers are paid a spot salary.  The spot salaries which apply for 2022/23 are 
as follows: 

 

 Chief executive: £169,447 

 Deputy Chief Executives £124,227 

Page 129

Agenda Item 12



 

 
4 

 

 Heads of Service: £102,186 
 

Service Managers will be paid on the joint council pay scale at grade 11. 
 

 service managers: £62,808 to £71,330. 
 

9. NB All figures in this statement reflect the agreed pay award for 2022/23 which is 
1.9% 

 
10. Chief officers do not receive any performance-related pay or bonuses.   

 
11. The Chief Executive has been designated as the councils’ Head of Paid Service. 

No additional remuneration is payable for that designation. 
 
12. The Head of Finance has been designated as the councils’ Chief Finance (section 

151) Officer. No additional remuneration is payable for that designation. 
 
13. The Head of Legal and Democratic has been designated as the councils’ 

Monitoring Officer. No additional remuneration is payable for that designation. 
 
14. The Chief Executive has been appointed as the councils’ Returning Officer.  In this 

role they receive additional remuneration, which varies from year to year.  They 
may also employ other officers to support them in their work.  Fees payable for 
district and parish council elections are agreed by each council.  Fees for other 
types of election are agreed and payable by the government or other bodies such 
as Oxfordshire County Council. 

 
15. Chief Officers do not receive overtime, on-call or stand-by payments, and do not 

receive additional payment for attendance at evening meetings.  The Chief 
Executive, at their discretion, may make additional responsibility payments as 
required. 
 

16. On recruitment of a new Head of Service within the current management structure, 
the gross base salary on recruitment will be the spot salary stated in paragraph 7, 
though this may be varied if an interim appointment is made. 

 
17. On recruitment of a new Chief Executive, the gross base salary will be determined 

by the Joint Staff Committee.   
 
18. In the event of a Chief Officer’s post becoming redundant, any severance payment 

will be made on the same basis as to any other employee, according to the 
councils’ organisational change policy.  Other than any pension to which they are 
contractually and / or statutorily entitled, no other payments will be made to Chief 
Officers on their ceasing to be employees of the council unless in settlement of any 
dispute.   

 

19. Chief Officers’ contributions to the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) are 
determined by their salary and by the rules of the scheme.  For those who are 
members of the LGPS and paying contributions on the whole of their salary, 
Deputy Chief Executives contribute 11.4 per cent. Heads of Service currently pay 
10.5 per cent of their salary into the scheme, while the Chief Executive pays 12.5 

Page 130

Agenda Item 12



 

 
5 

 

per cent. Service Managers who earn less than £65,900 contribute 8.5 per cent, 
those who earn above £65,901 contribute 9.9 per cent.   

 
20. No enhancements will normally be paid to Chief Officers’ pensions other than in 

the event of a Chief Officer being offered early retirement on efficiency grounds, 
and only then with the approval of the Joint Audit and Governance Committee. 

 
21. The councils will not re-employ a Chief Officer who has left their employment and 

is now drawing a local government pension, unless there are exceptional 
circumstances.   

 

LOWEST-PAID EMPLOYEES 

22. The councils are committed to paying the real living wage, the lowest-paid 
employees (including apprentices) are employed on full time 37 hours equivalent 
salaries in accordance with the minimum spinal column point currently in use within 
the council’s grading structure. From 1 April 2022, this will be £18,388 per annum. 
The Chief executive’s Salary is thus 9.2 times the salary of the lowest-paid 
member of staff. 
 

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF OFFICERS COMPARED WITH OTHER 
OFFICERS 

23. Employees who are not Chief Officers are paid according to locally agreed pay 
scales, with annual increments paid subject to performance until the employee 
reaches the top of the scale. 
 

24. Pay for all employees is determined by negotiation between UNISON and the 
senior management team. 
 

25. Pay negotiations for 2022/23 have been agreed and a 1.9% increase awarded. 
 

26. The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) published 
in February 2015 a code of recommended practice for local authorities on data 
transparency.  This code of practice recommends publishing the “pay multiple”, the 
ratio between the highest paid salary and the median average salary of the whole 
of the authority’s workforce.  For this council the median salary during 2022/23 will 
be £38,967 including the 1.9% pay award.  The pay multiple defined above is thus 
4.3.   

 

 
 

Page 131

Agenda Item 12


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes
	62 Report of the leader of the council

	7 Treasury Management and Investment Strategy 2022/23
	8 Capital Strategy 2022/23-2031/32
	Appendix, 03/02/2022 Cabinet

	9 Revenue budget 2022/23 and capital programme 2022/23 - 2026/27
	Appendix A.1 South revenue budget summary Feb 2022 CF AMENDED, 03/02/2022 Cabinet
	Appendix A.2 Opening Budget Adjustments Feb 2022, 03/02/2022 Cabinet
	Appendix A.3 inflation and salary changes Feb 2022, 03/02/2022 Cabinet
	Appendix A.4 essential growth 202223 Feb 2022, 03/02/2022 Cabinet
	Appendix A.5 base budget savings 202223 Feb 2022, 03/02/2022 Cabinet
	Appendix B.1 South revenue growth Feb 2022 AMENDED, 03/02/2022 Cabinet
	Appendix B.2 South revenue savings Feb 2022, 03/02/2022 Cabinet
	Appendix C South revenue budget Feb 2022, 03/02/2022 Cabinet
	Appendix D.1 South Capital Programe Feb 2022, 03/02/2022 Cabinet
	Appendix D.2 South Capital growth bids Feb 2022, 03/02/2022 Cabinet
	Appendix D.3 South Capital growth bids externally funded Feb 2022 UPDATED, 03/02/2022 Cabinet
	Appendix E - Prudential Indicators, 03/02/2022 Cabinet
	Appendix F South MTFP Feb 2022 CF AMENDED, 03/02/2022 Cabinet

	10 Future provision of external audit services
	12 Pay policy statement 2022/23

